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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D. C. 20549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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[ ] TRANSITION REPORT UNDER SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from _______to __________
Commission File Number 0-29657

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

33-0727323
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

5160 Yonge Street, Suite 803
Toronto, Ontario, M2N 6L9
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (416) 223-8500
Securities registered under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act:
None
Securities registered under Section 12(g) of the Exchange Act:
Common Stock $0.0001 par value
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
Yes [ ] No [X]
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Act.
Yes [ ] No [X]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes [X] No [ ]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit and post such files.)
Yes [ ] No [ ]
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to
the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K. [ ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company.
See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one)
Large accelerated filer [ ]

Non-accelerated filer [ ]

Accelerated filer [ ]

Smaller reporting company [X]

Indicate by check mark whether registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).
Yes [ ] No [X]
The aggregate market value of the voting common equity held by non-affiliates was $19,192,251, based on the average bid and asked price of such
common equity as of June 30, 2010, the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter. As of March 21, 2011,
there were 109,884,302 shares of the registrant’s common stock, par value $.0001 per share, issued and outstanding.

NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
We have made forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are subject to risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, are subject to the “safe harbor” created by those sections. The forward-looking statements in this report are based on our management’s
beliefs and assumptions and on information currently available to our management. You can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as
“anticipates,” “believes,” “continue,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “seeks,” “should,” “will” or “would” and similar
expressions intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors,
which may cause our actual results, performance, time frames or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance, time
frames or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. We discuss many of these risks, uncertainties and other factors in
this document in greater detail under the heading “Risk Factors.” We believe it is important to communicate our expectations to our investors.
However, there will be events that we are not able to predict accurately, or over which we have no control. The risks described in “Risk Factors”
included in this report, as well as any other cautionary language in this report, provide examples of risks, uncertainties and events that may cause our
actual results to differ materially from the expectations we describe in our forward-looking statements. Before you invest in our common stock, you
should be aware that the occurrence of the events described in “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this report could harm our business.
The forward-looking statements and associated risks set forth in this Annual Report include or relate to, among other things, (a) our growth
strategies, (b) anticipated trends in the mining industry, (c) our ability to obtain and retain sufficient capital for future operations, and (d) our
anticipated needs for working capital. These statements may be found under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” and “Description of Business”. The forward-looking statements herein are based on current expectations that involve a
number of risks and uncertainties. Such forward-looking statements are based on assumptions described herein. The assumptions are based on
judgments with respect to, among other things, future economic, competitive and market conditions, and future business decisions, all of which are
difficult or impossible to predict accurately and many of which are beyond our control. Accordingly, although we believe that the assumptions
underlying the forward-looking statements are reasonable, any such assumption could prove to be inaccurate and therefore there can be no assurance
that the results contemplated in forward-looking statements will be realized. In addition, as disclosed in “Risk Factors”, there are a number of other
risks inherent in our business and operations, which could cause our operating results to vary markedly, and adversely from prior results or the results
contemplated by the forward-looking statements. Management decisions, including budgeting, are subjective in many respects and periodic revisions
must be made to reflect actual conditions and business developments, the impact of which may cause us to alter marketing, capital investment and
other expenditures, which may also materially adversely affect our results of operations. In light of significant uncertainties inherent in the forwardlooking information included in the report statement, the inclusion of such information should not be regarded as a representation by us or any other
person that our objectives or plans will be achieved.
Given these risks, uncertainties and other factors, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Also, these forwardlooking statements represent our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this filing. You should read this document completely and with the
understanding that our actual future results may be materially different from what we expect. We hereby qualify our forward-looking statements by
these cautionary statements. Except as required by law, we assume no obligation to update these forward-looking statements publicly, or to update
the reasons actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements, even if new information becomes
available in the future.
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PART I
As used in this Annual Report, “we”, “us”, “our”, “Company” or “Silver Dragon” refers to Silver Dragon Resources Inc. and all of its subsidiaries.
Item 1. Description of Business
Corporate history
Silver Dragon Resources Inc. was initially incorporated in the State of Delaware on May 9, 1996 under the name American Electric Automobile
Company Inc. On July16, 2002, we amended our Certificate of Incorporation to change our name to American Entertainment & Animation
Corporation. On February 25, 2005, we again amended our Certificate of Incorporation to change our name to “Silver Dragon Resources Inc.” to
reflect our current business focus on silver.
We own a 40% equity interest in Sanhe Sino-Top Resources and Technologies, Ltd. (“Sino-Top’’), which was incorporated in 2003 as a Chinese
company wholly owned by Huaguan Industrial Corp. (“HIC’’), a subsidiary of the state-owned North China Geological Exploration Bureau. SinoTop became an American-Chinese joint venture in 2005. Silver Dragon Resources Inc. acquired Sino-Top in 2006, and currently owns 40% of SinoTop after having sold 50% of its ownership interest to its Chinese partners. The Chinese side, led by Gansu Shengda Group Ltd. (“Shengda”), at
52%, and HIC, at 8%, collectively own 60% of Sino-Top. Sino-Top holds exclusive exploration and development rights to six properties in northern
China (Inner Mongolia), covering a total area of 139 km 2 .
We are also entitled to 70% of the after-tax proceeds from the Erbahuo Silver mine, to which Chifeng Silver Dragon, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Sino-Top, holds exclusive exploration and mining rights.
We operate in Mexico through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Silver Dragon Mining De Mexico S.A. de C.V. (‘‘Silver Dragon Mexico’’), a Mexican
company incorporated on April 21, 2006.
We are engaged in the acquisition and exploration of silver and other mineral properties. Our primary focus is the exploration of seven properties
located in the Erbahuo Silver District in Northern China. We also had 15 concessions known as the Cerro Las Minitas property in Guadalupe,
Durango, Mexico. The ownership of that property is now subject to legal dispute. Although management expects that it may eventually be successful,
it has decided to write-off its Mexican assets as the outcome of the dispute is uncertain. Further details are provided on page 5 and in the notes to the
financial statements.
We are still in the exploration stage and have not generated any revenues from the properties in China and Mexico.
We have recently retained Gowlings Lafleur Henderson LLP in Toronto, Canada to facilitate our application to be listed on the Toronto Stock
Exchange.
Silver Mining Business in China
We acquired Sino-Top in 2006, and currently own 40% of Sino-Top after having sold 50% of our ownership interest to our Chinese partners. The
Chinese side partners, led by Gansu Shengda Group Ltd. (“Shengda”), at 52%, and HIC, at 8%, collectively together own 60% of Sino-Top. SinoTop holds exclusive exploration and development rights to six properties in northern China (Inner Mongolia), covering a total area of 139 km2.
Erbahuo projects
On March 16, 2006, we entered into an agreement to acquire certain mining and exploration rights to the Erbahuo Silver Project by purchasing a 60%
interest in Sino-Top from Sino Silver Corp. (the “Asset Purchase Agreement’). Sino-Top was an equity joint venture company originally created
under the Joint Venture Agreement dated April 14, 2005 between Sino Silver and certain other parties. Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement,
we acquired a 60% interest in Sino-Top and became a party to the Joint Venture Agreement. Sino-Top held the exploration and mining rights to nine
properties in the Erbahuo Silver District in Northern China (“Erbahuo Projects”). The total purchase price was $650,000 plus 4,000,000 shares of our
restricted common stock, all of which had been delivered to Sino Silver following receipt of the requisite approvals to the transfer by the local
Provincial Department of Commerce in China. In March 2007, we increased our interest from 60% to 90% in exchange for 2 million restricted
common shares of the company. On May 9, 2007, we received approval from the Ministry of Commerce to change the equity joint venture to a
contractual joint venture. On June 10, 2008 we signed a letter of intent with our state–owned Chinese Joint venture partner Exploration Unit of North
China Nonferrous Geological Exploration Bureau, also known as Huaguan Industrial Corp. (“HIC”) to sell 50% equity interest in Sanhe Sino-Top
Resources & Technologies Ltd. (“Sino-Top”), not including the Erbahuo mine, from Silver Dragon in exchange for US$4.5 million. A definitive
agreement was signed on July 4, 2008 to sell 50% of Sino-Top to HIC from Silver Dragon for US$4.5 million. With respect to the Erbahuo mine, the
ninth property controlled by Sino-Top at that time, Silver Dragon is entitled to a 70% interest in its after-tax proceeds, and HIC would be entitled to
30%. On November 20, 2008 Gansu Shengda Group Ltd. (Shengda), a private Chinese conglomerate, agreed to acquire 52% of the equity interests in
Sanhe Sino-Top Resources & Technologies, Ltd. (“Sino-Top”) from Huaguan Industrial Corp. (“HIC”), Silver Dragon’s state-owned Chinese joint
venture partner. On January 21, 2010 Sino-Top sold the Saihanaobao and Liangdi Properties to Chinese State-owned Entities for approximately
USD$4.2 Million.
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Sino-Top is managed by its board of directors, which manages, supervises and controls the operating activities of the Company in accordance with
the articles of association and makes decisions in accordance with the Sino-foreign Cooperative Joint Venture law of P.R. China and the articles of
association. The board constitutes five members, with two members and the chairman appointed by Shengda, two members and the vice chairman
appointed by Silver Dragon, and one member appointed by HIC. Neither party has the obligation to pay additional capital contribution to the joint
venture. If the Board of Directors deems it necessary, each party may but is not obliged to contribute additional capital to the joint venture in
accordance with the timing and amount as decided by Board of Directors. The parties shall re-determine the profit distribution proportion before
either of the parties makes additional capital contribution.
Prior to entering into the Asset Purchase Agreement described above, on April 14, 2005, we entered into a Venture Agreement with Sino Silver to
acquire 50% of Sino Silver’s interest in the net proceeds from the sale of minerals or the sale of mining rights as a result of the exploration and
evaluation of the Aobaotugounao property located in the Erbahuo Silver District. Consideration for the interest included cash payments of $350,000
over a two year period and the issuance of 500,000 shares of our common stock. On closing, we paid $150,000 cash and issued 250,000 restricted
common shares. In addition, 4,500,000 restricted common shares were issued to parties who assisted in the transaction. Three million of these shares
were subsequently returned to us and cancelled. The Venture Agreement was superseded by the Asset Purchase Agreement described above.
Using the funds from the sale of two properties in January 2010 mentioned above, approx. $3,378,234 was spent on exploration activities in 2010
with the focus on bringing the Erbahuo silver mine into production in 2011, and the Dadi and Laopandao mines into production in 2012.
Strategic cooperation agreements
Silver Dragon and Sino-Top are party to strategic agreements with various parties, including the North China Geological Exploration Bureau
(“NCGEB”).
On July 26, 2006, we signed a Strategic Cooperation Agreement with the Tianjin North China Exploration Bureau (“TNCEB”) in China. The
TNCEB has access to mine assets located in various locations in China. The 5-year Agreement provides that prospective mining properties identified
by the TNCEB will be referred exclusively to Silver Dragon first. We have 90 days to review geological information and other information we
reasonably may request. If we do not wish to develop such properties, TNCEB may show the properties to other prospective purchasers. In the event
that Silver Dragon chooses to acquire, develop or exploit any mining opportunities referred by the TNCEB, Silver Dragon and TNCEB will work
towards a mutually acceptable working agreement with respect to the purchase and/or exploration of the mining property. The TNCEB will provide
technical, geological and other documentation as may be requested by Silver Dragon as part of its due diligence investigation of prospective
properties. In the event that TNCEB does not wish to participate in the joint exploration of the property, we are required to pay TNCEB the amount
equal to 1% of the purchase price of such property in cash or 2% of the purchase price in non-cash consideration, including our common stock. If the
seller of the property is an affiliate of TNCEB, we have no payment obligation.
Silver Mining Business in Mexico
Cerro las Minitas Project
On March 2, 2006, Silver Dragon Mexico acquired 15 mining concessions from four individuals by entering into various assignment agreements.
The total consideration paid by us through March 2008 is $1,045,000 plus 2,560,000 restricted shares. We were obligated to pay a further $100,000
to one of these individuals by March 8, 2008 to fulfill our obligations under these agreements. On March 13, 2010, the Company settled the
outstanding debt of $100,000 through the issuance of 360,000 shares of the Company’s restricted stock. This was a full settlement of all outstanding
amounts owing to the vendor.
4

Cerro las Minitas is comprised of 15 concessions covering 1,413 hectares. It is located 68 kilometers northeast of the City of Durango, Mexico, and
comprises the Cerro las Minitas mining district, part of the prolific silver belt of the Sierra Madre Occidental.
In December 2010 we became aware of various matters that transpired between 2006 and 2010, that resulted in our concessions being seized without
notice to us.
In the city of Durango, Durango, Mexico, on August 18, 2006 the former representative of Silver Dragon Mining de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. (“Silver
Dragon Mexico”) in Mexico signed a promissory note for a principal amount of $350,000 for a vendor, from whom we had purchased 10 of the 15
aforementioned mining concessions, due March 5, 2008. The actions of our former legal representative were not authorized by Silver Dragon
Resources Inc., and he did not advise us about signing the promissory note, nor its terms.
On April 21, 2008 the vendor filed a lawsuit against Silver Dragon Mexico claiming payment of $350,000 as well as ordinary interest at an annual
rate of 10%, interest on past due and unpaid principal at an interest rate of 5% per month, as well as legal expenses. The lawsuit was registered under
the file number 482/2008, before the Fourth Commercial Local Court of the city of Durango.
On October 10, 2008, Silver Dragon Mexico was officially notified of the lawsuit through the former legal representative, but the representative did
not advise Silver Dragon Mexico nor us. The vendor then seized the following mining concessions: Mina Piña, El Refugio, Ampliación De Santo
Niño, La Bocona, La Muralla, Victoria IV, Guadalupe, El Santo Niño and Piña Nueva. On October 28, 2008 the seizure of the mining concessions
were recorded before the Public Registry of Mines of Durango.
During this time period, we had no knowledge of what had transpired. Since Silver Dragon Mexico never appeared before the court to reply to the
lawsuit, Silver Dragon Mexico was declared in default and lost its opportunity to offer evidence in its favor. Nevertheless, it is important to mention
that on November 28, 2008, the former legal representative appeared before the court on behalf of Silver Dragon Mexico to appoint legal address to
receive notifications.
On January 8, 2009, the Court passed final sentence ordering Silver Dragon Mexico to pay to the vendor the principal amount plus interest and legal
costs. On January 16, 2009 our former legal representative was formally notified of the sentence, but did not advise us.
Since Silver Dragon Mexico never appealed the final sentence, on February 10, 2009 the Court declared the sentence as final and irrevocable.
On March 30, 2009 the former legal representative of Silver Dragon Mexico, appeared again before the court to appoint an expert to appraise the
mining concessions to be sold on a public auction. The appraisal of that expert was similar to the vendor’s appraisal. On May 29, 2009 by public
auction the mining concessions were granted to the vendor as payment of the owed principal amount and its corresponding interest, on June 25, 2009
the Court passed resolution approving such public auction.
The mining concessions were granted to the vendor as new holder for the following amounts: “Mina Piña” $ 78,000, “La Bocona” $62,000, “Santo
Niño” $42,000, “Ampliación Santo Niño” $31,000, “Victoria IV” $28,000, “Piña Nueva” $26,000, “Guadalupe” $23,000, “La Muralla” $11,000, “El
Refugio” $10,000. On July 31, 2009 those mining concessions were transferred to the vendor through public deed number 7,730 granted before
public notary number 3 of the city of Durango. On August 19, 2009, the vendor filed a motion before the court to request a further seizure of the
assets of Silver Dragon Mexico to guarantee the payment of $39,000 as remaining amount to reach the principal claimed amount of $350,000, since
all concessions were appraised in the amount of $311,000. On October 2, 2009, the court granted such petition to execute a further seizure.
On June 16, 2010 the vendor filed a motion before the court to request a further seizure of the assets of Silver Dragon Mexico to guarantee the
payment of ordinary interest at a rate of 10% which at that date represented an amount of $45,739.00, interest on past due and unpaid principal at an
interest rate of 5% per month which at that date represented an amount of $274,166.66, plus legal expenses of $100,000. On November 5, 2010 the
aforementioned petition of the vendor was granted by the court.
Throughout this whole process the former legal representative never advised Silver Dragon Mexico or us of the existence of the promissory note nor
the subsequent court actions. He also accepted court service numerous times on behalf of Silver Dragon Mexico as mentioned earlier to enforce
payment of the note, but similarly did not advise Silver Dragon Mexico of this. In summary, from our perspective, the legal proceedings were heard
and decided on an ex parte basis, without notice to us, nor allowing proper defense and representation of Silver Dragon Mining Mexico.
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In December 2010, we became aware of this situation, and are now taking steps through the Federal courts in Mexico to seek appropriate redress. We
have instructed our counsel to assert a Constitutional Rights Claim before the Federal Court in the City of Durango, premised on procedural
irregularities in the foreclosure proceedings, for the purposes of re-opening the case. On January 17, 2011, Silver Dragon Mexico provided certain
evidence in connection with the claims to the court, which is currently reviewing the documentation. We expect the court to schedule a hearing
within two months.
While we expect that we may eventually be successful with the Constitutional Rights Claim, since we have lost title to our 15 concessions in Mexico,
pursuant to court judgments, management has decided to write-off the book value of these concessions, as well as related liabilities, in net amount
written of $2,335,289.
In late 2010 we became aware of another situation involving the same former legal representative. In November 2010, we and Silver Dragon Mexico
approached certain suppliers in order to arrange payment of our outstanding accounts payables. Agreements were reached in most cases. One of
Silver Dragon Mexico’s creditors did not respond to the request, however, an individual purporting to represent that creditor subsequently emailed us
in December 2010 requesting payment for an amount that was more than triple the amount of the debt and asserted that it was pursuant to a
promissory note signed by Silver Dragon Mexico and a court decision related to the promissory note in Mexico. On January 17, 2011 we received a
copy of the promissory note. It was dated April 24, 2008 and was for a principal amount of $166,623 and carried interest at a rate of 5% per month. It
was signed by the same former legal representative of SDM. His actions were not authorized by us, and he did not advise us about the promissory
note, or the subsequent court actions. He also accepted court service several times on behalf of Silver Dragon Mexico to enforce payment of the note,
but similarly did not advise Silver Dragon Mexico or us of this.
We are in the process of investigating this matter and have determined that in April 2010 the creditor had obtained a judgment from a court in
Chihuahua, Mexico, in its favor, for payments under the promissory note that the creditor asserts aggregates $408,226 with interest, as well as a
further 10% for its legal fees. We have restated results from prior years to reflect the original promissory note of $166,623 and the interest on the
promissory note of $99,974 and $141,630 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Competitive factors
The silver mining industry is fragmented, with many silver prospectors and producers, small and large. We do not compete with anyone with respect
to our Chinese properties or on the Cerro las Minitas properties. There is no competition for the exploration or removal of minerals from these
properties. We will either find silver on the properties or not. If we do not, we will cease or suspend further investment.
Governmental approvals and regulations
Our mineral exploration programs are subject to the regulations of various Chinese and Mexican authorities.
As noted elsewhere, we have written off our ownership of the Mexican concessions, but if we are successful the following will be applicable.
Regulatory obligations and government approvals in Mexico
In Mexico, our exploration activities are governed by the General Mining Law and the regulations promulgated thereunder.
We obtained initial authorizations and the relevant permits for the exploration of Cerro Las Minitas from the Ministry of Natural Resources
(‘‘SEMARNAT’’). The initial authorization from SERMARNAT authorizing us to initiate the excavation of the soil on Cerro Las Minitas was issued
in 2006. The excavation of soil must be carried out using digger machines, which are registered and authorized by SEMARNAT. Our machines are
duly registered and authorized by SEMARNAT. The company has documented all requirements and has submitted its Environmental Impact
Assessment / Manifestacion, or Manifestacion de Impacto Ambiental (‘‘MIA’’), for its Cerro las Minitas silver project in Durango, Mexico that
includes a cyanide process for the sulfide handling and Heap Leaching process for the handling of oxides. The MIA was officially submitted on
March 23, 2009 to SEMARNAT for review, and is the principal document in the application process for a mine operating permit. The environmental
permit was received in the 2 nd quarter of 2010.
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After the exploration stage, mining activities in Mexico will be carried out in accordance with the environmental permit issued by the General
Direction of Mining Ministry of Economy under the plan of operations for mining activity submitted by an applicant. Since our current activities in
Mexico are in the exploration stage, we have not yet submitted a plan of operations. After receiving confirmation of the existence of minerals, we are
required to file an application with the General Direction of Mining of the Ministry of Economy to obtain concession titles for the exploitation of the
minerals. As of today, we have obtained fifteen Concession Titles for the Exploitation of Minerals in Cerro Las Minitas, which titles were granted
according to the applicable provisions of the General Mining Law. As noted above, we have lost title to those properties but are endeavoring to
recover it. We will be required to obtain additional permits commonly referred to as the Sole Environmental License from SEMARNAT and the
National Water Commission (‘‘NWC’’). After we successfully obtain concession titles, we are required to submit annual reports in May of each year,
detailing the work performed during the designated year on the properties specified by such concession titles.
Once mining activities commence, we will be required to obtain additional permits and authorizations from the Ministry of Labor to operate special
machineries used for the exploration of the Mining Field. Such special machineries include but are not limited to pressured containers, boilers and
other machineries designated for mining that are regulated by various National Official Norms (‘‘NOM’’). Once mining activities commence we will
also be required to file reports on safety, hygiene and minimum wage of our workers to the registry of the Labor Commissions as provided under
Mexican Federal Labor Law.
Regulatory obligations and government approvals in China
Exploration for and exploitation of mineral resources in China is governed by the Mineral Resources Law of the People’s Republic of China
(‘‘PRC’’) of 1986, amended effective January 1, 1997, and the Implementation Rules for the Mineral Resources Law of the PRC, effective March 26,
1994. In order to further implement these laws, on February 12, 1998, the State Council issued three sets of regulations: (i) Regulation for
Registering to Explore Mineral Resources Using the Block System, (ii) Regulation for Registering to Mine Mineral Resources, and (iii) Regulation
for Transferring Exploration and Mining Rights (together with the mineral resources law and implementation rules being referred to herein as
“Mineral Resources Law”).
Under Mineral Resources Law, the Ministry of Land and Resources and its local authorities (the “MLR”) is in charge of the supervision of mineral
resource exploration and development. The mineral resources administration authorities of provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities, under
the jurisdiction of the State, are in charge of the supervision of mineral resource exploration and development in their respective administration areas.
The PRC’s governments of provinces, autonomous regions and municipalities, under the jurisdiction of the State, are in charge of coordinating the
supervision by the mineral resources administration authorities on the same level.
The Mineral Resources Law, together with the Constitution of the PRC, provides that mineral resources are owned by the State, and the State
Council, the highest executive organization of the State, which regulates mineral resources on behalf of the State. The ownership rights of the State
include the rights to: (i) occupy, (ii) use, (iii) earn, and (iv) dispose of, mineral resources, regardless of the rights of owners or users of the land under
which the mineral resources are located. Therefore, the State is free to authorize third parties to enjoy its rights to legally occupy and use mineral
resources and may collect resource taxes and royalties pursuant to its right to earn. In this way, the State can control and direct the development and
use of the mineral resources of the PRC.
Mineral resources licenses
China has adopted, under the Mineral Resources Law, a licensing system for the exploration and exploitation of mineral resources. The MLR is
responsible for approving applications for exploration licenses and mining licenses. The approval of the MLR is also required to transfer exploration
licenses and mining licenses.
Applicants must meet certain conditions as required by related rules/regulations. Pursuant to the Regulations for Registering to Mine Mineral
Resources, the applicant for mining rights must present the required documents, including a plan for development and use of the mineral resources
and an environmental impact evaluation report. The Mineral Resources Law allows individuals to exploit sporadic resources, sand, rocks and clay for
use as construction materials and a small quantity of mineral resources for sustenance. However, individuals are prohibited from mining mineral
resources that are more appropriately mined at a certain scale by a company, specified minerals that are subject to protective mining by the State and
certain other designated mineral resources.
Once granted, all exploration and mining rights under the licenses are protected by the State from encroachment or disruption under the Mineral
Resources Law. It is a criminal offence to steal, seize or damage exploration facilities, or disrupt the working order of exploration areas.
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Exploration rights
In order to conduct exploration, a Sino-foreign cooperative joint venture (“CJV”) must apply to the MLR for an exploration license. Owners of
exploration licenses are “licensees”. The period of validity of an exploration license can be no more than three years. An exploration license area is
described by a “basic block”. An exploration license for metallic and non-metallic minerals has a maximum of 40 basic blocks. When mineral
resources that are feasible for economic development have been discovered, a licensee may apply for the right to develop such mineral resources. The
period of validity of the exploration license can be extended by application and each extension can be for no more than two years. The annual use fee
for an exploration license is RMB 100 per square kilometer for the first three years and increases by RMB 100 per square kilometer for each
subsequent year, subject to a maximum fee of RMB 500 per square kilometer.
During the term of the exploration license, the licensee has the privileged priority to obtain mining rights to the mineral resources in the exploration
area, provided that the licensee meets the qualifying conditions for mining rights owners. An exploration licensee has the rights, among others, to: (i)
explore without interference within the area under license during the license term, (ii) construct the exploration facilities, and (iii) pass through other
exploration areas and adjacent ground to access the licensed area.
After the licensee acquires the exploration license, the licensee is obliged to, among other things: (i) begin exploration within the prescribed term, (ii)
explore according to a prescribed exploration work scheme, (iii) comply with State laws and regulations regarding labor safety, water and soil
conservation, land reclamation and environmental protection, (iv) make detailed reports to local and other licensing authorities, (v) close and occlude
the wells arising from exploration work, (vi) take other measures to protect against safety concerns after the exploration work is completed, and (vii)
complete minimum exploration expenditures as required by the Regulations for Registering to Explore Resources Using the Block.
Mining rights
In order to conduct mining activities, a CJV must also apply for a mining license from the MLR. Owners of mining rights, or “concessionaires”, are
granted a mining license to mine for a term of no more than ten to thirty years, depending on the magnitude or size of the mining project. A mining
license owner may extend the term of a mining license with an application 30 days prior to expiration of the term. The annual use fee for a mining
license is RMB 1,000 per square kilometer per year.
A mining license owner has the rights, among others, to: (i) conduct mining activities during the term and within the mining area prescribed by the
mining license, (ii) sell mineral products (except for mineral products that the State Council has identified for unified purchase by designated units),
(iii) construct production and living facilities within the mine area, and (iv) use the land necessary for production and construction, in accordance
with applicable laws.
A mining license owner is required to, among other things: (i) conduct mine construction or mining activities within a defined time period, (ii)
conduct efficient production, rational mining and comprehensive use of the mineral resources, (iii) pay resources tax and mineral resources
compensation (royalties) pursuant to applicable laws, (iv) comply with State laws and regulations regarding labor safety, water and soil conservation,
land reclamation and environmental protection, (v) be subject to the supervision and management by the departments in charge of geology and
mineral resources, and (vi) complete and present mineral reserves forms and mineral resource development and use statistics reports, in accordance
with applicable law.
Transfer of exploration and mining rights
A mining company may transfer its exploration or mining licenses to others, subject to the approval of MLR.
An exploration license may only be transferred if the transferor: (i) held the exploration license for two years after the date that the license was
issued, or discovered minerals in the exploration block, which are able to be explored or mined further, (ii) has a valid and subsisting exploration
license, (iii) completed the stipulated minimum exploration expenditures, (iv) paid the user fees and the price for exploration rights pursuant to the
relevant regulations, and (v) obtained the necessary approval from the authorized department in charge of the minerals.
Mining rights may only be transferred if the transferor needs to change the ownership of such mining rights because it is: (i) engaging in a merger or
split, (ii) entering into equity or cooperative joint ventures with others, (iii) selling its enterprise assets, or (iv) engaging in a similar transaction that
will result in an alteration of the property ownership of the enterprise.
Additionally, when state-owned assets or state funds are involved in a transfer of exploration licenses and mining licenses, the related state-owned
assets rules and regulations apply and a proper evaluation report must be completed and filed with the MLR.
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Speculation in exploration and mining rights is prohibited. The penalties for speculation are that the rights of the speculator may be revoked, illegal
income from speculation confiscated and a fine levied.
Environmental laws
In the past ten years, Chinese laws and policies regarding environmental protection have moved towards stricter compliance standards and stronger
enforcement. In accordance with the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC adopted by the Standing Committee of the PRC National People’s
Congress on 26 December 1989, the General Administration of Environmental Protection Bureau under the State Council sets national environmental
protection standards. The various local environmental protection bureaus may set stricter local standards for environmental protection. CJVs are
required to comply with the stricter of the two standards.
The basic laws in China governing environmental protection in the mineral industry sector of the economy are the Environmental Protection Law and
the Mineral Resources Law. Applicants for mining licenses must submit environmental impact assessments, and those projects that fail to meet
environmental protection standards will not be granted licenses. In addition, after the exploration, a licensee must take further actions for
environmental protection, such as performing water and soil maintenance. After the mining licenses have expired or a licensee stops mining during
the license period and the mineral resources have not been fully developed, the licensee shall perform other obligations such as water and soil
maintenance, land recovery and environmental protection in compliance with the original development scheme, or must pay the costs of land
recovery and environmental protection. After closing the mine, the mining enterprise must perform water and soil maintenance, land recovery and
environmental protection in compliance with mine closure approval reports, or must pay certain costs, which include the costs of land recovery and
environmental protection.
Compliance with environmental laws
We are responsible for providing a safe working environment, not disrupting archaeological sites, and conducting our activities to prevent
unnecessary damage to the area in which our mineral claim is located. At this time, we do not believe that the cost of compliance at the federal, state
and local levels will be significant.
We intend to secure all necessary permits required for exploration. We anticipate no discharge of water into active streams, creeks, rivers, lakes or
other bodies of water regulated by environmental law or regulation. We also anticipate that no endangered species will be disturbed. Restoration of
the disturbed land will be completed according to law, and all holes, pits and shafts will be sealed upon abandonment of the mineral claims. During
the exploration phase that we are in now, compliance costs are nil or nominal. It is difficult to estimate the cost of compliance with the environmental
laws, because the full nature and extent of our proposed activities cannot be determined until we start our operations.
We believe we are in compliance with the environment laws, and that we will continue to be able to comply with such laws in the future.
Land and construction
The holder of an exploration license or mining license should apply for land use right with MLR to conduct exploration or mining activities on the
land covered by the exploration license or mining license. The license holder should file an application to MLR for the land use right with its
exploration license or mining license. If the application is approved by the competent government authority, the MLR would issue an approval to the
land use right applicant. Then, the local MLR would enter into a land use right contract with the license holder. The license holder should pay
relevant price and fees in accordance with the contract and then obtain a land use right certificate from MLR. In practice, instead of obtaining a longterm land use right, an exploration license holder may apply for a temporary land use right, which would normally be valid for 2 years and may be
renewed upon application.
The company should also apply for other zoning and construction permits to conduct construction on the land. PRC laws require a company to obtain
the land zoning permit and construction zoning permit with the local zoning authorities under the Ministry of Construction (‘‘MOCON’’). Then, the
company is required to enter into a construction contract with a qualified constructor and file the construction contract to the local construction
authorities under the MOCON and obtain a construction permit. After the construction is completed, the company should apply for the construction
authorities and related environmental and fire departments for the check and acceptance of the construction. Upon the pass of check and acceptance,
the company should apply with local housing authorities to register the constructed buildings in its own name and obtain a housing ownership
certificate.
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Foreign Exchange Controls
Pursuant to PRC foreign exchange regulations, foreign exchange dealings are administered by the State Administration of Foreign Exchange and its
local agencies (the “SAFE”) and transacted through designated financial institutions. CJVs are required to conduct their corporate activities in
accordance with the relevant PRC foreign exchange rules/regulations.
CJVs are entitled to borrow funds from overseas within such CJVs’ total investment amount. Once such loan agreements have been registered with
the SAFE in accordance with the formal requirements, the principal and interest of loan can be paid out of China.
CJVs are also entitled to remit the profit/dividends derived from CJVs out of China once the relevant taxes of CJVs have been paid in compliance
with PRC Law, if such foreign investor has made the capital contribution in compliance with the contribution schedule set in CJV Contract.
The shareholder of a CJV is entitled to transfer the funds out of China when it sells its equity in the CJV to a Chinese buyer, but such transfer of
money should be approved by SAFE.
China has restrictions on Chinese persons and companies to make investment out of China. The Chinese investor should obtain various approvals
from governmental authority, including SAFE’s approval on foreign exchange payment, to make such overseas investment.
Employees
As of March 11, 2011, the Company had 6 total employees of whom 5 are full-time employees.
10

Item 1A. Risk factors
You should consider each of the following risk factors and any other information set forth in this Form 10-K and the other reports we file with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), including our financial statements and related notes, in evaluating our business and prospects. The
risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones that might affect our operations and business. Additional risks and uncertainties not
presently known to us, or that we currently consider immaterial, may also impair our business or operations.
Risks relating to our operations
None of the properties in which we have an interest or the right to earn an interest has any known reserves.
None of the properties in which we have an interest or the right to earn an interest has any reserves. To date, we have engaged in only limited
preliminary exploration activities on the properties. Accordingly, in which we do not have sufficient information upon which to assess the ultimate
success of our exploration efforts. If we do not establish reserves, we may be required to curtail or suspend our operations, in which case the market
value of our common stock may decline, and you may lose all or a portion of your investment.
Our current cash will not be sufficient to fund our business as currently planned for the next 12 months. We will need additional funding, either
through equity or debt financings or partnering arrangements, that could negatively affect us and our stock price.
We will need significant additional funds to continue operations, which we may not be able to obtain. We estimate that we must raise approximately
$3.5 million over the next 12 months to fund our anticipated capital requirements and obligations.
We have historically satisfied our working capital requirements through the private issuances of equity securities and convertible notes. We will
continue to seek additional funds through such channels and from collaboration and other arrangements with corporate partners. However, we may
not be able to obtain adequate funds when needed or funding that is on terms acceptable to us. If we fail to obtain sufficient funds, we may need to
delay, scale back or terminate some or all of our mining exploration programs.
Third parties may challenge our title for the properties in which we have an interest.
We have not obtained title insurance for our properties. Title to the properties in which we have an interest may be and in fact has been challenged in
Mexico. In Mexico we have lost title and, if such an event occurred in China, we will likely incur significant costs and lose valuable time in
defending such a challenge. If such claims are successful, we will lose our interest in the respective properties.
We are an exploration stage company, and based on our negative cash flows from operating activities there is uncertainty as to our ability to
continue as a going concern.
From inception, we have generated limited revenues and have experienced negative cash flows from operating losses. We anticipate continuing to
incur such operating losses and negative cash flows for the foreseeable future, and to accumulate increasing deficits as we increase our expenditures
for exploration and mining of minerals, infrastructure, research and development and general corporate purposes. Any increases in our operating
expenses will require us to achieve significant revenue before we can attain profitability. Our history of operating losses and negative cash flows
from operating activities will result in our continued dependence on external financing arrangements. In the event that we are unable to achieve or
sustain profitability or are otherwise unable to secure additional external financing, we may not be able to meet our obligations as they come due,
raising substantial doubts as to our ability to continue as a going concern. Any such inability to continue as a going concern may result in our security
holders losing their entire investment. There is no guaranty that we will generate revenues or secure additional external financing. Our financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with the United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (‘‘GAAP’’), contemplate that
we will continue as a going concern and do not contain any adjustments that might result if we were unable to continue as a going concern. Changes
in our operating plans, our existing and anticipated working capital needs, the acceleration or modification of our expansion plans, lower than
anticipated revenues, increased expenses, potential acquisitions or other events will all affect our ability to continue as a going concern. See
“Management’s Plan of Operations”.
The reports of independent auditors of our consolidated financial statements included in this annual report contain explanatory paragraphs which note
our recurring operating losses since inception, our lack of capital and lack of long term contracts related to our business plans, and that these
conditions give rise to substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. In the event that we are unable to successfully achieve
future profitable operations and obtain additional sources of financing to sustain our operations, we may be unable to continue as a going concern.
See “Management’s Plan of Operation” and our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in this annual report.
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We have a history of operating losses and we anticipate future losses.
Since we changed our business focus to silver exploration, we have generated no revenues. We incurred losses of approximately $4,318,318 and
$4,869,372 respectively, for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. We have accumulated losses since inception of approximately
$36,054,080. We anticipate that losses will continue until such time when revenue from operations is sufficient to offset our operating costs, if ever.
If we are unable to increase our revenues or to increase them significantly enough to cover our costs, our financial condition will worsen and you
could lose some or all of your investment.
Because we do not have sufficient capital, we may have limited our exploration activity, which may result in a loss of your investment.
Because we are small and do not have much capital, we have limited our exploration activity. As such, we may not be able to complete exploration
programs as planned. In that event, an existing ore body may go undiscovered. Without an ore body, we cannot generate revenues, in which case, you
will lose your investment.
Because of the speculative nature of mineral property exploration, there is substantial risk that no commercially exploitable minerals will be
found and our business will fail.
Exploration for minerals is a speculative venture involving substantial risk. We cannot provide investors with any assurance that our claims and
properties contain commercially exploitable reserves. The exploration work that we intend to conduct on our claims or properties may not result in
the discovery of commercial quantities of silver or other minerals. Problems such as unusual and unexpected rock formations and other conditions are
involved in mineral exploration and often result in unsuccessful exploration efforts. In such a case, our business may fail.
Because our interests are in China and Mexico, our business is subject to additional risks associated with doing business outside the United
States.
We expect that a portion of our revenues, if any, may be derived from sales of our products in foreign markets. Accordingly, we will be subject to all
risks associated with foreign trade. These risks include:







uncertain legal environment
inability to enforce legal rights
political risks
shipping delays,
credit risks,
fluctuations in foreign currency

As a result, even if our foreign operations are successful, these risks could result in unexpected costs and losses.
Joint ventures and other partnerships in relation to our properties may expose us to risks .
We are currently involved in, and may enter into in the future, joint ventures or other partnership arrangements with other parties in relation to the
exploration, development and production of the properties in which we have an interest. Joint ventures can often require unanimous approval of the
parties to the joint venture or their representatives for certain fundamental decisions such as an increase or reduction of registered capital, merger,
division, dissolution, amendments of constating documents, and the pledge of joint venture assets, which means that each joint venture party may
have a veto right with respect to such decisions which would lead to deadlock in the operations of the joint venture or partnership. Further, we may
be unable to exert control over strategic decision made in respect of such properties. Any failure of such other companies to meet their obligations to
us or to third parties, or any disputes with respect to the parties’ respective rights and obligations, could have a material adverse effect on the joint
ventures or their properties and, therefore, could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial performance, cash flows and
share price.
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Because all of our assets, our officers and our directors are located outside the United States of America, it may be difficult for an investor to
enforce within the United States any judgments obtained against us, our officer or our director.
All of our assets are located outside of the United States, the individuals serving as our officers and directors are nationals of a country other than the
United States, and all or a substantial portion of such persons’ assets are located outside the United States. As a result, it may be difficult for an
investor to effect service of process or enforce within the United States any judgments obtained against us or our officers and directors, including
judgments predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the securities laws of the United States or any state thereof. In addition, there is uncertainty
as to whether the courts of Canada and other jurisdictions would recognize or enforce such judgments rendered by the courts of the United States.
There is also uncertainty as to whether the courts of Canada or other jurisdictions would be competent to hear original actions brought in Canada or
other jurisdictions against us or our officers and directors predicated upon the securities laws of the United States or any state thereof.
Our President - Chief Executive Officer controls a significant percentage of our common stock.
As of March 16, 2011, Marc Hazout, our President and Chief Executive Officer, owned beneficially approximately 16.5% of our outstanding
common stock. Mr. Hazout is able to influence all matters requiring stockholder approval, including election of directors and approval of significant
corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership, which is not subject to any voting restrictions, could limit the price that investors might be
willing to pay for our common stock. In addition, Mr. Hazout is in a position to impede transactions that may be desirable for other shareholders. He
could, for example, make it more difficult for anyone to take control of us.
Risks relating to the industry in general
Planned exploration, and if warranted, development and mining activities involve a high degree of risk.
We cannot assure you of the success of our planned operations. Exploration costs are not fixed, and resources cannot be reliably identified until
substantial development has taken place, which entails high exploration and development costs. The costs of mining, processing, development and
exploitation activities are subject to numerous variables which could result in substantial cost overruns. Mining for silver and other base or precious
metals may involve unprofitable efforts, not only from dry properties, but from properties that are productive but do not produce sufficient net
revenues to return a profit after accounting for mining, operating and other costs.
Our operations may be curtailed, delayed or cancelled as a result of numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control, including economic
conditions, mechanical problems, title problems, weather conditions, compliance with governmental requirements and shortages or delays of
equipment and services. If our drilling activities are not successful, we will experience a material adverse effect on our future results of operations
and financial condition.
There is a substantial risk that the properties that we drill will not eventually be productive or may decline in productivity over time. We do not
insure against all risks associated with our business because insurance is either unavailable or its cost of coverage is prohibitive. The occurrence of an
event that is not covered by insurance could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition.
The impact of government regulation could adversely affect our business.
Our business is subject to applicable domestic and foreign laws and regulations, including laws and regulations on taxation, exploration, and
environmental and safety matters. Many laws and regulations require drilling permits and govern the spacing of mines, rates of production,
prevention of waste and other matters. These laws and regulations may increase the costs and timing of planning, designing, drilling, installing,
operating and abandoning our silver mines and other facilities. In addition, our operations are subject to complex environmental laws and regulations
adopted by domestic and foreign jurisdictions where we operate. We could incur liability to governments or third parties for any unlawful discharge
of pollutants into the air, soil or water, including responsibility for remedial costs.
The submission and approval of environmental impact assessments may be required.
Environmental legislation is evolving in a manner which means stricter standards; enforcement, fines and penalties for noncompliance are more
stringent. Environmental assessments of proposed projects carry a heightened degree of responsibility for companies and directors, officers and
employees. The cost of compliance with changes in governmental regulations has a potential to reduce the profitability of operations.
Because the requirements imposed by these laws and regulations frequently change, we cannot assure you that laws and regulations enacted in the
future, including changes to existing laws and regulations, will not adversely affect our business. In addition, because we acquire interests in
properties that have been operated in the past by others, we may be liable for environmental damage caused by former operators. In Mexico, changes
in government leadership and/or the unionization of workers could adversely affect our operations. In China, political instability and unexpected state
intervention could adversely affect our assets.
13

Decline in silver prices may make it commercially infeasible for us to develop our property and may cause our stock price to decline.
The value and price of your investment in our common shares, our financial results, and our exploration, development and mining activities may be
significantly adversely affected by declines in the price of silver and other precious metals. Silver prices fluctuate widely and are affected by
numerous factors beyond our control such as interest rates, exchange rates, inflation or deflation, fluctuation in the value of the United States dollar
and foreign currencies, global and regional supply and demand, and the political and economic conditions of silver-producing countries throughout
the world. The price of silver fluctuates in response to many factors, which are beyond anyone’s prediction abilities. The prices used in making the
estimates in our plans differ from daily prices quoted in the news media. Because mining occurs over a number of years, it may be prudent to
continue mining for some periods during which cash flows are temporarily negative for a variety of reasons. Such reasons include a belief that the
low price is temporary, and/or the expense incurred is greater when permanently closing a mine.
Weather interruptions in China may affect and delay our proposed exploration operations.
Our proposed exploration work in China can only be performed approximately six to seven months out of the year. The cold, rain and snow make the
roads leading to our claims impassible every year during certain times from November to March. When the roads are impassible, we are unable to
conduct exploration operations on the mineral claim.
We may not have access to all of the supplies and materials we need to begin exploration, which could cause us to delay or suspend operations.
Competition and unforeseen limited sources of supplies in the industry could result in occasional spot shortages of supplies such as dynamite as well
as certain equipment like bulldozers and excavators that we might need to conduct exploration. If we cannot obtain the necessary supplies, we will
have to suspend our exploration plans until we do obtain such supplies.
Risks relating to the market for our securities
Because the public market for shares of our common stock is limited, investors may be unable to resell their shares of common stock.
Currently there is only a limited public market for our common stock on the OTCBB in the United States. Thus investors may be unable to resell
their shares of our common stock. The development of an active public trading market depends upon the existence of willing buyers and sellers who
are able to sell their shares as well as market makers willing to create a market in such shares. Under these circumstances, the market bid and ask
prices for the shares may be significantly influenced by the decisions of the market makers to buy or sell the shares for their own account. Such
decisions of the market makers may be critical for the establishment and maintenance of a liquid public market in our common stock. Market makers
are not required to maintain a continuous two-sided market and are free to withdraw firm quotations at any time. We cannot give you any assurance
that an active public trading market for the shares will develop or be sustained.
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The price of our common stock is volatile, which may cause investment losses for our shareholders.
The market for our common stock is highly volatile, having ranged in the last twelve months from a low of $0.07 to a high of $0.36 on the OTCBB.
The trading price of our common stock on the OTCBB is subject to wide fluctuations in response to, among other things, quarterly variations in
operating and financial results, and general economic and market conditions. In addition, statements or changes in opinions, ratings, or earnings
estimates made by brokerage firms or industry analysts relating to our market or relating to us could result in an immediate and adverse effect on the
market price of our common stock. The highly volatile nature of our stock price may cause investment losses for our shareholders. In the past,
securities class action litigation has often been brought against companies following periods of volatility in the market price of their securities. If
securities class action litigation is brought against us, such litigation could result in substantial costs while diverting management’s attention and
resources.
Shareholders may suffer dilution from the issuance of common stock, options, warrants and convertible notes to finance our operations .
All of our properties are in the exploration stage, and we will be required to raise additional capital, enter into joint venture relationships or find
alternative means to finance placing one or more of our properties into commercial production, if warranted. On February 15, 2011, we entered into a
Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with Tonaquint, Inc., a Utah corporation (the “Investor”) whereby we issued and
sold, and the Investor purchased: (i) a Secured Convertible Promissory Note of the Company in the principal amount of $2,766,000 (the “Company
Note”) and (ii) a Warrant to purchase common stock of the Company (the “Warrant”). In connection with the transaction, the Company also issued
the Investor 50,000 shares of common stock. Beginning six months after closing, the Investor has the right to convert, subject to restrictions
described in the Company Note, all or a portion of the outstanding amount of the Company Note that is eligible for conversion into shares of the
Company’s common stock. Furthermore, the Warrant to purchase 8.6 million shares of common stock of the Company may be exercised at an
exercise price of US$0.50 per share at any time within three years after February 15, 2011. The conversion of the Company Note and exercise of the
Warrant, in addition to any other outstanding options, warrants, convertible notes, as well as potential future transactions, would result in dilution,
possibly substantial, to present and prospective holders of common shares.
Our common stock is considered to be a “penny stock,” which may make it more difficult for investors to sell their shares.
Our common stock has been subject to the provisions of Section 15(g) and Rule 15g-9 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), commonly referred to as the “penny stock” rule. Section 15(g) sets forth certain requirements for transactions in penny stocks and
Rule 15g-9(d)(1) incorporates the definition of penny stock as that used in Rule 3a51-1 of the Exchange Act. The Commission generally defines
penny stock to be any equity security that has a market price less than US$5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions. Rule 3a51-1 provides that any
equity security is considered to be penny stock unless that security is: registered and traded on a national securities exchange meeting specified
criteria set by the Commission; issued by a registered investment company; excluded from the definition on the basis of price (at least US$5.00 per
share) or the registrant’s net tangible assets; or exempted from the definition by the Commission. .Our common stock is considered to be a “penny
stock.” The SEC has adopted rules that regulate broker-dealer practices in connection with transactions in “penny stocks.” As our common stock is
considered to be “penny stock,” trading in our common stock will be subject to additional sales practice requirements on broker-dealers who sell
penny stock to persons other than established customers and accredited investors. This may reduce the liquidity and trading volume of our shares.
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. (“FINRA”) sales practice requirements may limit a shareholder’s ability to buy and sell our
common shares.
In addition to the “penny stock” rules described above, FINRA has adopted rules that require that in recommending an investment to a customer, a
broker-dealer must have reasonable grounds for believing that the investment is suitable for that customer. Prior to recommending speculative low
priced securities to their non-institutional customers, broker-dealers must make reasonable efforts to obtain information about the customer’s
financial status, tax status, investment objectives and other information. Under interpretations of these rules, FINRA believes that there is a high
probability that speculative low priced securities will not be suitable for at least some customers. FINRA requirements make it more difficult for
broker-dealers to recommend that their customers buy our common stock, which may limit your ability to buy and sell our stock and have an adverse
effect on the market for our shares.
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We do not intend to pay dividends.
We do not anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We may not have sufficient funds to legally pay
dividends. Even if funds are legally available to pay dividends, we may nevertheless decide in our sole discretion not to pay dividends. The
declaration, payment and amount of any future dividends will be made at the discretion of our board of directors, and will depend upon, among other
things, the results of our operations, cash flows and financial condition, operating and capital requirements, and other factors our board of directors
may consider relevant. There is no assurance that we will pay any dividends in the future, and, if dividends are paid, there is no assurance with
respect to the amount of any such dividend.
As a public company, we are subject to complex legal and accounting requirements that will require us to incur significant expenses and will
expose us to risk of non-compliance.
As a public company, we are subject to numerous legal and accounting requirements that do not apply to private companies. The cost of compliance
with many of these requirements is material, not only in absolute terms but, more importantly, in relation to the overall scope of the operations of a
small company. Our relative inexperience with these requirements may increase the cost of compliance and may also increase the risk that we will
fail to comply. Failure to comply with these requirements can have numerous adverse consequences including, but not limited to, our inability to file
required periodic reports on a timely basis, loss of market confidence and/or governmental or private actions against us. We cannot assure you that
we will be able to comply with all of these requirements or that the cost of such compliance will not prove to be a substantial competitive
disadvantage vis-à-vis our privately held and larger public competitors.
Failure to achieve and maintain effective internal controls in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “SarbanesOxley Act”) could have a material adverse effect on our business and operating results.
If we fail to comply with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act regarding internal control over financial reporting or to remedy
any material weaknesses in our internal controls that we may identify, such failure could result in material misstatements in our financial statements,
cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information and have a negative effect on the trading price of our common shares.
Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and current SEC regulations, we are required to prepare assessments regarding internal controls
over financial reporting. In connection with our on-going assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, we may
discover “material weaknesses” in our internal controls as defined in standards established by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, or
the PCAOB. A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood
that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected. The PCAOB defines “significant
deficiency” as a deficiency that results in more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected. We determined that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective at December 31,
2010. Internal control over financial reporting was also not effective at December 31, 2010.
However, the process of designing and implementing effective internal controls is a continuous effort that requires us to anticipate and react to
changes in our business and the economic and regulatory environments and to expend significant resources to maintain a system of internal controls
that is adequate to satisfy our reporting obligations as a public company. We cannot assure you that the measures we will take will remediate any
material weaknesses that we may identify or that we will implement and maintain adequate controls over our financial process and reporting in the
future.
Any failure to complete our assessment of our internal control over financial reporting, to remediate any material weaknesses that we may identify or
to implement new or improved controls, or difficulties encountered in their implementation, could harm our operating results, cause us to fail to meet
our reporting obligations or result in material misstatements in our financial statements. Any such failure could also adversely affect the results of the
periodic management evaluations of our internal controls. Inadequate internal controls could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported
financial information, which could have a negative effect on the trading price of our common shares.
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We may subject to shareholder litigation, thereby diverting our resources that may have a material effect on our profitability and results of
operations. In fact, a lawsuit has been filed by two individuals in China. This will require cash to defend against and may adversely affect our
share price.
As discussed in the preceding risk factors, the market for our common shares is characterized by significant price volatility when compared to
seasoned issuers, and we expect that our share price will continue to be more volatile than a seasoned issuer for the indefinite future. In the past,
plaintiffs have often initiated securities class action litigation against a company following periods of volatility in the market price of its securities.
We are, and may in the future be, the target of similar litigation. Securities litigation will result in substantial costs and liabilities and will divert
management’s attention and resources.
As discussed on page 23, two individuals have filed a lawsuit against the Company. While we believe it is without merit, regardless of the outcome,
it will require funding and attention by management, and will likely adversely affect our share price.
Compliance with changing regulation of corporate governance and public disclosure will result in additional expenses and pose challenges for
our management.
Changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and SEC regulations, have created
uncertainty for public companies and significantly increased the costs and risks associated with accessing the U.S. public markets. Our management
team will need to devote significant time and financial resources to comply with both existing and evolving standards for public companies, which
will lead to increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from revenue generating activities to
compliance activities.
SHOULD ONE OR MORE OF THE FOREGOING RISKS OR UNCERTAINTIES MATERIALIZE, OR SHOULD THE UNDERLYING
ASSUMPTIONS PROVE INCORRECT, ACTUAL RESULTS MAY DIFFER SIGNIFICANTLY FROM THOSE ANTICIPATED,
BELIEVED, ESTIMATED, EXPECTED, INTENDED OR PLANNED.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Description of properties
Erbahuo
Property location and description
Erbahuo is located at the common boundary of Keshiketeng county and Wenniute county in Inner Mongolia, within the Maoshandong village of
Wenniute county. The property is about 1.2 km2. Access to the property is 110km via paved highway from Chifeng City to the village of
Maoshandong and then west 10 km by unsealed road to the property. The mine is an underground and open pit mine. A 10kv electricity power net
passes through the concession and the electrical power is adequate for mining purposes. The property has eight existing exploratory tunnels totaling
about 800m in length. The property has a building used as onsite offices and dormitory, which was built in December 2006 at a cost of RMB235,000.
The neighboring exploration properties of Dadi, Laopandao, Aobaotugounao, Yuanlinzi, Zhuanxinhu and Shididonggou are all located within
Keshiketeng County and cover a total area of 139 km2.
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Agreements
On March 16, 2006, we entered into an agreement to acquire certain mining and exploration rights to the Erbahuo Silver Project by purchasing a 60%
interest in Sino-Top from Sino Silver (the “Asset Purchase Agreement”). Sino-Top was an equity joint venture company originally created under the
Joint Venture Agreement dated April 14, 2005 between Sino Silver and certain other parties. Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, we acquired
a 60% interest in Sino-Top and became a party to the Joint Venture Agreement. Sino-Top holds the exploration and mining rights to nine properties
in the Erbahuo Silver District in Northern China (“Erbahuo Projects”). The total purchase price was $650,000 plus 4,000,000 shares of our restricted
common stock, all of which had been delivered to Sino Silver following receipt of the requisite approvals to the transfer by the local Provincial
Department of Commerce in China. In March 2007, we increased our interest from 60% to 90% in exchange for 2 million restricted common shares
of the company. On May 9, 2007, we received approval from the Ministry of Commerce to change the equity joint venture to a contractual joint
venture. On June 10, 2008, we signed a letter of intent with our state–owned Chinese Joint venture partner Exploration Unit of North China
Nonferrous Geological Exploration Bureau, also known as Huaguan Industrial Corp. (“HIC’’) to sell a 50% equity interest in Sino-Top, not including
the Erbahuo mine, from Silver Dragon in exchange for US$4.5 million. With respect to the Erbahuo mine, the then-ninth exploration property owned
by Chifeng Silver Dragon, a wholly owned subsidiary of Sino-Top, Silver Dragon is entitled to a 70% interest of after-tax proceeds and HIC is
entitled to 30%. On November 20, 2008, Gansu Shengda Group Ltd. (Shengda), a private Chinese conglomerate, agreed to acquire 52% of the equity
interests in Sino-Top from HIC, Silver Dragon’s state-owned Chinese joint venture partner. On January 21, 2010, Sino-Top sold the Saihanaobao and
Liangdi Properties to Chinese State-owned Entities for approximately USD$4.2 Million.
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Prior to entering into the Asset Purchase Agreement described above, on April 14, 2005 we entered into a Venture Agreement with Sino Silver to
acquire 50% of Sino Silver’s interest in the net proceeds from the sale of minerals or the sale of mining rights as a result of the exploration,
evaluation, and development of the Aobaotugounao property located in the Erbahuo Silver District. Consideration for the interest included cash
payments of $350,000 over a two year period and the issuance of 500,000 shares of our common stock. On closing, we paid $150,000 cash and
issued 250,000 restricted common shares. In addition, 4,500,000 restricted common shares were issued to parties who assisted in the transaction.
Three million of these shares were subsequently returned to us and cancelled. The Venture Agreement was superseded by the Asset Purchase
Agreement described above.
History
Silver was discovered in Erbahuo following analysis by the Comprehensive Gross Exploration Department (the “Department”) from 1989 to 1992,
when exploration was carried out for the purpose of finding the necessary silver reserves projected to be required to satisfy China’s growing
industrial demands. A geological survey at scales of 1:10,000 and 1:2,000 has been completed. In 1992, the Department committed the Nonferrous
Metal Metallurgy Institute in Beijing to complete the primary metallurgical trial. In 1997, the Department completed detailed geological survey work.
From 1998 to 2002, exploration was carried out leading to the eventual mining of approximately 30,000 tons of ore with an average grade of 248.02
gpt silver at a cut-off grade of 200 gpt Ag.
Operations
In 2010, a comprehensive exploration program that consisted of a total of 12,634m drilling (29 holes), 2,545m tunneling and surface geological work
was completed on Dadi and Laopandao properties, which are exploratory in nature. The Company intends to further explore the properties, with the
goal of applying for mining licenses for Dadi and Laopandao by the end of 2011.
Since 2006, an advanced drilling program has been carried out on the Laopandao project, focusing on three mineralization zones and it is these three
zones which were the focus of an initial geological report in China in February 2011. Highlights from the report are as follows:
Highlights


Mineralization zone II is also featured by a silver-copper-tin enrichment and is approximately 200m long and 80m wide, containing 16
mineralized bodies.



Mineralization zone III is characterized by tin mineralization, approximately 300m long and 200m wide and occurs within a granite porphyry
intrusion. A total of 21 mineralized bodies were identified.



All mineralized bodies have been defined by drill holes and/or underground drifts, the samples were analyzed with internal and external
verification.



The Company will continue advanced exploration of Laopandao in 2011. The company will conduct metallurgical testing on the 2010
exploration results and commission an initial NI 43-101 technical report based on CIM standards.

Laopandao, a key exploration project for Silver Dragon, is located in Inner Mongolia Keshiketeng County, North China and is 44.88 km 2 .
The exposed rocks in the exploration area include Paleozoic Middle Permian Zhesi Formation andesite, Mesozoic Upper Jurassic Baiyigaolao
Formation volcanic series, and Yanshanian granite porphyry and quartz porphyry intrusions.
Based on geochemical and geophysical survey results, three geochemical anomalies were found and called anomaly No. 104 in the north, No. 95 in
the central, and No. 102 in the south of the property respectively. Since 2006, most drilling and tunneling exploration work has been carried out and
focused on the area of geochemical anomaly no. 95 and the three significant Silver-Copper-Tin mineralization zones, each of which consists of
multiple mineralized bodies.
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Based on annual exploration reports provided by the Comprehensive Exploration Institute of North China Nonferrous Geological Survey Bureau, the
exploration work at the Laopandao Property is summarized as follows:
From 2006 to 2009, general and advanced geological exploration, geochemical and geophysical surveys have been carried out by the Comprehensive
Geological Exploration Institute of North China Nonferrous Geological Survey Bureau. A total of 23 drill holes (9,936m) and 1,880m tunneling
exploration were completed within the central area of the Property (geophysical anomaly no. 95). The exploration focused on mineralization zone I
and II
In 2010, advanced geological exploration work was continued and the exploration targets were focused on mineralization zones I and III. The
exploration consisted of 11 drill holes (4,696 m), 634m tunneling, and an additional geophysical survey.
In February 2011 a geological report was also completed for the Dadi property based on the results from the 2010 drilling program at the Dadi
project.
Highlights




Extensive exploration work has been carried out during the 2010 season with the major focus on mineralization zones I and II. These zones
show the most significant mineralization so far. Although mineralization zones (III, IV, and V) also show significant potential, they were not
the focus of the 2010 season.
An associated element, cadmium, was found in the polymetallic ores. The cadmium resource could be of significant industrial and economic
value.

Using the funds from the sale of two properties in January 2010 mentioned earlier, approx. $3,378,234 was spent on exploration activities in 2010
with the focus on bringing the Erbahuo silver mine into production in 2011, and the Dadi and Laopandao mines into production in 2012.
Mineralization
Rocks include porphyry rhyolite, quartz porphyry, quartz porphyry and breccia conglomerate, running in a north-west direction, for tens to hundreds
of meters with widths from several meters to tens of meters. The common forms of mineralization found in the rocks are pyrite, galena, and
sphalerite. The prominent structures have provided conduits for the transmission of hydrothermal fluids which has created mineralized zones in such
environments as faults, and fractured zones where the fluids were accumulated, trapped and precipitated. The main metallic minerals include the
following: pyrolusite, psilomelane, limonite, pyrite, galena, sphalerite, chalcopyrite, and other silver related minerals. The main metallic minerals
include the following: pyrolusite, psilomelane, limonite, pyrite, galena, sphalerite, chalcopyrite, and other silver related minerals.
Cerro las Minitas
Property location and description
As noted elsewhere, we have written off our ownership of the Mexican concessions, but if we are successful in our Constitutional Rights Claim, the
following will be applicable.
The Cerro Las Minitas property is located in the Minitas Mining District, approximately seven kilometers north of the town of Guadalupe Victoria,
Durango and 70 km northeast of the City of Durango, Ciudad Durango, the capital of the state of Durango, and six kilometers northwest of the town
of Guadalupe Victoria, in the municipality of Guadalupe Victoria, Durango. The property can be reached from Ciudad Durango via Interstate
Highway 40 (Toll Road) and Highway 40 (Free Access), the road from Francisco I. Madera to Cuencame. From Guadalupe Victoria, a graded dirt
road leads north to the property. About half of the property is located north of Interstate Highway 40 (a limited access freeway) and an overpass over
the highway affords access to the northern part of the property. The claims are located in the Minitas Mining District in the Mining Region of
Guadalupe Victoria. The property consists of 15 mining concessions encompassing 1,413 hectares.
The nearby towns of Guadalupe Victoria and Ignacio Ramirez are serviced by the commercial electrical grid and a regional transmission line of the
Comisión Federal de Electricidad (CFE) follows Interstate Highway 40. A 33,000 Kva power drop has been extended from the CFE line to the Mina
Piña shaft and is serviceable, but in need of repair. Improvements on the property consist of a network of graded dirt roads and various mine
buildings in a poor state of repair located in the Puro Corozon – Santo Nino and Mina Pina – La Bocona mining areas
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Agreements
In a news release dated December 13, 2005, Silver Dragon Resources, Inc. (the “Company”) announced that it had entered into agreements to
purchase a 100% interest in the Cerro Las Minitas Property. In March 2006, Silver Dragon consolidated landholdings in the district and claims are
now held by Silver Dragon Mining de Mexico S.A. De C.V, a wholly owned Mexican subsidiary of Silver Dragon Resources Inc. (“Silver Dragon
Mexico”), by virtue of “Agreements to Purchase” 15 of the mining concessions (collectively, the Purchase Agreement).
Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement with Sr. Jaime Muguiro Peña, the Company has earned 100% interest in ten mining concessions by
payment of $450,000, plus 450,000 restricted common shares. All payments to Sr. Muguiro have been made.
Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement with Sr. & Sra. Ramon Davila Flores, the Company has earned 100% interest in five mining concessions
by payment of $245,000. All payments to Sr. and Sra. Flores have been made.
The surface access to the property is controlled by the Guadalupe Victoria and Ignacio Ramirez Ejidos. Silver Dragon Mining de Mexico, S.A. de
C.V. has a surface agreement to cover the common ground of the Guadalupe Victoria Ejido that lies within the Cerro Las Minitas concessions.
Agreements with individual Ejido landowners are negotiated as needed to cover deeded lands.
On August 12, 2010, Silver Dragon Mexico entered into an agreement with Ema Violante, wherein Ms. Violante sold to Silver Dragon Mexico five
hectares of land for $15,564 in Guadalupe Victoria, Durango, Mexico to be used to build a tailings pond when the Company commences construction
of its mill.
The minimum annual work requirement for these mining concessions is approximately $19,500. According to the Mining Law and Ruling, there is an
obligation to submit the evidence of the work expenditures to the authorities for properties larger than 1,000 hectares. It is therefore recommended
that the required information for the previous reporting year be submitted annually each May.
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History
There is little documentation regarding the history at Cerro Las Minitas, but local legend has it that Spaniards from the city of Victoria de Durango
(now Durango City) discovered the silver mineralization at Cerro Las Minitas originally. The historical information presented herein has been
gleaned from discussions with local miners and operators and the few previous evaluative reports concerning the property that do exist.
The only two areas with significant exploitation in the district are the Santo Niño-Puro Corazón and La Bocona-Mina Piña areas.
Sr. Carlos Villaseñor discovered Ag-Pb-Zn-Cu mineralization in the Santo Niño-Puro Corazón area in 1960. He explored the deposits there and did
minor exploitation of them until 1971, when he built a small mill in the Velardeña district. When the mill became operational, mining was stepped up
and ores were shipped to the Velardeña mill to be processed. After attention was drawn to the area by the Villaseñor operations, exploration by others
discovered the deposits in the La Bocona-Mina Piña area to the east.
The majority of the mining at Cerro Las Minitas is reported to have been done during the period 1970 – 1981, but has continued intermittently until
the present. The mines were idle from 1997 - 2002 due to problems with mine water and the drop in metal prices. Intermittent, small-scale
exploitation of the deposits in the Puro Corazón - Santo Niño area continued until 2005 and operations in the Mina Piña – La Bocona area continued
to late 2006.
The Consejo de Recursos Minerales (‘‘CRM’’) has been giving support to the miners in the area since 1977. In 1979, CRM completed 834.55m of
diamond drilling in seven holes on the Mina Piña area, which belonged at that time to Mr. Santiago Valdez. Mr. Valdez exploited the mine until
1997, when he suspended operations due to the drop in metal prices. CRM discovered additional mineralization in their drilling, but no further
exploration or development of those discoveries has been done. CRM delivered drill and assay data to the operators in the district without
interpretation.
In 1981, CRM continued its support of the development of the district, completing 77m of shaft and 80m of crosscut to cut the upper, oxidized
portion of the La Bocona deposit. Following that work, Sr. Jaime Muguiro deepened the Mina Piña shaft another 59 meters to reach the 210 level. A
140-meter crosscut was driven, encountering a number of thin mineralized horizons and the Huisache mineralized chimney. Sr. Muguiro then
suspended operations due to problems with water inflow.
In 1995, Minas de Bacis completed a 30-day evaluation of Cerro Las Minitas, which consisted of analysis of previous data, inspection of accessible
workings and analysis of surface geology. Minas de Bacis began negotiations to acquire the concessions in the district. Those negotiations were
unsuccessful and Minas de Bacis withdrew. A summary report of Minas de Bacis findings has been located, but much of the data used as the basis for
the conclusions in the report has not.
From 1999 to 2000, Minerales Noranda, SA de CV (‘‘Noranda’’) optioned the properties and completed an exploration program including 861 soil
and rock samples, an aeromagnetic survey covering the entire district, and seven widely-spaced diamond drill holes (3886 meters total) within the
Cerro Las Minitas Dome. Results were encouraging but not up to Noranda’s expectations and they abandoned the property. Unfortunately, the
original Noranda data has not been found and all that has been located is fragmentary data presented in a summary report by Proyectos Minerales y
Topografia, S.A. de C.V. (2001). Most of the core from Noranda’s drilling has been located and a partial reexamination of that core has been made to
confirm data used in estimating the inferred mineral resource reported herein. Continued re-examination of that core is ongoing, as Noranda’s drill
logs have not been recovered.
Minera Real Victoria (‘‘MRV’’) acquired leases on concessions in the Puro Corazón - Santo Niño area in 2005 and began a program of exploration
in the area. In May 2005, MRV began driving a 2.5m X 2.5m decline into the old Puro Corazón - Santo Niño workings to develop resources believed
to be present there. MRV drove 170 meters of workings to connect with level 2 of the Puro Corazon workings and to make a preliminary exploration
of the near surface portion of the La Chive mineralized zone. That work was halted in November, 2005 when MRV entered negotiations with Silver
Dragon Resources, Inc. to acquire the property. The sampling and resource assessment started by MRV was not completed, but fragmentary data
from that work has been recovered.
Operations
Silver Dragon Mining de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. signed agreements to acquire a 100% interest in the properties that now constitute the Company’s
holdings in the district in March 2006. At that time, geologists began compiling and analyzing existing data for the property. Examination of that data
showed that it was inadequate to guide further exploration operations and a program of rehabilitation, mapping and sampling existing workings on
the property began. A combined reverse-circulation and diamond drilling program to test continuity of mineralization at depth commenced in May of
2006. Eleven holes were drilled for 2915 meters. Nine of the eleven holes have been sampled, logged and assayed. Analysis of the two remaining
holes will be completed when geotechnical personnel are available. The mine is an underground mine. On October 28, 2008 we signed an agreement
to purchase a mill at a price of US$245,000, including approximately US$20,000 for delivery and assembly. We have written off our deposit on the
mill as part of the write-off of our Mexican assets.
22

Mineralization and rock formation
Cerro Las Minitas is located within the geomorphic province of the Mesa Central (Altiplano) of Mexico, northwest of the Sierra Madre Occidental in
the State of Durango. In Durango, the Mesa Central is a broad plain at about 2000 meters elevation traversed by NW trending mountain ranges
separated by broad NW-trending valleys. Within this province, Cerro Las Minitas lies within a belt of prolific Au, Ag, Pb, Zn and Cu deposits that
stretches from the highly productive vein deposits of Fresnillo in Zacatecas to the south, to the massive manto deposits of Santa Eulalia in Chihuahua
to the north. This belt includes the productive replacement deposits of San Martin, Santa Eulalia, Santa Barbara and Naica, as well as the rich vein
deposits of Fresnillo, El Bote, San Jose and various others.
The basement rocks of Mexico are now known to be composed of an assemblage of tectono-stratigraphic terranes derived from the Paleozoic
Appalachian origin and the Mesozoic of the Atlantic and Gulf of Mexico combined with basement rocks of the North American Cordillera. The
assemblage includes deformed Pre-Cambrian intrusives and sediments, deformed Lower to Middle Paleozoic sediments and Lower Mesozoic
sediments which are all covered with a thick succession of Mesozoic sedimentary and volcanic strata. Those are covered by a thick succession of
Tertiary sediments and volcanics and cut by numerous Tertiary intrusives.
Cerro Las Minitas is located within the Parral tectono-stratigraphic terrain near the regional fault that marks the contact between the Parral terrain and
the Sierra Madre Occidental terrain. The Parral terrain is characterized by a thick Late Mesozoic, miogeoclinal marine sequence deposited on a
basement of Lower Mesozoic, eugeosynclinal sedimentary and volcanic strata. The Parral terrain is host to some of Mexico’s larger Au, Ag, Pb, Zn
and Cu replacement deposits, such as Santa Eulalia, Naica, Villardeña, San Martin and Santa Barbara
Item 3. Legal proceedings
China
In December 2010, shareholders of Silver Dragon began receiving a notice, which contained two items: (i) the first item was a copy of a legal
proceeding filed in Langfang District Court, China and (ii) the second item was a letter making certain allegations regarding the Company and its
management.
The Langfang District Court proceeding was filed by two shareholders, and seeks to invalidate the Company’s sale in 2008 of 50% of Sanhe SinoTop Resources & Technologies, Ltd. After consulting with Chinese legal counsel, the Company believes that the Langfang proceeding had been filed
in an improper jurisdiction and is, in any event, frivolous and wholly without merit. The sale in question was made to a Chinese government-owned
entity, after the receipt of approval by the Ministry of Commerce in China.
The second item was a letter purporting to be written by a “Minority Shareholder Committee”, comprised of individuals who apparently invested in
the Company in 2006. The letter claimed that the Committee initiated the Langfang proceeding. The letter alleged that the Company and its
management had engaged in various improper and illegal activities since 2005. The allegations made in the letter were similar to allegations that had
been repeatedly made and published by an individual over the past three years. The Company, on several occasions, through its legal counsel in
several countries, had asked that individual to cease and desist. On August 11, 2010, the Company’s Hong Kong counsel sent a final request letter to
cease and desist and to comply with certain demands.
The Company believes that the allegations made are false and unsubstantiated. The Company believes that the continuous pursuance of such
allegations and publication of libelous statements with respect to the Company and its management are malicious and calculated to defame and
discredit the Company and its management, as well as to damage their reputation. On January 14, 2011, Silver Dragon filed a Writ of Summons in
the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Court of First Instance claiming damages for libel, damages, interest and an
injunction in connection with emails, messages, and letters published or caused to be published. On January 17, 2011, the Company’s counsel
advised that the Langfang proceeding will be transferred to the Beijing Second Intermediate Court. A trial date has not been set.
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Mexico
Our Mexican subsidiary has been subjected to irregularities in Mexico that it is seeking to redress. Silver Dragon Mexico is obligated to pay for a
shortfall in the value of shares given in consideration for a 2006 purchase of mineral rights from a vendor. In the city of Durango, Mexico, on August
18, 2006 the then-legal representative of Silver Dragon Mexico signed a promissory note on behalf of Silver Dragon Mexico in the amount $350,000
to that vendor, due March 5, 2008. The actions of the former legal representative were not authorized by Silver Dragon Mexico, nor did he advise
Silver Dragon Mexico about the promissory note. On April 21, 2008, the vendor filed a lawsuit against Silver Dragon Mexico for repayment of the
note and ordinary interest at an annual rate of 10%, interest on past due and unpaid principal at an interest rate of 5% per month as well as for legal
expenses. The legal proceedings were heard and decided on an ex parte basis, without notice to Silver Dragon Mexico, nor allowing proper defense
and representation. Indeed, the former legal representative accepted notification of the lawsuit on behalf of Silver Dragon Mexico, but Silver Dragon
Mexico was never advised. Since Silver Dragon Mexico did not respond to the lawsuit, it was declared in default and lost its opportunity to offer
evidence in its favor. Several times subsequently, the former legal representative accepted service on behalf of SDM but did not inform Silver
Dragon Mexico of the situation, and ultimately on June 25, 2009 by public auction, the ten mining concessions, originally purchased from the
vendor, were granted to the vendor as payment of the principal and interest due on the note. Subsequently, in 2010, additional assets of Silver Dragon
Mexico, including five additional mining concessions that were not acquired from the vendor, were also seized.
In summary, the legal proceedings were heard and decided on an ex parte basis, without notice to us, nor allowing proper defense and representation
of Silver Dragon Mexico.
In December 2010, we became aware of this situation, and are now taking steps through the courts in Mexico to redress the situation. We have filed a
Constitutional Rights Claim before the Federal Court in the City of Durango, premised on procedural irregularities in the foreclosure proceedings, for
the purposes of re-opening the case. On January 17, 2011, Silver Dragon Mexico provided certain evidence in connection with the claims to the
court, which is currently reviewing the documentation. Although management expects that we may eventually be successful with the Constitutional
Rights Claim, we have written off the book value of our mineral rights and related liabilities in Mexico. The net amount written off in 2010 is
$2,335,289.
Another issue arose with regards to our Mexican subsidiary. In late November 2010, Silver Dragon and Silver Dragon Mexico approached certain
suppliers in order to arrange payment of the Company’s outstanding accounts payables. Agreements were reached in most cases, but one of Silver
Dragon Mexico’s creditors did not respond to the request. However, an individual purporting to represent that creditor subsequently emailed the
Company in December 2010 requesting payment for an amount that was more than triple the amount of the debt and asserted that it was pursuant to a
promissory note signed by Silver Dragon Mexico and a related court decision in Mexico. On January 17, 2011, the Company received a copy of the
promissory note. It was dated April 24, 2008, was for a principal amount of $166,623 and carried interest at a rate of 5% per month. It was signed by
an individual purporting to represent Silver Dragon Mexico, who was acting under a power of attorney at that time. His actions were not authorized
by Silver Dragon Mexico, and he did not advise Silver Dragon Mexico about the promissory note, nor the subsequent court actions. He also accepted
court service several times on behalf of Silver Dragon Mexico to enforce payment of the note, but similarly did not advise Silver Dragon Mexico of
such court service.
We are in the process of investigating this matter and has determined that, in April 2010, the creditor had obtained a judgment from a court in
Chihuahua, Mexico, in its favor, for payments under the promissory note that the creditor asserts aggregate $408,226 with interest, as well as a
further 10% for its legal fees. We are endeavoring to settle the matter directly with the creditor.
As an element of our ongoing financing program on January 27, 2011, the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles
entered an Order Approving Stipulation for Settlement of Claim in the matter entitled Socius CG II, Ltd. v. Silver Dragon Resources Inc . The order
provides for the settlement of Socius GC II, Ltd.’s $405,981.49 claim against us, which they purchased from seven creditors.
Pursuant to the order, we initially issued to Socius 9,000,000 shares of our common stock, representing approximately 8.28% of the total number of
shares outstanding. We issued the shares in reliance upon the exemption from registration provided by Section 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended. Such shares were issued in exchange for the Claims pursuant to the Order of the Court, which determined that such exchange was fair to
Socius following notice to the Court of our intent to rely upon the exemption and a hearing of which Socius received notice and in which it
participated.
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The total number of shares issued to Socius was adjusted on the 21st trading day following the date on which they were issued as follows: the number
of Volume Weighted Average Price (VWAP) shares were less than the number of shares issued and therefore Socius is returning to us for
cancellation 3,116,104 shares which equals the difference between the number of VWAP Shares and the number of shares originally issued. The
number of shares is equal to (i) $405,981.49 plus $28,691.32 of Socius’ legal fees divided by 75% of the VWAP of our common stock over the 20day trading period immediately following the date on which the share were originally issued. The final number of shares issued to Socius is
5,883,896. The remaining 3,116,104 shares were agreed to be returned to us to be cancelled.
Item 4. Reserved
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PART II
Item 5. Market for common equity and other shareholder matters
Our common stock is quoted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board (the “OTCBB”) under the symbol “SDRG.” On March 16, 2011, the last
reported sale price of our common stock as reported on the OTCBB was $0.10 per share. The following table shows the quarterly high and low trade
prices on the OTCBB. Over-the-counter market quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down, or commission and may
not represent actual transactions.
Our common stock commenced trading on the OTCBB on January 1, 2001, and trading has been limited since then; there can be no assurance that a
viable and active trading market will develop. There can be no assurance that even if a market were developed for our shares, there will be a
sufficient market so that holders of common stock will be able to sell their shares, or with respect to any price at which holders may be able to sell
their shares. Future trading prices of our common stock will depend on many factors, including, among others, our operating results and the market
for similar securities.
The following sets forth the high and low closing sale price for one share of common stock on the OTCBB.
Market Price on the OTCBB ($)
High
Low
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2010
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$
$
$
$

0.44
0.36
0.29
0.28

$
$
$
$

0.22
0.16
0.155
0.07

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2009
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$
$
$
$

0.12
0.145
0.30
0.49

$
$
$
$

0.06
0.075
0.085
0.213

Holders
As of March 16, 2011, there were approximately 379 shareholders of record of our common stock.
Dividends
We have never paid and do not intend to pay any cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain any
future earnings for reinvestment in our business. Any future determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors
and will be dependent upon our financial condition, results of operations, capital requirements and other relevant factors.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
The 2020 stock option plan which is no longer in use was cancelled by the board of directors on March 16, 2011.
Recent Issuances of Unregistered Securities
On January 22, 2010, we issued warrants, to an organization, to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise
price of $0.50, exercisable for a period of three years from the contract date. The warrants were issued pursuant to a consulting agreement dated
January 22, 2010.
On January 25, 2010, we issued 200,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to a consulting agreement dated
January 25, 2010, for fair value of $63,200.
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On February 1, 2010, we issued 25,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to an investor relations agreement
dated February 1, 2010, for fair value of $7,500. We also issued warrants to purchase 150,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at
an exercise price of $0.30, exercisable for a period of one year from the contract date, for fair value of $20,355.
On February 1, 2010, an individual exercised 100,000 options to purchase shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at a per share price of
$0.10 for gross proceeds of $10,000.
On February 3, 2010, we closed a private placement totaling 803,571 units at $0.28 per unit for gross proceeds of $225,000. Each unit consists of one
common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the private placement.
On March 1, 2010, we issued 25,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to the investor relations agreement
dated February 1, 2010 for fair value of $7,500.
On March 13, 2010 we settled the outstanding debt of $100,000 with Minera Real Victoria through the issuance of 360,000 shares of the Company’s
restricted common stock.
On March 24, 2010, we closed a private placement totaling 500,000 units at $0.20 per unit for gross proceeds of $100,000. Each unit consists of one
common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the private placement.
On April 1, 2010, we issued 25,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to the investor relations agreement
dated February 1, 2010 for fair value of $7,000.
On April 12, 2010, we made an addendum to a consulting agreement dated January 22, 2010 and issued additional warrants, to an organization, to
purchase 180,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise price of $0.50, exercisable for a period of one year from the date
of issuance, for fair value of 21,834.
On April 15, 2010, we issued warrants to purchase 50,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise price of $0.50,
exercisable for a period of two years from the date of issuance to our operations manager in China, for fair value of $9,095.
On April 15, 2010, we issued warrants to purchase 50,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise price of $0.50,
exercisable for a period of two years from the date of issuance to a geologist in China, for fair value of $9,095.
On May 1, 2010, we issued 25,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to the investor relations agreement
dated February 1, 2010 for fair value of $8,000.
On May 14, 2010, we closed a private placement totaling 300,000 units at $0.28 per unit for gross proceeds of $84,000. Each unit consists of one
common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the private placement.
On May 25, 2010, we issued 75,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to a long-term consulting agreement
dated May 19, 2010, for fair value of $14,625. We also issued warrants to purchase 300,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an
exercise price of $0.28, exercisable for a period of one year from the issuance date, for fair value of 20,430.
On May 27, 2010, we closed a private placement totaling 1,250,000 units at $0.12 per unit for gross proceeds of $150,000. Each unit consists of one
common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the private placement.
On June 1, 2010, we issued 375,000 of the Company’s restricted common stock to an individual, pursuant to a one-year accounting services contract
for fair value of $75,000.
On June 23, 2010, we issued 300,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to the investor relations agreement
dated June 23, 2010 for fair value of $74,850.
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On September 1, 2010, we issued warrants to an individual to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise
price of $0.18, exercisable for a period of two years from the contract date. The warrants were issued pursuant to a consulting agreement dated
September 1, 2010, for fair value of $20,426.
On September 8, 2010, we issued warrants to an individual to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise
price of $0.18, exercisable for a period of three years from the contract date. The warrants were issued pursuant to a contract to provide services as
Chief Financial Officer, for fair value of $23,058.
On September 21, 2010, we issued 25,000 of the Company’s restricted common stock to an individual, pursuant to an employment agreement dated
September 21, 2010 for fair value of $6,250.
On September 28, 2010, we issued warrants, to a Director, to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise price
of $0.25, exercisable for a period of three years from the contract date. The warrants were issued pursuant to the appointment of the Director to our
Board of Directors, for fair value of $32,704.
On October 1, 2010, we issued 300,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to an investor relations agreement
dated October 1, 2010 for fair value of $79,500.
On October 4, 2010, we closed a private placement totaling 50,000 units at $0.20 per unit for gross proceeds of $10,000. Each unit consists of one
common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the private placement.
On October 6, 2010, our Chief Executive Office subscribed to a private placement totaling 100,000 units at $0.28 per unit for gross proceeds of
$28,000. Each unit consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a two year period from the date of the
closing of the private placement.
On October 6, 2010, we issued 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a Director on our Board of Directors pursuant to the
renewal of an employment agreement dated October 6, 2010, for fair value of $279,000.
On October 7, 2010, we issued warrants, to an individual, to purchase 50,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise price
of $0.25, exercisable for a period of two years from the contract date. The warrants were issued pursuant to a consulting agreement dated October 7,
2010, for fair value of $7,754.
On October 7, 2010, we issued 50,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock, to an individual, pursuant to an employment agreement
dated October 7, 2010, for fair value of $13,000. We also issued warrants to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at
an exercise price of $0.25, exercisable for a period of one year from the contract date, for fair value of $31,015.
On October 8, 2010, we issued 100,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock, to an individual, as well as warrants to purchase 200,000
shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise price of $0.27, exercisable for a period of two years from the date of issuance. The
shares and warrants were issued pursuant to the appointment of the individual to our Strategic Advisory Board on October 8, 2010, for fair value of
$27,000 and $31,770, respectively.
On October 14, 2010, we closed a private placement totaling 50,000 units at $0.20 per unit for gross proceeds of $10,000. Each unit consists of one
common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the private placement.
On October 15, 2010, we closed a private placement totaling 50,000 units at $0.20 per unit for gross proceeds of $10,000. Each unit consists of one
common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the private placement.
On November 15, 2010, we closed a private placement totaling 33,333 units at $0.15 per unit for gross proceeds of $5,000. Each unit consists of one
common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the private placement.
On November 29, 2010, we issued 6,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to an individual as a finder’s fee, for fair value of $1,140.
On December 11, 2010, we closed a private placement totaling 33,333 units at $0.15 per unit for gross proceeds of $5,000. Each unit consists of one
common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the private placement.
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On December 21, 2010, we closed a private placement totaling 768,000 units at $0.125 per unit for gross proceeds of $96,000. Each unit consists of
one common share and one $0.25 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a three year period from the date of the closing of the private
placement.
On December 21, 2010, pursuant to the signing of a term sheet proposing equity financing for the Company, we issued 201,094 shares of the
Company’s restricted common stock to a company, for fair value of $22,120.
On December 23, 2010, we issued warrants to purchase 100,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock, to a consultant for assisting with
a financing transaction, at an exercise price of $0.12, exercisable for a period of two years from the issuance date, for fair value of $7,152.
The foregoing transactions were made in accordance with section 4(2) and/or Rule 506 of Regulation D under the 1933 Act, based on the following:
(a) the investors confirmed to us that they were “accredited investors”, as defined in Rule 501(a) under the 1933 Act, as amended by the Dodd-Frank
Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, and had such background, education and experience in financial and business matters as to be able
to evaluate the merits and risks of an investment in the securities; and (b) there was no public offering or general solicitation with respect to the
offerings.
Item 6. Selected Financial Data
Not applicable.
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements included herein. Further, this MD&A should be read in conjunction with the our Consolidated
Financial Statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, as well as the “Business” and “Risk Factors” sections of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles.
Overview.
Our primary objective is to explore for silver minerals and, if warranted, to develop those existing mineral properties. Our secondary objective is to
locate, evaluate, and acquire other mineral properties, and to finance our exploration through equity or debt financing, by way of joint venture or
option agreements or through a combination of both.
Plans for the Year 2011.
Our plan for 2011 is to move forward on operations as well as corporate matters. For operations, the main plans are to invest further in advanced
stage exploration at the Chinese properties, while applying for mining licenses at the two flagship properties, Dadi and Laopandao, and prepare for
production at the Erbahuo mine in the third quarter of 2011. On the corporate side, we plan to raise further equity capital, and to resolve the various
legal matters listed elsewhere in this Annual Report. Detailed plans for 2011 are being drafted at present and will be reviewed by our board of
directors in due course.
Cash Requirements.
Our current levels of cash and funding will not be sufficient to fund our business as currently planned for 12 months. We will need significant
additional funds to continue operations, which we may not be able to obtain. We estimate that we must raise approximately $3.5 million over the next
12 months to fund our operating requirements.
Critical Accounting Policies
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. These estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions the Company may undertake in the future. Significant areas requiring the use
of estimates relate to mineral rights, equity investment, plant and equipment, and stock-based compensation. Actual results could differ from these
and other estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically and as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in earnings in the respective
period.
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We have identified below certain accounting policies that we believe are most important for the portrayal of our current financial condition and
results of operations. Our significant accounting policies are disclosed in Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.
Mineral Rights
We record our interest in mineral rights at cost. Exploration costs are expensed. Costs associated with acquisition and development of mineral
reserves, including directly related overhead costs, are capitalized and are subject to ceiling tests to ensure the carrying value does not exceed the fair
value.
Investments in unproved properties and major exploration projects are not amortized until proved reserves associated with the projects can be
determined or until impairment occurs. If the results of an assessment indicate that the properties are impaired, the capitalized cost of the property
will be added to the costs to be amortized. We presently have no proven reserves. Where estimates of future net cash flows are not available and
where other conditions suggest impairment, management assesses whether the carrying values can be recovered. If the carrying values exceed
estimated recoverable values, then the costs are written-down to fair values with the write-down expensed in the period.
Equity Investment
Equity investments are entities over which we exercise significant influence but do not exercise control. These are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting in accordance with APB 18 and are initially recognized at cost net of any accumulated impairment loss. Our share of these
entities’ profits or losses after acquisition of our interest is recognized in the statement of operations and cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When our share of losses on these investments equals or exceeds the carrying amount of the
investment, we only recognize further losses where we have incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the affiliate.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any off balance sheet arrangements or contractual obligations that have had or are reasonably likely to have a material current or
future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or
capital resources that have not been disclosed in our financial statements.
Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009
Revenues and Losses
During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, we did not have any revenues.
During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, we incurred operating expenses of $4,793,867 and $4,288,828 respectively. Increases were
mainly due to write-off of our Mexican mining concessions and other assets in Mexico.
During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, we reported a net loss of $4,318,318 and $4,869,372, respectively. The reason for the increase
in 2010 is due to the write-off of our Mexican concessions and capital assets in Mexico.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
As of December 31, 2010, we had cash on hand of $96,563 and total current assets of $299,821. In addition, we had liabilities totaling $2,034,184 for
a working capital deficit of $1,434,542 compared to a working capital deficit of $1,801,677 in 2009. During 2010, we have been dependent on the
issuance of common stock and loans to pay our expenses.
On January 27, 2011, the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles entered an order approving stipulation for
Settlement of Claim in the matter entitled Socius CG II, Ltd. v. Silver Dragon Resources Inc. The order provides for the full and final settlement of
Socius’ $405,981.49 claim against from seven creditors. On January 28, 2011, we issued 9,000,000 free trading shares to Socius. On March 2, 2011,
Socius agreed to return to us for cancellation 3,116,104 shares. For further information please see our Form 8-Ks filed January 28 and March 3, 2011.
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On February 15, 2011, we entered into an Agreement with Tonaquint, Inc., whereby we issued and sold, and Tonaquint purchased: (i) a Secured
Convertible Promissory Note of the Company in the principal amount of $2,766,000 and (ii) a Warrant to purchase 8.6 million shares of common
stock of the Company at an exercise price of US$0.50 per share at any time within three years after February 15, 2011. In connection with the
transaction, we also issued to Tonaquint 50,000 shares of restricted common stock. For further information please see our Form 8-K filed February
18, 2011.
We will need additional capital in order to finance our obligations and to continue our attempt to acquire viable properties and to finance the
administrative costs including, but not limited to, legal and accounting fees. Our management is seeking additional capital. However, there is no
assurance that this needed capital can be raised on terms acceptable to us.
Going Concern
Our consolidated financial statements have been presented on the basis that we are a going concern, which contemplates the realization of assets and
the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business.
As of December 31, 2010, we had an accumulated deficit of $36,054,080. Our continuation as a going concern is uncertain and dependent on
successfully achieving future profitable operations and obtaining additional sources of financing to sustain our operations. In the event we cannot
obtain the necessary funds, it will be necessary to delay, curtail or cancel our exploration programs. We plan to pursue additional financing; however
there can be no assurance that we will be able to secure financing when needed or obtain such on terms satisfactory to us, if at all.
The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of
assets or the amounts and classification of liabilities that may result from our possible inability to continue as a going concern.
As shown in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, we incurred a large net operating loss in the year ended December 31, 2010, and
had significant unpaid accounts payable and accrued liabilities. These factors create an uncertainty about our ability to continue as a going concern.
Our management has provided operating capital to us and has developed a plan to raise additional capital. Our ability to continue as a going concern
is dependent on the success of this plan.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Not applicable.
Item 8. Financial Statements
The financial statements required by this Item, the accompanying notes thereto and the reports of independent accountants are included, as part of
this Form 10-K immediately following the signature page.
Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures
Under the supervision and with the participation of our senior management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, we
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as of the end of the period covered by this annual report (the “Evaluation Date”).
Based on this evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded as of the Evaluation Date that our disclosure controls and
procedures were not effective such that the information relating to the Company, including our consolidated subsidiaries, required to be disclosed in
our SEC reports (i) is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, and (ii) is accumulated
and communicated to our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. Material events occurred in Mexico over the past five years that were not reported to head office on a timely basis, as
reported above on page 5. Further, management has been unable to establish that disclosure controls and procedures are operating effectively to
ensure that events and transactions occurring in China and Mexico are recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the required time
periods.
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Report by Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-15(f). The framework used by management to evaluate internal controls over financial reporting is Internal Control
– Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO), as implemented by their subsequent publication Internal
Control over Financial Reporting – Guidance for Smaller Public Companies. Based on this evaluation, management concluded that our internal
control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2010, because we were unable to obtain completed internal control
questionnaires and process descriptions on a timely basis from our subsidiary in Mexico and our affiliate in China. In addition, the weaknesses
referred to above under Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures also lead us to believe that our internal control over financial reporting was
not effective as of December 31, 2010.
Changes in internal control over financial reporting
In part to enhance internal control over financial reporting, we hired a chief financial officer during the third quarter. We have made various
enhancements to internal control over financial reporting and to disclosure controls and procedures during the fourth quarter, and expect to be able to
report that internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures are effective, commencing at some point during 2011. The
enhancements include documenting internal controls, improving the control environment by enhancing procedures, and an increased focus on
compliance. At this point in time further improvements remain to be implemented.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Controls
Our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our
internal controls will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of
controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within the company have been detected. These inherent
limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake.
Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override
of the control. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can
be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent
limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance
Directors and Senior Management
Information about our directors and executive officers as of March 16, 2011 is set forth below:

Name
Executive Officers
Marc Hazout
Jeffrey Sherman

Directors
Manuel Chan
Charles McAlpine
Guoqiang Hao
R. Glen MacMullin

Position

Age

Date of first election
or appointment

President and Chief Executive Officer, Director
Chief Financial Officer

46
55

November 5, 2005
September 8, 2010

Director
Director
Director
Director

54
76
56
39

August 29, 2007
September 28, 2010
June 18, 2008
December 6, 2007

A brief biography of our directors and executive officers follows. Each director has been elected to serve until our next annual meeting of
shareholders and until his successor has been elected and qualified. Each executive officer serves at the discretion of our board of directors.
Mr. Marc Hazout has been our President, Chief Executive Officer and a director since November 5, 2005. Mr. Hazout worked as an equity trader at
Swift Trade Securities Inc. in Toronto in 1999. In 1998, Mr. Hazout founded and has been President and CEO of Travellers International Inc., a
private investment banking firm headquartered in Toronto.
Mr. Jeffrey Sherman has had extensive experience as CFO of numerous corporations, written about 20 books, and lectured extensively on finance,
treasury and governance, including as an adjunct professor at York University from 1984 to 2000, and executive development and other programs for
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario since 1980. His most recent book is Cash Management Toolkit, published by the Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants in 2010. From October, 1999 to October 2003, he was Vice President and CFO at Herbert A. Watts Limited, a business
services company, and was instrumental in its subsequent sale. From October 2003 to April 2005, Mr. Sherman served as CFO of VisualSonics Inc.,
a manufacturer of laboratory instrumentation, and from 1999 to present Mr. Sherman has been President of Anagram Services, a consulting company.
He graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce from the University of Toronto, and an M.B.A. from York University, and obtained his designation as a
Chartered Accountant in 1979.
Mr. Manuel Chan joined our board of directors on August 29, 2007. Mr. Chan is also a member of the Board of Directors of Sanhe Sino-Top
Resources & Technologies Ltd. of which Silver Dragon owns a 40% equity interest. Mr. Chan possesses more than 20 years of experience in the real
estate sector and holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Management Information Systems and Accounting from the University of British
Columbia, Canada. Since 2007, Mr. Chan has also served as our VP, China.
Mr. Guoqiang Hao has been a director of the company since June 2008. Since December 2007, Mr. Hao has been head of the Exploration Unit of
North China Geological Exploration Bureau, a.k.a. Huaguan Industrial Corp., a Chinese state-owned entity that operates in many diversified fields
such as mining, engineering, manufacturing, chemical analysis and real estate. Prior to that, Mr. Hao became HIC's deputy head in August 2002. HIC
is also Silver Dragon's joint venture partner in China. Mr. Hao has served with HIC for over 30 years, first as a geologist, then as a manager, and has
witnessed its development from a geological exploration team to a conglomerate that boasts a staff of over 700 and over 10 subsidiaries. Under the
leadership of Mr. Hao, HIC has acquired a number of mining properties in northern China and is expanding its business overseas. Mr. Hao is also a
member of the Board of the Directors of Sanhe Sino-Top Resources & Technologies Ltd., a joint venture between Silver Dragon and HIC. Having a
dual capacity of corporate executive and government officer, Mr. Hao has extensive connections with China’s mining and industrial circles and the
Chinese government.
Mr. R. Glen MacMullin has been a director of the company since December 2007. Mr. MacMullin is currently a Vice President of Finance with
Minto Group, Inc., a fully integrated real estate development, construction and management company with operations in Ottawa, Toronto and
Florida. Prior to joining Minto Group, Inc. in 2008, Mr. MacMullin was a Managing Director and Chief Operating Officer with Xavier Sussex, LLC,
a New York based private equity firm he co-founded in 2004. In 2001, Mr. MacMullin was appointed Director and Chief Operating Officer with DB
Advisors, LLC, a $6 billion hedge fund group based in New York and a wholly owned subsidiary of Deutsche Bank AG. He has also held several
senior management positions with Deutsche Bank Offshore in the Cayman Islands from 1998 through 2001, including Head of Investment Funds. He
began his career in 1993 as a public accountant with Coopers & Lybrand in Ottawa, Canada and KPMG in the Cayman Islands. Mr. MacMullin
received a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from Saint Francis Xavier University in 1993 and is a member of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants. Mr. MacMullin also serves on the Board of Directors of Nayarit Gold, Inc.
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Mr. Charles McAlpine brings almost 50 years of experience at executive-level positions in the mining industry. He holds a Business Administration
degree from The Ivey School, University of Western Ontario and is a Chartered Accountant. Mr. McAlpine was President of Campbell Chibougamau
Mines Ltd., (a listed Canadian copper-gold mining company) in 1973 when Campbell won The Ryan Trophy for Best Safety Record of all
metalliferous mines in Canada. From 1989 to 2007, he was a Director of Hecla Mining Company, now the largest and one of the lowest cost silver
producers in the USA
Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
To the best of the Company’s knowledge, during the past ten years, none of the following occurred with respect to a director or executive officer of
the Company: (1) any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a general partner or executive officer either at
the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time; (2) any conviction in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending criminal
proceeding (excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses); (3) being subject to any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed,
suspended or vacated, of any court of any competent jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his
involvement in any type of business, securities or banking activities; (4) being found by a court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the
Securities and Exchange Commission or the Commodity Futures Trading Commission to have violated a Federal or State securities or commodities
law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated; (5) being subject of, or a party to, any Federal or State judicial or administrative
order, judgment, decree, or finding, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, relating to an alleged violation of any Federal or State
securities or commodities law or regulation or any law or regulation respecting financial institutions or insurance companies or prohibiting mail or
wire fraud or fraud in connection with any business entity; or (6) being subject of, or a party to, any sanction or order, not subsequently reversed,
suspended or vacated, of any self-regulatory organization, any registered entity of the Commodity Exchange Act, or any equivalent exchange,
association, entity or organization that has disciplinary authority over its members or persons associated with a member.
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance
During the year, Jeffrey Sherman was awarded share purchase warrants as disclosed earlier, that were not reported on a timely basis in a Form 3. Mr.
Sherman has since filed the required Form 3 and is in compliance with reporting requirements.
Code of Ethics and Policy Regarding Consideration of Director Candidates Recommended by Stockholders
We have adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics and a Financial Management Code of Conduct that apply to our officers and employees, including
our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, controller or persons performing similar functions. The Code
of Conduct and Ethics and Financial Management Code of Conduct are available on our website at www.silverdragonresources.com .
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Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expert
The board of directors has determined that Glen MacMullin, a member of our Audit Committee, is an audit committee financial expert. Mr.
MacMullin is independent as independence for audit committee members is defined by the listing standards of NASDAQ.
Item11. Executive compensation
Compensation Discussion and Analysis
The following Compensation Discussion and Analysis describes and explains the significant elements of our compensation programs.
The objectives of our compensation program are to retain and motivate qualified executive officers who will drive our success while promoting an
alignment of interests between the executive officers and the shareholders. Compensation consists of three elements: base salary, short-term incentive
bonus, and stock options. The Compensation Committee reviews annually each component and appropriate competitive factors, and makes
recommendations based upon performance.
Base salaries: The primary element of our compensation program is base salary. Our view is that a competitive base salary is a necessary element for
retaining and attracting qualified employees. The base salary of each executive is determined based upon survey data and other competitive
information, number of years’ experience, and comparison to other base salaries paid in similar situations.
Short-term incentive bonus: In addition to establishing competitive base salaries and stock option incentives, one of the objectives of the executive
compensation strategy is to encourage and recognize strong levels of performance by linking achievement of specific goals with variable cash
compensation in the form of a short-term incentive bonus. The compensation committee will be assessing appropriate targets going forward. No
short-term incentive bonuses were awarded during 2010.
Stock warrants: The number of stock warrants granted is reviewed at each grant date to provide medium-term incentives. Warrants granted to
directors who are not employees vest immediately and expire after three years. The terms and conditions of options granted to executives and other
employees are reviewed for each grant at the time that it is made.
The following table sets forth certain summary information concerning the compensation paid or accrued during each of our last two completed fiscal
years for services for named executive officers in all capacities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

Name and
Principal
Position
Marc Hazout,
Director, President and
Chief Executive Officer
(1)

(2)

Year

Salary
($)

Bonus
($)

Stock
Awards
($)

2010

-

-

279,000 (1) -

2009

-

-

-

Option
Awards
($)

-

Nonqualified
Non-Equity Deferred
Incentive Plan CompensationAll Other
CompensationEarnings
CompensationTotal
($)
($)
($)
($)
-

-

288,000 (2)

567,000

-

(2)

288,000

288,000

The shares granted in 2010 were pursuant to a financing and extension of contract for five years. The shares issued to Travellers
International Inc., a corporation owned by Mr. Hazout, consisted of 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock,
valued at $0.279 per share on the grant date, which vested immediately and are restricted from resale for six months from the date of
issuance of the shares.
Payments were made to Travellers International Inc.

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2010 Fiscal Year-End
The following table provides information regarding the outstanding equity awards held by our Named Executive Officers as of December 31, 2010.
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Option Awards

Stock Awards

Name

No. of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
(#)
Exercisable

No. of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
(#)
Unexercisable

Equity
Incentive
Plan Awards:
Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Unearned
Options
(#)

Option
Exercise
Price
($)

Option
Exercise
Date

Number of
Shares or
Units of
Stock that
have not
Vested
(#)

Market
Value of
Shares or
Units of
Stock that
have not
Vested
($)

Equity
Incentive
Plan Awards:
Number of
Unearned
Shares, Units
or Other
Rights that
have not
Vested
(#)

Equity
Incentive
Plan Awards:
Market or
Payout Value
of Unearned
Shares, Units
or Other
Rights that
have not
Vested
($)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(j)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Marc Hazout -

No options have been awarded to Named Executive Officers. Any stock awards granted to Named Executive Officers are fully vested.
Compensation of Directors
Directors who are also officers of the Company are not remunerated for their services rendered as a director of the Company. Outside directors
received warrants as remuneration for their office. Directors are reimbursed for any reasonable expenses incurred in the connection with attendance
at board or committee meetings or any expenses generated in connection with the performance of services on the behalf of the company.
The following table summarizes compensation paid or earned by our directors who are not Named Executive Officers for their services as directors
of our Company during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

Name
Manuel Chan
Charles McAlpine
(1)
(2)

Fees earned
or paid in
cash
-

Stock
awards
($)
-

Option
awards
($)
20,426 (1)
32,704 (2)

NonNon-equity qualified
incentive plan deferred
compensation compensation All other
Total
($)
earnings ($) compensation ($)
20,426
32,704

200,000 share purchase warrants were awarded to Manuel Chan exercisable at an exercise price of $0.18 for a period of two years
from the date of issuance.
200,000 share purchase warrants were awarded to Charles McAlpine exercisable at an exercise price of $0.25 for a period of three
years from the date of issuance.

Consulting Agreements
On November 1, 2010, we entered into a consulting agreement with Travellers International Inc., a corporation owned by Mr. Hazout, to provide
consulting services including all activities required to direct, oversee, and manage us including providing the services that would be provided by a
chief executive officer. The consulting agreement provides that the Mr. Hazout is entitled to an annual fee of $288,000 for a term of five years, a
travel allowance of $3,000 per month, and eight weeks paid holidays each calendar year. Upon termination of the consulting agreement, Mr. Hazout
will be provided with 100% of his annual fee rate for the remaining period of the agreement. The agreement contains provisions prohibiting him from
competing with us or soliciting customers or employees for a period of one year following the termination of the agreement.
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Item 12. Security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and related stockholder matters.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
The 2020 stock option plan was cancelled by the board of directors on March 16, 2011.
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
The following table sets forth certain information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock as of March 11, 2011, by: (1) our directors,
named executive officers and beneficial holders of more than 5% of our common stock, and (2) all of our current directors and executive officers as a
group. The number and percentage of shares beneficially owned is determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act, and the
information is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Except as indicated in the footnotes to this table, and as
affected by applicable community property laws, all persons listed have sole voting and investment power for all shares shown as beneficially owned
by them.
Number of Shares
Beneficially

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner

Percentage of
Shares
Owned Beneficially Owned
(1)

(2)

Marc Hazout
Suite 803, 5160 Yonge Street, Toronto, Ontario, M2N 6L9
Manuel Chan (3)
Guoqiang Hao (4)
Glen MacMullin (5)
Charles McAlpine (6)
Officers and Directors as a group (7 persons)

18,173,206 (2)
100,000
200,000
–
–
18,473,206

16.5%
0.45%
0.36%
0.63%
0.36%
18.57%

(1)

Based on 109,884,302 shares outstanding as of March 16, 2011 plus any shares of common stock deemed to be beneficially owned pursuant to
warrants that are exercisable within 60 days from the above date.
(2) Owned

by Travellers International Inc. solely owned by Mr. Hazout. Mr. Hazout is the President and CEO of Travellers.

(3)

Manuel Chan owns share purchase warrants, expiring September 1, 2012, to purchase 200,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of
$0.18. He owns further share purchase warrants, expiring January 25, 2014, to purchase 200,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of
$0.11.
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(4)

Guoqiang Hao owns share purchase warrants, expiring January 25, 2014, to purchase 200,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of
$0.11.
(5)

Glen MacMullin owns share purchase warrants, expiring December 5, 2012, to purchase 250,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of
$0.11. He also owns share purchase warrants, expiring October 13, 2011, to purchase 250,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.25.
He owns further share purchase warrants, expiring January 25, 2014, to purchase 200,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $0.11.
(6) Charles

McAlpine owns share purchase warrants, expiring September 28, 2013, to purchase 200,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price
of $0.25. He owns further share purchase warrants, expiring January 25, 2014, to purchase 200,000 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of
$0.11.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
On October 6, 2010 we issued 1,000,000 shares of common stock to Travellers International Inc., a company owned by Marc Hazout, pursuant to the
signing of a Consulting Agreement. The fair value of the shares issued on the date of issuance was $279,000.
Glen MacMullin and Charles McAlpine were both considered independent under the independence standards of the NASDAQ Stock Market Rule
5605 during the past fiscal year. Mr. MacMullin and Mr. McAlpine currently sit on the audit committee and compensation committee.
Item 14. Principal accountant fees and services
The aggregate fees billed by the Company’s external auditors in each of the last two fiscal years are as follows:
2010
Audit fees

2009
$53,118

$76,690

$12,526

$36,000

Tax fees

—

—

All other fees

—

—

$65,644

$112,690

Audit-related fees

1

Total
1. These fees were for reviews of quarterly financial statements.

The audit committee was formed in the fourth quarter of 2010 and as such, did not have a role in approving audit-related fees, tax fees, and all other
fees as shown above during the year.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
The financial statements filed as part of this report are listed separately in the Index to Financial Statements.
Exhibit No.

Name of Exhibit

3.1(1)
3.2(2)
3.3(1)
4.3(4)
4.4(4)
4.5
4.6(5)
4.7(5)
10.1(6)

Articles of Incorporation
Amendment to Articles of Incorporation
Bylaws
Form of Class A Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to Heller Capital Investments LLC
Form of Class B Common Stock Purchase Warrant issued to Heller Capital Investments LLC
Form of Warrant
Company Noted dated February 15, 2011 between Silver Dragon Resources Inc. and Tonaquint, Inc.
Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock issued to Tonaquint, Inc. and dated February 15, 2011
Assignment of Rights of Mining Concessions Agreement between Silver Dragon Mining De Mexico, S.A. de C.V. and Jamie Muguiro
Pena
Assets Bailment Agreement dated March 2, 2006 by and between Silver Dragon Mining De Mexico, S.A. de C.V. and Jamie Muguiro
Pena
Assignment Agreement of Mining Concessions between Silver Dragon Mining De Mexico, S.A. de C.V. and Ramon Tomas Davila
Flores
Assets Purchase Agreement between Silver Dragon Mining De Mexico, S.A. de C.V. and Ramon Tomas Davila
Assignment of Rights of Mining Concessions Agreement dated March 8, 2006 by and between Silver Dragon Mining De Mexico,
S.A. de C.V. and Minera Real Victoria S.A. de C.V.
Addendum to the Mining Exploration and Exploitation Agreement dated March 9, 2006 by and between Silver Dragon Mining de
Mexico , S.A. de C.V. and Silvia Villasenor Haro (6)
Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of March 16, 2006 among Silver Dragon Resources Inc., Sino Silver Corp. and Sanhe Sino-Top
Resources and Technologies, Ltd.
Strategic Cooperation Agreement dated July 26, 2006, between Silver Dragon Resources, Inc. and Tianjin North China Exploration
Bureau
Subscription Agreement dated December 21, 2010 between Silver Dragon Resources Inc. and Travellers International Inc.
Consulting Services Agreement dated November 1, 2010 between Silver Dragon Resources Ltd., Silver Dragon Resources Inc. and
Travellers International Inc. and Marc Hazout
Consulting Agreement dated effective September 8, 2010 between Jeffrey D. Sherman and Silver Dragon Resources Ltd.
Equity Transfer Contract dated July 4, 2008 by and between Silver Dragon Resources Inc. and Exploration Unit of North China
Nonferrous Geological Exploration Bureau
Equity Transfer Agreement dated July 4, 2008 regarding Sanhe Sino-Top Resources & Technologies, Ltd. between Silver Dragon
Resources Inc. and Zhou Lin
Agreement on Amendment to the Joint Venture Contract of Sanhe Sino-Top Resources & Technologies, Ltd. dated July 4, 2008
Order Approving Stipulation for Settlement of Claim in the matter entitled Socius CG II, Ltd. v. Silver Dragon Resources Inc. filed on
January 27, 2011
Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated February 15, 2011 by and between Silver Dragon Resources Inc. and Tonaquint, Inc.

10.2(6)
10.3(6)
10.4(6)
10.5(6)
10.6(6)
10.7(7)
10.8(4)
10.9
10.10
10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15(8)
10.16(5)
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10.17(5)
10.18(5)
10.19(5)
10.20(5)
10.21(5)
22.1(4)
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2
(1)
(2)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)

Form of Buyer Trust Deed Note dated February 15, 2011 between Tonaquint, Inc. and Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
Form of Secured Buyer Note dated February 15, 2011 between Tonaquint, Inc. and Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
Form of Deed of Reconveyance
Form of Request for Full Reconveyance
Security Agreement dated February 15, 2011 between Silver Dragon Resources Inc. and Tonaquint, Inc.
Subsidiaries of the Company
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Incorporated by reference to Form 10-SB filed on February 23, 2000.
Incorporated by reference to Form 10-SB/A filed on July 17, 2003.
Incorporated by reference to Form SB-2 filed January 29, 2007.
Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K filed February 18, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K filed on March 20, 2006.
Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K filed March 24, 2006.
Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K filed on January 28, 2011
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Signatures
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto authorized.
SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
By: /s/ Marc M. Hazout
Marc M. Hazout
President and Chief Executive Officer
Dated: March 21, 2011
Pursuant to requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following persons on behalf of the registrant, in
the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

/s/ Marc M. Hazout
Marc M. Hazout
/s/ Jeffrey D. Sherman
Jeffrey D. Sherman

Title

Date

President and Chief Executive Officer, and
Director
March 21, 2011
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial
Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)
March 21, 2011

/s/ Manuel Chan
Manuel Chan

Director

March 21, 2011

/s/ Glen MacMullin
Glen MacMullin

Director

March 21, 2011

/s/ Guoqiang Hao
Guoqiang Hao

Director

March 21, 2011

/s/ Charles McAlpine
Charles McAlpine

Director

March 21, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders’ of
Silver Dragon Resources Inc. and Subsidiaries
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Silver Dragon Resources Inc. and Subsidiary (a Delaware corporation in
the exploration stage) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, stockholders' equity
and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2010, and cumulative from inception (June 15, 1996) through to
December 31, 2010, except as explained as follows: we did not audit the cumulative data from June 15, 1996 to December 31, 2004. The cumulative
data was audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts in the cumulative
data through December 31, 2004, is based solely on the report of other auditors. These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. The company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our
audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Silver
Dragon Resources Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two
years in the period ended December 31, 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As
discussed in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has experienced operating losses since inception and has no long term
contracts related to its business plans. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
Management's plans regarding these matters are also described in note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that
might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

Toronto, Canada
March 22, 2011

/s/ SF Partnership, LLP
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

2

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31
2010
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

$

Deferred expenses (note 6)
Plant and equipment, net (note 7)
Mineral rights (note 3, 8, and 16)
Equity investment (note 9)
$
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities (note 10)
Promissory notes payable (note 11)
Convertible notes payable (note 12)
Related party payables (note 13)

$

Capital stock (note 14)
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized, none issued and outstanding
Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 150,000,000 shares authorized, 98,728,017 shares issued
and outstanding (2009 – 91,597,686 issued and outstanding)
Additional paid-in capital (note 14)
Treasury (550,000 shares)
Deficit accumulated during the exploration stage
Accumulated comprehensive income
Stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

96,563
203,258
299,821
220,125
90,875
–
4,832,922
5,443,743

1,127,839
309,466
166,623
170,000
260,256
2,034,184

$

$

$

–

5,443,743

Commitments and contingencies (note 18)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

137,448
329,327
466,775
13,125
370,825
2,488,995
4,804,963
8,144,683

984,535
767,294
516,623
–
–
2,268,452
–

9,873
39,641,412
(209,000)
(36,054,080)
21,354
3,409,559
$

3

December 31
2009
(restated, note 3)

9,160
37,771,329
(209,000)
(31,735,762)
40,504
6,782,981
$

8,144,683

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY)
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, and
Cumulative for the period from June 15, 1996 (date of inception) to December 31, 2010

December

December

31, 2010

Revenues
Cost of revenues

$

Gross loss

–
–

For the
period from
June 15, 1996
(date of
inception) to
December 31,
2010
(restated,
note 3)

31, 2009
(restated,
note 3)
$

–
–

$

64,888
74,482

–

–

213,248
2,245,330
2,335,289
4,793,867

62,756
3,319,322
906,750
4,288,828

7,174,048
25,686,792
3,242,039
36,102,879

Loss from operations

(4,793,867)

(4,288,828)

(36,112,473)

Other (expenses) income
Interest gain (expense) (note 12)
Gain (loss) on embedded derivative
Net gain (loss) on equity investment
Forgiveness of debt
Gain on sale of interest in subsidiary
Non-recurring items (note 21)
Total other income (expenses)
Loss before income taxes
Provision for income taxes (note 17)
Net loss from continuing operations, after tax
Minority interest
Loss from discontinued operations (net of tax)

121,139
261,000
93,410
–
–
–
475,549
(4,318,318) $
–
(4,318,318)
–
–

(99,974)
144,000
(663,441)
38,871
–
–
(580,544)
(4,869,372) $
–
(4,869,372)
–
–

(473,770)
–
(570,032)
38,871
1,816,733
(703,675)
108,127
(36,004,346)
–
(36,004,346)
253,021
(302,755)

(4,318,318)

(4,869,372)

(36,054,080)

(19,150)

(17,742)
(4,887,114) $

Operating expenses
Exploration
General and administrative
Write-off of Mexican assets (note 3)
Total operating expenses

$

Net loss
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Foreign exchange gain (loss)
Comprehensive loss

$

(4,337,468) $

Net loss per common share – basic and diluted

$

(0.05) $

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding – basic and diluted

95,157,809

(0.06)
86,988,100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(9,594)

21,354
(36,032,726)

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Cumulative for the period from June 15, 1996 (date of inception) to December 31, 2010
Common Stock

Number of
Shares

Amount
$

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
$

Deficit
Accumulated
During the
Exploration
Stage
$

Stock
Subscription
$

Accumulated
Comprehensive
Income
(Loss)
$

Treasury
Stock
$

Total
Stockholders'
Equity
$

Shares issued to founders
Shares issued
Net Loss, 1996
Balance, December 31, 1996

388,334
413,333
–
801,667

39
41
–
80

1,126
47,564
–
48,690

–
(1,060)
(14,198)
(15,258)

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

1,165
46,545
(14,198)
33,512

Shares issued
Net Loss, 1997
Balance, December 31, 1997

116,999
–
918,666

12
–
92

88,638
–
137,328

–
(142,622)
(157,880)

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

88,650
(142,622)
(20,460)

Shares issued
Net loss, 1998
Balance, December 31, 1998

69,334
–
988,000

7
–
99

57,994
–
195,322

(54,404)
(212,284)

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

58,001
(54,404)
(16,863)

Shares issued
Forgiveness of debt of related party
Net loss, 1999
Balance, December 31, 1999

203,918
–
–
1,191,918

20
–
–
119

191,999
23,000
–
410,321

–
–
(181,898)
(394,182)

(4,000)
–
–
(4,000)

4,950,333
(453,100)
–
–
5,689,151

495
(45)
–
–
569

695,435
(169,867)
(23,000)
–
912,889

–
–
–
(419,296)
(813,478)

(278,539)
157,791
–
–
(124,748)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

188,019
23,000
(181,898)
12,258

Shares issued for services
Shares canceled
Forgiveness of debt reclassification
Net loss, 2000
Balance, December 31, 2000

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Shares issued
Cash received for subscription
Other adjustment
Net loss, 2001
Balance, December 31, 2001

1,179,415
–
–
–
6,868,566

118
–
–
–
687

Shares issued
Shares canceled
Stock warrants issued
Stock warrants exercised
Net loss, 2002
Balance, December 31, 2002

29,859,173
(21,978,215)
3,255,880
18,005,404

Shares issued
Shares returned
Net loss, 2003
Balance, December 31, 2003

4,927,411
(66,300)
22,866,515

417,391
(12,121)
(23,000)
(419,296)
(24,768)

89,784
–
–
–
1,002,673

–
–
1
(339,546)
(1,153,023)

–
124,748
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

89,902
124,748
1
(339,546)
(149,663)

2,986
(2,198)
326
1,801

386,394
7
31,000
1,420,074

(570,874)
(1,723,897)

–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–

389,380
(2,191)
31,000
326
(570,874)
(302,022)

493
(7)
2,287

150,833
(1,319)
1,569,588

(414,601)
(2,138,498)

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

151,326
(1,326)
(414,601)
(566,623)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Cumulative for the period from June 15, 1996 (date of inception) to December 31, 2010 (Cont’d)
Common Stock

Number of
Shares

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
$

Amount
$

Deficit
Accumulated
During the
Exploration
Stage
$

Stock
Subscription
$

Accumulated
Comprehensive
Income
(Loss)
$

Treasury
Stock
$

Total
Stockholders'
Equity
$

Balance, December 31, 2003
(carried forward)
Shares issued
Short swing profits of shareholder
Net loss, 2004
Balance, December 31, 2004

22,866,515
575,000
–
–
23,441,515

2,287
58
–
–
2,345

1,569,588
24,942
50,496
–
1,645,026

(2,138,498)
–
–
(399,028)
(2,537,526)

Shares issued
Shares canceled
Net loss, 2005
Balance, December 31, 2005

27,879,018
(3,500,000)
–
35,670,533

1,572
(350)
–
3,567

2,612,433
(724,650)
–
3,532,809

–
–
(584,879)
(3,122,405)

Shares issued
Warrants issued
Share issuance costs
Treasury stock
Other comprehensive loss
Net loss, 2006
Balance, December 31, 2006

25,790,000
–
–
–
–
–
61,460,533

2,579
–
–
–
–
–
6,146

13,949,985
4,941,036
(63,237)
–
–
–
22,360,593

–
–
–
–
–
(8,692,208)
(11,814,613)

458,500
–
–
–
–
–
449,000

–
–
–
(392,830)
–
–
(392,830)

–
–
–
–
(1,562)
–
(1,562)

14,411,064
4,941,036
(63,237)
(392,830)
(1,562)
(8,692,208)
10,606,734

7,114,194
(392,803)
2,717,020
459,959
(75,000)
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
(10,665,000)

(334,000)
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
392,830
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
(18,141)
–

6,781,030
–
2,717,020
459,959
(75,000)
(18,141)
(10,665,000)

(22,479,613)

115,000

–

(19,703)

9,806,602

–
(165,000)
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

1,141,858
233,333
157,000
135,750

Shares issued
Treasury stock
Warrants issued
Options issued
Share issuance costs
Other comprehensive loss
Net loss, 2007 (restated)
Balance, December 31, 2007
(restated)
Shares issued for cash
Shares issued for settlement
Shares issued for services
Shares issued for compensation
Shares issued for settlement of due
to related parties
Shares issued for cash pursuant to
exercise of warrants
Warrants issued for cash
Warrants issued for settlement of
due to related parties

8,362,000
(276,545)
–
–
–
–
–

836
(27)
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
(9,500)
–
–
(9,500)

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

(566,623)
25,000
50,496
(399,028)
(890,155)

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

2,604,505
(725,000)
(584,879)
404,471

69,545,988

6,955

32,183,963

8,349,167
2,833,333
1,450,000
875,000

835
283
145
87

1,141,023
398,050
156,855
135,663

–
–
–
–

1,200,000

120

107,880

–

–

–

–

108,000

500,000
–

50
–

74,950
260,642

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

75,000
260,642

–

–

192,000

–

–

–

–

192,000

(2008 continued on next page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY)
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Cumulative for the period from June 15, 1996 (date of inception) to December 31, 2010 (Cont’d)
Common Stock

Number of
Shares

Amount
$

Balance, (carried forward)
Warrants issued for services
Options issued for services
Share issuance costs
Shares to be returned
Other comprehensive loss
Net loss, 2008 (restated, note 3)
Prior period adjustment

15,207,500
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

1520
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Balance, December 31, 2008
(restated)
Shares issued for cash
Shares issued for services
Shares issued for compensation
Shares issued for property
Warrants issued for cash
Warrants issued for services
Options issued for services
Share issuance costs
Shares returned
Accumulated comprehensive loss
Net loss, 2009 (restated, note 3)

84,753,488

8,475

Balance December 31, 2009
(restated)
Shares issued for cash
Shares issued for services
Warrants issued for cash
Warrants issued for services
Share issuance costs
Beneficial conversion feature
Accumulated comprehensive loss
Net loss, 2010

91,597,686

9,160

4,038,237
3,092,094
–
–
–
–
–
–

404
309
–
–
–
–
–
–

Balance December 31, 2010

98,728,017

9,873

4,729,198
2,490,000
175,000
550,000
–
–
–
–
(1,100,000)
–
–

473
249
18
55
–
–
–
–
(110)
–
–

Additional
Paid-in
Capital
$

Deficit
Accumulated
During the
Exploration
Stage
$

2,467,063
44,600
82,200
(6,562)
–
–
–
–
34,771,264
489,232
347,909
14,857
208,945
728,771
1,442,484
24,134
(54,877)
(201,390)
–
–
37,771,329
468,298
790,076
264,298
274,067
(26,497)
99,841
–
–

Accumulated
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)
$

Treasury
Stock
$

(165,000)
–
–
–
(67,500)
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
77,949
–
–

12,110,185
44,600
82,200
(6,562)
(67,500)
77,949
(3,969,299)
(417,477)

(26,866,389)

(117,500)

–

58,246

7,854,096

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(4,869,372)

–
–
–
(209,000)
–
–
–
–
117,500
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(17,742)
–

489,705
348,158
14,875
–
728,771
1,442,484
24,134
(54,877)
(84,000)
(17,742)
(4,869,372)

(31,735,762)

(209,000)

–

40,504

5,876,231

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
(19,150)
–

468,702
790,385
264,298
274,067
(26,497)
99,841
(19,150)
(4,318,318)

–

21,354

3,409,559

(36,054,080)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

(209,000)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Total
Stockholders'
Equity
$

(22,479,613
–
–
–
–
–
(3,969,299)
(417,477)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(4,318,318)

39,641,412

Stock
Subscription
$

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(AN EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, and
cumulative for the period from June 15, 1996 (date of inception) to December 31, 2010

2010

2009
(restated,
note 3)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Net loss
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Net (gain)/loss from equity investment
Gain on recognition of embedded derivative
Shares issued for services
Warrants and options issued for services
Beneficial conversion feature
Write-down of mineral rights
Write-down of assets
Other
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Deferred expenses
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Other
Net cash used in operating activities

$

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in mineral rights
Additional contribution to Sino-Top
Acquisition of plant and equipment
Other
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

(4,318,318) $
(4,318,318)
92,687
(93,410)
(261,000)
790,385
274,067
99,841
2,504,559
197,810
-

99,248
663,441
(144,000)
279,033
1,466,615
906,750
-

524,840
667,730
8,473,121
3,608,212
99,841
3,411,309
240,063
(1,630,814)

(80,931)
143,304
(196,828)

362,668
(273,822)
(57,691)

$

(847,834) $

(1,451,748) $

$

(15,564) $
65,451
49,887

- $
(893,398)
(893,398)

(1,920,441)
(3,446,189)
(981,486)
4,364,090
(4,838,592)

733,000
(26,497)
260,256
(350,000)
170,000
786,759

$

(29,697)
(40,885)
137,448
96,563 $

1,218,476
(54,877)
10,000
(34,497)
166,623
1,305,725
(30,358)
(1,069,779)
1,207,227
137,448 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
8

(36,054,080)
302,755
(35,751,325)

158,706
2,330,339
278,631
665,601
(17,273,746)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and warrants
Share issuance costs
Related party loans payable
Repayments of related party advances
Minority interest
Promissory note payable
Write-down of promissory note payable
Payment of notes payable
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes payable
Other
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitie s
Effect of change in foreign exchange
Change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period

(4,869,372) $
(4,869,372)

For the period
from June 15,
1996 (date of
inception)
through
December 31,
2010

17,897,492
(197,936)
1,192,922
(462,557)
253,021
516,623
(350,000)
3,581
148,493
(63,190)
19,288,449
65,886
96,563
96,563

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
1. Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation
Silver Dragon Resources Inc. was incorporated on May 9, 1996 in the State of Delaware and its executive office is in Toronto, Canada. It carries out
operations through a subsidiary and affiliate in Mexico and China. Silver Dragon Resources Inc. and its subsidiary and affiliates (collectively referred
to as “Silver Dragon” or the “Company”) are in the exploration stage as defined by Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) Accounting
Standard Codification (“ASC”) 915 “Accounting and Reporting For Development Stage Entities.”
The Company’s strategy is to acquire and develop a portfolio of silver properties in proven silver districts globally. To date, the Company has
generated no sales and has devoted its efforts primarily to financing, by issuing common shares, and to exploring its properties. The accompanying
consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared following generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (“U.S.
GAAP”), which are expressed in United States funds.
2. Going Concern and Exploration Stage Activities
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP applicable to a going concern, which assumes that the
Company will be able to meet its obligations and continue its operations for its next twelve months.
At December 31, 2010, the Company had a working capital deficiency of $1,734,363, had not yet achieved profitable operations, incurred a net loss
of $4,318,318 for the year ended December 31, 2010 (2009 – $4,869,372), has accumulated losses of $36,054,080 since its inception, and expects to
incur further losses in the development of its business. These factors, in addition to the write-off of the Company’s Mexican assets, cast doubt as to
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, which is dependent upon its ability to obtain the necessary financing to repay liabilities when
they come due, and in the long-run is dependent upon achieving profitable operations. Management believes that the Company will be able to obtain
additional funds by equity financing; however, there is no assurance of additional funding being available or available on acceptable terms.
Realization values may be substantially different from carrying values as shown. These consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments to reflect the future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the amounts and classification of liabilities that may result
if the Company were unable to continue as a going concern.
3. Write-off of Mexican assets and prior period adjustment
As described more fully below, the Company has written off the book value of its mineral rights in Mexico, as well as related liabilities, due to
adverse court judgments in Mexico. The net amount written off in 2010 is $2,335,289 (see note (b) below). In addition, 2009 results were restated
which had the effect of increasing the deficit accumulated during the exploration stage by $1,424,201, and increasing the net loss in 2009 by
$1,006,724, for an increase in the net loss per share in 2009 by $0.01 (see below). The 2008 results were also restated which had the effect of
increasing the net loss in 2008 by 417,447.
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SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
3. Write-off of Mexican assets and prior period adjustment (cont’d)
Prior period figures have been restated as follows:
Consolidated Balance Sheet
2009
As previously
reported

Adjustment

2009
As restated

Notes

Mineral rights

$

3,045,745

$

(556,750) $

2,488,995

a

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Promissory notes payable

$
$
$

1,095,243
305,758
–

$
$
$

(110,708) $
461,536 $
516,623 $

984,535
767,294
516,623

b
a, b
a, b

Deficit accumulated during the exploration stage

$

(30,311,561) $

(1,424,201) $

(31,735,762)

2009

Cumulative

As
restated

As restated

a, b

Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
2009
As
previously
reported

Adjustment

Notes

Write-off of Mexican assets

$

–

$

(906,750)

$

(906,750)

$

(906,750)

a

Other (expenses) income
Interest expense

$

–

$

(99,974)

$

(99,974)

$

(594,909)

b

Net loss

$ (3,862,649)

$ (1,006,723)

$ (4,869,372)

$ (31,735,762)

a, b

Net loss per common share – Basic and diluted

$

$

$

(0.04)

(0.02)

(0.06)

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
2009
As
previously
reported
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss from continuing
operations
Promissory note payable
Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Cash flows from investing activities
Write-down of mineral rights

Adjustment

2009

Cumulative

As
restated

As restated

$ (3,862,649) $ (1,006,723) $ (4,869,372) $ (31,735,762)
$
– $
166,623 $
166,623 $
516,623
$
$

(107,199) $
(42,283) $

$

–
10

$

(166,623) $
99,974 $
906,750

$

(273,822) $
57,691 $
906,750

$

Notes

b
b

2,187,035
475,459

b
a, b

906,750

a

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
3. Write-off of Mexican assets and prior period adjustment (cont’d)
a)

Seizure of 15 mining concessions in Mexico: write-off of Mexican assets and restatement

On March 2, 2006, Silver Dragon Mexico acquired 15 mining concessions from four individuals by entering into various assignment agreements.
In December 2010 the Silver Dragon Resources Inc. became aware of various matters that transpired between 2006 and 2010, that resulted in its
concessions being seized without notice to the Company.
In Durango, Mexico, on August 18, 2006 a former representative of Silver Dragon Mining de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. (“Silver Dragon Mexico” or
“SDM”) signed a promissory note for a principal amount of $350,000 for a vendor, from whom the Company had purchased 10 of the 15
aforementioned mining concessions, due March 5, 2008. The actions of the Company’s former legal representative were not authorized by the Silver
Dragon Resources Inc. and he did not advise the Company about signing the promissory note, nor its terms. There was no valid commercial reason
for the promissory note to have been signed, but it nonetheless became an obligation of Silver Dragon Mexico.
On April 21, 2008 the vendor filed a lawsuit in Mexico against Silver Dragon Mexico claiming payment of $350,000 and as ordinary interest at an
annual rate of 10%, interest on past due and unpaid principal at an interest rate of 5% per month, as well as legal expenses. On October 10, 2008,
Silver Dragon Mexico’s former legal representative was officially notified of the lawsuit through the former legal representative, but the
representative did not advise Silver Dragon Mexico nor the Company. The vendor then seized the ten mining concessions that the Company had
originally purchased from the vendor in 2006.
During this time, the Company had no knowledge of what had transpired. On November 28, 2008, the former legal representative appeared before
the court on behalf of Silver Dragon Mexico to receive notifications, but did not advise the Company. Since Silver Dragon Mexico never appeared
before the court to reply to the lawsuit, Silver Dragon Mexico was declared in default and lost its opportunity to offer evidence in its favor.
On January 8, 2009, the court passed final sentence ordering Silver Dragon Mexico to pay to the vendor the principal amount plus interest and legal
costs. On January 16, 2009 the Company’s former legal representative was formally notified of the sentence, but did not advise the Company. Since
Silver Dragon Mexico never appealed the final sentence, on February 10, 2009 the Court declared the sentence as final and irrevocable.
On March 30, 2009 the former legal representative of Silver Dragon Mexico, appeared again before the court to appoint an expert to appraise the
mining concessions to be sold on a public auction. The appraisal of that expert was similar to the vendor’s appraisal. On May 29, 2009 by public
auction the mining concessions were granted to the vendor as payment of the owed principal amount and its corresponding interest, on June 25, 2009
the Court approved the auction.
On August 19, 2009, the vendor filed a motion before the court to request a further seizure of the assets of Silver Dragon Mexico to guarantee the
remaining amount, which the court granted on October 2, 2009. On June 16, 2010 the vendor filed a motion before the court to request a further
seizure of the assets of Silver Dragon Mexico to guarantee the payment of ordinary interest at a rate of 10% which at that date represented an amount
of $45,739, interest on past due and unpaid principal at an interest rate of 5% per month, plus legal expenses of $100,000. On November 5, 2010 this
petition of the vendor was granted by the court, and the Company’s remaining Mexican five concessions were seized.
Throughout this whole process the former legal representative never advised Silver Dragon Mexico or the Company of the existence of the
promissory note nor the subsequent court actions.
11

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
3. Write-off of Mexican assets and prior period adjustment (cont’d)
He also accepted court service numerous times on behalf of Silver Dragon Mexico as mentioned earlier to enforce payment of the note, but similarly
did not advise Silver Dragon Mexico of this. In summary, from the Company’s perspective, the legal proceedings were heard and decided on an ex
parte basis, without notice to the Company, nor allowing proper defense and representation of Silver Dragon Mining Mexico.
In December 2010, the Company became aware of this situation. The Company’s counsel in Mexico has filed a Constitutional Rights Claim before
the Federal Court in the City of Durango, premised on procedural irregularities in the foreclosure proceedings, for the purposes of re-opening the
case. On January 17, 2011, Silver Dragon Mexico provided certain evidence in connection with the claims to the court, which is currently reviewing
the documentation. The Company expects the court to schedule a hearing within two months.
The Company has restated prior year results to reflect the original promissory note of $350,000 and the interest on the promissory note of $319,906
from prior years. However, since the Company has lost title to the 15 concessions in Mexico, pursuant to court judgments, management has decided
to write-off the book value of these concessions of $3,411,309, of which $906,750 was written off in the restated December 31, 2009 financial
statements. In 2010, the Company also wrote-off the promissory note and interest due on the promissory note as all obligations were fulfilled as part
of the court order to repossess title to the 15 concessions.
b)

Promissory note: restatement

In late 2010 the Company became aware of another situation involving the same former legal representative. In November 2010, the Company and
Silver Dragon Mexico approached certain suppliers in order to arrange payment of the Company’s outstanding accounts payable. Agreements were
reached in most cases. One of Silver Dragon Mexico’s creditors did not respond to the request, however, an individual purporting to represent that
creditor subsequently emailed the Company in December 2010 requesting payment for an amount that was more than triple the amount of the debt
and asserted that it was pursuant to a promissory note signed by Silver Dragon Mexico and a court decision related to the promissory note in Mexico.
On January 17, 2011 the Company received a copy of the promissory note. It was dated April 24, 2008 and was for a principal amount of $166,623
and carried interest at a rate of 5% per month. It was signed by the same former legal representative of Silver Dragon Mexico. His actions were not
authorized by the Company, and he did not advise the Company about the promissory note, or the subsequent court actions.
He also accepted court service several times on behalf of Silver Dragon Mexico to enforce payment of the note, but similarly did not advise Silver
Dragon Mexico or the Company of this. There was no valid commercial reason for the promissory note to have been signed, but it nonetheless
became an obligation of Silver Dragon Mexico.
The Company is in the process of investigating this matter and has determined that in April 2010 the creditor had obtained a judgment from a court in
Chihuahua, Mexico, in its favor, for payments under the promissory note that the creditor asserts aggregates $408,226 with interest, as well as a
further 10% for its legal fees. The Company has restated results from prior years to reflect the original promissory note of $166,623 and the interest
on the promissory note of $99,974 and $141,630 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a) Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary Silver Dragon Mining De Mexico S.A.
de C.V (a Mexico corporation) All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation. The Company’s
ownership of 40% of Sanhe Sino-Top Resources & Technology, Ltd. (a China corporation) (“Sino-Top”) is recorded on the equity basis.
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SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
b) Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. These estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events and
actions the Company may undertake in the future. Significant areas requiring the use of estimates relate to the estimated useful lives of plant and
equipment, valuation of mineral rights, and stock-based compensation. Actual results could differ from these estimates. These estimates are reviewed
periodically and as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in earnings in the period in which they become available.
c) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of deposits held in financial institutions and liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at
the time of purchase.
d) Financial instruments
The Company classifies all financial instruments as held-for-trading or other financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost.
Instruments classified as held for trading are measured at fair value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in the statement of operations. Debt
transaction costs are allocated to the related debt and amortized over the life of the loan using the effective interest method. Equity transaction costs
are recorded in equity.
The Company has designated its cash and cash equivalents as held for trading, which is measured at fair value. Accounts payable, accrued liabilities,
convertible notes payable and related party payables are classified as other liabilities, which are measured at amortized cost.
e) Mineral rights
The Company records its interest in mineral rights at cost. Accordingly, costs associated with the acquisition and development of mineral reserves are
capitalized. Exploration costs are expensed as incurred.
Capitalized costs of mineral properties are amortized using the unit-of-production method using estimates of proved reserves. Investments in
unproved properties and major exploration and development projects are not amortized until proved reserves associated with the projects can be
determined or until impairment occurs. If the results of an assessment indicate that a property is impaired, the capitalized cost of that property will be
charged to expense at that time. The Company presently has no proven reserves. Where estimates of future net cash flows are not available and where
other conditions suggest impairment, management assesses whether the carrying values can be recovered. If the carrying values exceed estimated
recoverable values, then the costs are written-down to fair values with the write-down expensed in the period. The Company evaluates the carrying
amounts of its mineral rights when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
f) Equity investment
The Company exercises significant influence but does not exercise control over its equity investment, Sino-Top. It is accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and is initially recognized at cost. The Company’s share of the entity’s profits or losses is recognized in the statement of
operations, and cumulative post-acquisition changes in the investment are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Were the
Company’s share of losses on its investment to equal or exceed the carrying amount of the investment, the Company would then only recognize
further losses if it incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the equity investment.
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SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
g) Income taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC 740, “Income Taxes.” Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded for
differences between the consolidated financial statements and tax basis of the assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in
the future based on enacted tax laws and rates. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount
expected to be realized. Income tax expense is recorded for the amount of income tax payable or refundable for the period, increased or decreased by
the change in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the period.
h) Revenue recognition
The Company has not earned revenues from its planned principal operations. Revenues incidental to the planned principal operations will be
recognized as follows: Revenues from the provision of mine exploration services are recognized when the services are performed and collection is
reasonably assured. Revenues from the sale of silver and other byproducts are recognized when title and risk of ownership of metal and metal bearing
concentrates passes to the buyer and collection is reasonably assured.
i) Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost. Equipment awaiting installation on site is not depreciated until it is commissioned. Depreciation is based on
the estimated useful life of the asset and depreciated annually as follows:
Category

Rate
30%

Computer hardware
30%
Computer software
20%
Vehicles
20%
Office equipment
20%
Mine equipment
Leasehold improvements

5 years

Method
Declining
balance
Declining
balance
Declining
balance
Declining
balance
Declining
balance
Straight line

j) Loss per share
Basic loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted
earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding plus potentially
dilutive securities outstanding for each year. The computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share has not been presented as its effect would be antidilutive.
k) Stock-based compensation
From time to time the Company grants warrants to management, directors, employees and consultants. The Company recognizes compensation
expense for this plan at fair value. Under this method, the fair value of each warrant is estimated on the date of the grant and amortized over the
vesting period, with the resulting amortization credited to contributed surplus. The fair value of each grant is determined using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. Consideration paid upon the exercise of stock options is recorded as share capital.
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SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
l) Asset retirement obligations
The Company recognizes liabilities for statutory, contractual or legal obligations associated with the reclamation of mineral properties. Initially, a
liability for an asset retirement obligation is recognized at its fair value in the period in which it is incurred and the corresponding asset retirement
cost is added to the carrying amount of the related asset. The cost is amortized over the economic life of the asset using either the unit-of-production
method or the straight-line method, as appropriate. Following the initial recognition of the asset retirement obligation, the carrying amount of the
liability is adjusted for changes to the amount or timing of the underlying cash flows needed to settle the obligation. As at December 31, 2010, the
Company had not incurred any asset retirement obligations related to the exploration of its mineral properties.
m) Impairment of long lived assets
In accordance with ASC 360, "Property, Plant and Equipment", long lived assets to be held and used are analyzed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
The Company evaluates at each balance sheet date whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate possible impairment. If there are
indications of impairment, the Company uses future undiscounted cash flows of the related asset or asset grouping over the remaining life in
measuring whether the carrying amounts are recoverable. In the event such cash flows are not expected to be sufficient to recover the recorded asset
values, the assets are written down to their estimated fair value.
n) Comprehensive Loss
The Company accounts for comprehensive loss in accordance with ASC 220, “Comprehensive Income,” which establishes standards for reporting
and presentation of comprehensive loss and its components. Comprehensive loss is presented in the statements of stockholders' equity, and consists
of net loss and foreign currency translation adjustments.
o) Foreign currency translation
The Company accounts for foreign currency translation pursuant to ASC 830, "Foreign Currency Matters". The Company's functional currency is
United States dollars. For operations in Mexico, the local currency is the functional currency. All assets and liabilities denominated in Mexican Pesos
are translated into United States dollars using the current exchange rate. Revenues and expenses are translated using average exchange rates during
the year. Foreign exchange gains or losses are included in other comprehensive income for the period. The functional currency of the equity
investment in China is United States dollars. Net income or loss recorded on the equity basis is translated using average exchange rates during the
year.
5. Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-06, “Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements” (“ASU 2010-6”). The standard amends
ASC Topic 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures” to require additional disclosures related to transfers between levels in the hierarchy of
fair value measurements. ASU 2010-6 is effective for interim and annual fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2009. The standard does not
change how fair values are measured, accordingly the standard will not have an impact on the Company.
In February 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-09, “Subsequent Events (Topic 855); Amendments to Certain Recognition and Disclosure
Requirements” (“ASU 2010-9”). The standard amends Subtopic 855-10, “Subsequent Events” to remove the requirement for a SEC filer to disclose
the date through which subsequent events have been evaluated. ASU 2010-9 is effective upon issuance of the final update. The Company does not
expect the adoption of ASU 2010-09 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
5. Recent Accounting Pronouncements (cont’d)
In July 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-20, “Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and the Allowance for Credit
Losses” (“ASU 2010-20”). The standard amends ASC Topic 310, “Receivables ” to enhance disclosures about the credit quality of financing
receivables and the allowance for credit losses by requiring an entity to provide a greater level of disaggregated information and to disclose credit
quality indicators, past due information, and modifications of its financing receivables. ASU 2010-20 is effective for interim and annual fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2010 for public entities. The Company does not expect the adoption of ASU 2010-20 to have a material impact on its
consolidated financial statements.
The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There have been a number of ASUs to date that amend the original text of ASC.
Except for the ASUs listed above, those issued to date either (i) provide supplemental guidance, (ii) are technical corrections, (iii) are not applicable
to the Company or (iv) are not expected to have a significant impact on the Company.
6. Deferred Expenses
During the year ended December 31, 2010, $220,125 of the fair value of shares issued for services, pursuant to consulting agreements greater than a
year, remained to be amortized over the remaining period of those agreements.
7. Plant and Equipment, net
Accumulated
depreciation

Cost
Computer hardware
Computer software
Vehicles
Office equipment
Mine equipment
Leasehold improvements

$

40,559
–
–
45,720
–
195,667
281,946

$

$

$

28,354
–
–
24,110
–
138,607
191,071

2010
Net book
value
$

12,205
–
–
21,610
–
57,060
90,875

$

2009
Net book
value
$

$

In 2010, the Company wrote off the net book value of its Mexican assets in the amount of $152,687.
8. Mineral Rights
Cerro Las
Minitas
Mexico
Balance, December 31, 2008
Additions during 2009
Prior period adjustment (note 3)
Write-off during 2009 (note 3)
Balance, December 31, 2009
Additions during 2010
Write-off during 2010 (note 3)
Balance, December 31, 2010

$

$
16

3,045,745
–
350,000
(906,750)
2,488,995
15,564
(2,504,559)
–

21,271
45,122
10,103
33,845
160,050
100,434
370,825

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
8. Mineral Rights (cont’d)
Cerros Las Minitas, Mexico
The Cerros Las Minitas property is located 70 kilometers northeast of the City of Durango, capital of the state of Durango, and 6 kilometers
northwest of the town of Guadalupe Victoria, in the municipality of Guadalupe Victoria, Durango. The claims are located in the Minitas Mining
District in the Mining Region of Guadalupe Victoria. The property consists of 16 mining concessions encompassing 1,423 hectares (3,516 acres).
On August 12, 2010, Silver Dragon Mexico entered into an agreement with Ema Violante wherein Ms. Violante sold to Silver Dragon Mexico five
hectares of land for $15,564 in Guadalupe Victoria, Mexico to be used to build a tailings pond.
The Company decided to write-off its Mexican assets as set out in notes 3 and 16.
9. Equity Investment
On December 12, 2008, the Exploration Unit of North China Nonferrous Geological Exploration Bureau, also known as Huaguan Industrial Corp.
(“HIC”), acquired 50%, in addition to its previous 10%, of the Company’s equity interest in Sanhe Sino-Top Resources & Technologies Ltd., not
including the Erbahuo property, from the Company in exchange for Chinese Yuan 30 million (approximately $4.4 million). HIC and the Company
hold equity interest of 60% and 40%, respectively, in Sino-Top, whose assets mainly consist of six exploration properties. With respect to Erbahuo,
the seventh exploration property controlled by Sino-Top, it will be 70% beneficially owned by the Company and 30% by HIC. The proceeds have
been used to further develop the Company’s properties in China and Mexico.
2010
Equity investment, beginning of year
Additional investment and advances
Return of funds advanced
Share of income (loss) for the year
Equity investment, end of year

$

$

Share of income (loss) for the year:
Exploration expenses
General and administrative expenses
Gain on disposal of properties
Income taxes
Share of income (loss) for the year (at 40%)

$

$

2009

4,804,963 $
81,049
(146,500)
93,410
4,832,922 $

4,575,006
893,398
–
(663,441)
4,804,963

(1,351,294) $
(197,171)
1,684,096
(42,102)
93,410 $

(510,404)
(153,037)
–
–
(663,441)

10. Accrued Liabilities
During 2006, the Company purchased a 100% interest in 10 mining concessions in Mexico for $800,000 and the issuance of 450,000 restricted
common shares of the Company. The agreement stipulated that the 450,000 common shares issued have an aggregate minimum value of $450,000,
which obligates the Company to compensate for any shortfall in the share price on disposition. Accordingly, an embedded derivative of $ nil (2009 -$261,000) was recognized in accrued liabilities. The embedded derivative was written off in 2010 as the Company was no longer obligated to
compensate for a shortfall, as per the loss of title to the Mexican mining concessions (see note 3).
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11. Promissory Note Payable
In 2008, a promissory note was signed with a vendor in the amount of $166,623 with a carried interest rate of 5% per month, unsecured, and no
maturity date. The Company became aware of the promissory note in 2010 and has since restated previously reported figures (see note 3). During the
year ended December 31, 2010 the Company incurred interest of $93,517 (2009 - $99,974).
12. Convertible Notes Payable
During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company issued three convertible notes with principal amounts aggregating $170,000. The notes bear
interest of 8% per annum, are unsecured, and are due on March 21, April 22, and August 11, 2011, respectively. The notes are convertible into
common stock, at the lender’s option, at a discount to the average of the three lowest closing prices of the common stock during the 10 trading day
period prior to conversion. The lender has agreed to restrict its ability to convert the notes and receive shares of common stock, such that the number
of shares of common stock held by them and their affiliates in the aggregate, after such conversion or exercise, does not exceed 4.99% of the then
issued and outstanding shares of common stock. The Company recorded an expense of $99,841 as the value of the beneficial conversion feature of
the convertible notes payable.
13. Related Party Transactions and Balances
2010
Remuneration payable
Advances

$
$

213,040
47,216
260,256

2009
$
$

–
–
–

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company incurred $288,000 (2009 – $288,000) in management fees, paid to a company controlled by
a director, for Chief Executive Officer services rendered.
Amounts due to related parties (Chief Executive Officer and Vice President, China) are unsecured, non-interest bearing and payable on demand.
14. Capital Stock
On January 20, 2009, the Company issued 600,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to an investor relations
agreement dated January 20, 2009, for fair value of $57,000.
On January 21, 2009, the Company issued 650,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to an investor relations
agreement dated January 15, 2009, for fair value of $61,750.
On January 23, 2009, the Company cancelled 250,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock, which were initially issued on August 17,
2007 and requested to be returned and cancelled due to non-performance of contract terms.
On February 4, 2009, the Company issued 100,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to an employee of the Company, in relation to
the facilitation of the mill purchase, for fair value of $10,000.
On February 6, 2009, the Company issued 300,000 options, to an individual, to purchase shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an
exercise price of $0.10, exercisable for a period of three years from contract date. The options were issued pursuant to a management consulting
agreement dated February 6, 2009, for fair value of $21,559.
On February 12, 2009, the Company issued 40,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to an individual, in relation to investor relations
services provided, for fair value of $3,608.
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14. Capital Stock (cont’d)
On May 1, 2009, the Company issued 175,000 of the Company's restricted common stock to an individual, pursuant to a one-year accounting
services contract for fair value of $14,875.
On May 15, 2009, the Company cancelled 50,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock, which were initially issued on April 2, 2007,
and subsequently returned and cancelled due to non-payment of $50,000.
On June 18, 2009, the Company issued 500,000 of the Company’s restricted common stock to an individual in lieu of payment owed relating to
services provided in a prior year, for fair value of $55,000.
On June 22, 2009, an individual forfeited warrants originally exercisable at any time during a five year period from March 1, 2007, to purchase
100,000 shares of restricted common stock at $2.50 per share and 100,000 shares of restricted common stock at $3.00 per share. New warrants were
issued to the individual pursuant to an extension to their respective service contract, originally signed March 1, 2007. The new warrants were issued
to purchase 100,000 shares of restricted common stock at $0.12 per share and 100,000 shares at $0.24 per share expiring on March 1, 2012.
On July 16, 2009, the Company closed a private placement totaling 200,000 units at $0.10 per unit for gross proceeds of $20,000. Each unit consists
of one common share and one $0.25 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a two year period from the date of the closing of the private
placement.
On September 25, 2009, the Company issued 600,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to an investor
relations agreement dated September 25, 2009, for fair value of $160,800.
On September 30, 2009, the Company closed a private placement totaling 250,000 units at $0.20 per unit for gross proceeds of $50,000. Each unit
consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a two year period from the date of the closing of the
private placement. In October 2009, the Company closed private placements totaling 400,000 units at $0.20 per unit for gross proceeds of $80,000.
Each unit consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a two year period from the date of the closing
of the respective private placements.
On October 13, 2009, the Company issued warrants, to a board member, to purchase 250,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an
exercise price of $0.25, exercisable for a period of two years from the date of issuance, for fair value of $38,475.
On October 14, 2009, the Company issued warrants, to an individual, to purchase 30,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an
exercise price of $0.25, exercisable for a period of two years from contract date. The warrants were issued pursuant to a management consulting
agreement dated October 14, 2009, for fair value of 4,500.
On November 1, 2009, the Company issued warrants, to two Strategic Advisory Board members and a consulting group, to purchase 5,100,000
shares of the Company’s restricted common stock for a period of five years from the date of issuance. The warrants allow for 600,000 shares to be
purchased at an exercise price of $0.25 and 4,500,000 shares to be purchased at an exercise price of $0.50. The warrants were issued pursuant to two
appointments to the Strategic Advisory Board of the Company on October 13, 2009, for fair value of $1,215,000.
On November 3, 2009, the Company closed a private placement totaling 40,000 units at $0.25 per unit for gross proceeds of $10,000. Each unit
consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a two year period from the date of the closing of the
private placement.
On November 16, 2009, the Company issued 550,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to an individual, pursuant to an agreement to
purchase further mining concessions. As at December 31, 2010, the agreement had not been finalized and the Company continues to hold possession
of the shares until final terms of the agreement have been reached.
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14. Capital Stock (cont’d)
Between November and December 2009, the Company closed private placements totaling 3,728,484 units at $0.28 per unit for gross proceeds of
$1,043,976. Each unit consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of
the closing of the respective private placements.
On December 21, 2009, an individual exercised 100,000 options to purchase shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at a per share price of
$0.115 for gross proceeds of $11,500.
On December 21, 2009, the Company issued warrants, to two individuals, to purchase 2,500 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an
exercise price of $0.50, exercisable for a period of one year from the date of issuance, for fair value of $430.
On December 31, 2009, the Company cancelled 800,000 restricted shares of the Company’s stock that were initially issued on November 14, 2008,
due to non-performance of contract terms.
On January 22, 2010, the Company issued warrants, to an organization, to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an
exercise price of $0.50, exercisable for a period of three years from the contract date. The warrants were issued pursuant to a consulting agreement
dated January 22, 2010, for fair value of $39,380.
On January 25, 2010, the Company issued 200,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to a consulting
agreement dated January 25, 2010, for fair value of $63,200.
On February 1, 2010, the Company issued 25,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to an investor relations
agreement dated February 1, 2010, for fair value of $7,500. The Company also issued warrants to purchase 150,000 shares of the Company’s
restricted common stock at an exercise price of $0.30, exercisable for a period of one year from the contract date, for fair value of 20,355.
On February 1, 2010, an individual exercised 100,000 options to purchase shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at a per share price of
$0.10 for gross proceeds of $10,000.
On February 3, 2010, the Company closed a private placement totaling 803,571 units at $0.28 per unit for gross proceeds of $225,000. Each unit
consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the
private placement.
On March 1, 2010, the Company issued 25,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to the investor relations
agreement dated February 1, 2010 for fair value of $7,500.
On March 13, 2010 the Company settled the outstanding debt of $100,000 with Minera Real Victoria through the issuance of 360,000 shares of the
Company’s restricted common stock.
On March 24, 2010, the Company closed a private placement totaling 500,000 units at $0.20 per unit for gross proceeds of $100,000. Each unit
consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the
private placement.
On April 1, 2010, the Company issued 25,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to the investor relations
agreement dated February 1, 2010 for fair value of $7,000.
On April 12, 2010, the Company made an addendum to a consulting agreement dated January 22, 2010 and issued additional warrants, to an
organization, to purchase 180,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise price of $0.50, exercisable for a period of one
year from the date of issuance, for fair value of 21,834.
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14. Capital Stock (cont’d)
On April 15, 2010, the Company issued warrants to purchase 50,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise price of $0.50,
exercisable for a period of two years from the date of issuance to an operations manager of the Company in China, for fair value of $9,095.
On April 15, 2010, the Company issued warrants to purchase 50,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise price of $0.50,
exercisable for a period of two years from the date of issuance to a geologist in China, for fair value of 9,095.
On May 1, 2010, the Company issued 25,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to the investor relations
agreement dated February 1, 2010 for fair value of $8,000.
On May 14, 2010, the Company closed a private placement totaling 300,000 units at $0.28 per unit for gross proceeds of $84,000. Each unit consists
of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the private
placement.
On May 25, 2010, the Company issued 75,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to a long-term consulting
agreement dated May 19, 2010, for fair value of $14,625. The Company also issued warrants to purchase 300,000 shares of the Company’s restricted
common stock at an exercise price of $0.28, exercisable for a period of one year from the issuance date, for fair value of 20,430.
On May 27, 2010, the Company closed a private placement totaling 1,250,000 units at $0.12 per unit for gross proceeds of $150,000. Each unit
consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the
private placement.
On June 1, 2010, the Company issued 375,000 of the Company’s restricted common stock to an individual, pursuant to a one-year accounting
services contract for fair value of $75,000.
On June 23, 2010, the Company issued 300,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to the investor relations
agreement dated June 23, 2010 for fair value of $74,850.
On September 1, 2010, the Company issued warrants to an individual to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an
exercise price of $0.18, exercisable for a period of two years from the contract date. The warrants were issued pursuant to a consulting agreement
dated September 1, 2010, for fair value of $20,426.
On September 8, 2010, the Company issued warrants to an individual to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an
exercise price of $0.18, exercisable for a period of three years from the contract date. The warrants were issued pursuant to a contract to provide
services as Chief Financial Officer, for fair value of $23,058.
On September 21, 2010, the Company issued 25,000 of the Company’s restricted common stock to an individual, pursuant to an employment
agreement dated September 21, 2010 for fair value of $6,250.
On September 28, 2010, the Company issued warrants, to a Director, to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an
exercise price of $0.25, exercisable for a period of three years from the contract date. The warrants were issued pursuant to the appointment of the
Director to the Company’s Board of Directors, for fair value of $32,704.
On October 1, 2010, the Company issued 300,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to an investor relations
agreement dated October 1, 2010 for fair value of $79,500.
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On October 4, 2010, the Company closed a private placement totaling 50,000 units at $0.20 per unit for gross proceeds of $10,000. Each unit consists
of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the private
placement.
On October 6, 2010, a Director of the Company subscribed to a private placement totaling 100,000 units at $0.28 per unit for gross proceeds of
$28,000. Each unit consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a two year period from the date of the
closing of the private placement.
On October 6, 2010, the Company issued 1,000,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to a Director pursuant to the renewal of an
employment agreement dated October 6, 2010, for fair value of $279,000.
On October 7, 2010, the Company issued warrants, to an individual, to purchase 50,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an
exercise price of $0.25, exercisable for a period of two years from the contract date. The warrants were issued pursuant to a consulting agreement
dated October 7, 2010, for fair value of $7,754.
On October 7, 2010, the Company issued 50,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock, to an individual, pursuant to an employment
agreement dated October 7, 2010, for fair value of $13,000. The Company also issued warrants to purchase 200,000 shares of the Company’s
restricted common stock at an exercise price of $0.25, exercisable for a period of one year from the contract date, for fair value of $31,015.
On October 8, 2010, the Company issued 100,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock, to an individual, as well as warrants to purchase
200,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock at an exercise price of $0.27, exercisable for a period of two years from the date of
issuance. The shares and warrants were issued pursuant to the appointment of the individual to the Strategic Advisory Board of the Company on
October 8, 2010, for fair value of $27,000 and $31,770, respectively.
On October 14, 2010, the Company closed a private placement totaling 50,000 units at $0.20 per unit for gross proceeds of $10,000. Each unit
consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the
private placement.
On October 15, 2010, the Company closed a private placement totaling 50,000 units at $0.20 per unit for gross proceeds of $10,000. Each unit
consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the
private placement.
On November 15, 2010, the Company closed a private placement totaling 33,333 units at $0.15 per unit for gross proceeds of $5,000. Each unit
consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the
private placement.
On November 29, 2010, the Company issued 6,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to an individual as a finder’s fee, for fair value
of $1,140.
On December 11, 2010, the Company closed a private placement totaling 33,333 units at $0.15 per unit for gross proceeds of $5,000. Each unit
consists of one common share and one $0.50 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a one year period from the date of the closing of the
private placement.
On December 21, 2010, the Company closed a private placement totaling 768,000 units at $0.125 per unit for gross proceeds of $96,000. Each unit
consists of one common share and one $0.25 per share purchase warrant exercisable within a three year period from the date of the closing of the
private placement.
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On December 21, 2010, pursuant to the signing of a term sheet proposing equity financing for the Company, the Company issued 201,094 shares of
the Company’s restricted common stock to a company, for fair value of $22,120.
On December 23, 2010, the Company issued warrants to purchase 100,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock, to a consultant for
assisting with a financing transaction, at an exercise price of $0.12, exercisable for a period of two years from the issuance date, for fair value of
$7,152.

Common share purchase warrants
Number of
warrants
Balance, December 31, 2008
Issued during the year
Exercised during the year
Forfeitures during the year
Expired during the year
Balance, December 31, 2009
Issued during the year
Exercised during the year
Forfeitures during the year
Expired during the year
Balance, December 31, 2010

8,570,667 $
10,211,698
(200,000)
(2,768,167)
15,814,198 $
6,018,237
(6,614,198)
15,218,237 $

Weighted
average
exercise price
1.49
0.47
2.75
2.78
0.58
0.40
0.50
0.55

As at December 31, 2010 the range of exercise prices of the outstanding warrants were as follows:

Range of

Number of warrants

Average remaining
contractual life

Weighted average
exercise price

$0.12 - $1.00
$1.01 - $2.00
$2.01 - $5.00

13,983,237
1,017,500
217,500
15,218,237

2.12 years
1.93 years
1.14 years
2.09 years

$0.46
$1.26
$2.93

Warrants were valued using the Black-Scholes model, using the weighted average key assumptions of volatility of 115% - 117%, a risk-free interest
rate of 0.22% - 1.39%, and a term equivalent to the life of the warrant.
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Options

Number of
options
Balance, December 31, 2008
Issued during the year
Exercised during the year
Expired during the year
Balance, December 31, 2009
Issued during the year
Exercised during the year
Expired during the year
Balance, December 31, 2010

1,152,000 $
300,000
(100,000)
(52,000)
1,300,000 $
(100,000)
(500,000)
700,000 $

Weighted
average exercise
price
0.68
0.10
0.115
2.50
0.48
0.10
0.21
0.70

As of December 31, 2010 the range of exercise prices of the outstanding options were as follows:

Range of
$0.20 - $1.00

Average remaining
contractual life
1.48 years

Number of options
700,000

Weighted
average exercise
price
$0.70

15. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Supplemental Disclosures
For the year ended December 31, 2010 there were no cash payments or receipts for income taxes (2009 - $ nil). Cash payments for interest expense
amounted to $ nil (2009 - $ nil).
16. Litigation
a)

China

In December, 2010, shareholders of the Company received a letter from a shareholder which contained two items. The first was a copy of a legal
proceeding filed in Langfang District court, China and the second was a letter making certain allegations regarding the Company and its
management.
The Langfang District Court proceeding was filed by two shareholders and seeks to invalidate the Company’s sale in 2008 of 50% of Sanhe SinoTop Resources & Technologies, Ltd. After consulting with Chinese legal counsel, the Company believed that the Langfang proceeding had been filed
in an improper jurisdiction and was, in any event, frivolous and wholly without merit. The sale in question was made to a Chinese governmentowned entity, after the receipt of approval by the Ministry of Commerce in China. On January 17, 2011, the Company’s counsel advised that the
Langfang proceeding will be transferred to the Beijing Second Intermediate Court. A trial date has not been set.
The second item was a letter purporting to be written by a “Minority Shareholder Committee”, which invested in the Company in 2006. The letter
claimed that the Minority Shareholder Committee initiated the Langfang proceeding. The letter alleged that the Company and its management had
engaged in various improper and illegal activities since 2005. The allegations made in the letter were similar to allegations that had been repeatedly
made and published by an individual over the past three years. The Company, on several occasions, through its legal counsel in several countries, had
asked that individual to cease and desist. On August 11, 2010 the Company’s Hong Kong counsel sent a final request letter to cease and desist and to
comply with certain demands.
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Silver Dragon believes that the allegations made are false and unsubstantiated. The Company believes that the continuous pursuance of such
allegations and publication of libelous statements with respect to Silver Dragon and its management are malicious and calculated to defame and
discredit the Company and its management, as well as to damage their reputation. On February 11, 2011, Silver Dragon filed a Writ of Summons in
the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, Court of First Instance claiming damages for libel, damages, interest and an
injunction in connection with emails, messages, and letters published or caused to be published.
b)

Mexico Mineral Rights

The Company’s Mexican subsidiary has been subjected to irregularities in Mexico that it is seeking to redress. SDM is obligated to pay for a shortfall
in the value of shares given in consideration for a 2006 purchase of mineral rights from a vendor. In the city of Durango, Mexico, on August 18, 2006
the then-legal representative of SDM signed a promissory note on behalf of SDM in the amount $350,000 to that vendor, due March 5, 2008. The
actions of the former legal representative were not authorized by SDM, nor did he advise SDM about the promissory note. On April 21, 2008, the
vendor filed a lawsuit against SDM for repayment of the note and ordinary interest at an annual rate of 10%, interest on past due and unpaid principal
at an interest rate of 5% per month as well as for legal expenses. The legal proceedings were heard and decided on an ex parte basis, without notice to
SDM, nor allowing proper defense and representation. Indeed, the former legal representative accepted notification of the lawsuit on behalf of SDM,
but SDM was never advised. Since SDM did not respond to the lawsuit, it was declared in default and lost its opportunity to offer evidence in its
favor. Several times subsequently, the former legal representative accepted service on behalf of SDM but did not inform SDM of the situation, and
ultimately on June 25, 2009 by public auction, the ten mining concessions, originally purchased from the vendor, were granted to the vendor as
payment of the principal and interest due on the note. Subsequently, in 2010, additional assets of SDM, including five additional mining concessions
that were not acquired from the vendor, were also seized. In summary, the legal proceedings were heard and decided on an ex parte basis, without
notice to the Company, nor allowing proper defense and representation of Silver Dragon Mexico.
In December 2010, the Company became aware of this situation, and is now taking steps through the courts in Mexico to redress the situation. It has
commenced a Constitutional Rights Claim before the Federal Court in the City of Durango, premised on procedural irregularities in the foreclosure
proceedings, for the purposes of re-opening the case. On January 17, 2011, Silver Dragon Mexico provided certain evidence in connection with the
claims to the court, which is currently reviewing the documentation. Although the Company expects that it may eventually be successful with the
Constitutional Rights Claim, it has written off the book value of the concessions of $3,061,309 (see note 3 and 8).
c)

Mexico Accounts Payable

In late November 2010, Silver Dragon and SDM approached certain suppliers in order to arrange payment of the Company’s accounts payables.
Agreements were reached in most cases. One of SDM’ creditors did not respond to the request, however, an individual purporting to represent that
creditor subsequently emailed the Company in December 2010 requesting payment for an amount that was more than triple the amount of the debt
and asserted that it was pursuant to a promissory note signed by SDM and a court decision related to the promissory note in Mexico. On January 17,
2011 the Company received a copy of the promissory note. It was dated April 24, 2008 and was for a principal amount of $166,623 and carried
interest at a rate of 5% per month. It was signed by the same former legal representative of SDM, who was acting under a power of attorney at that
time. His actions were not authorized by SDM, and he did not advise SDM about the promissory note, nor the subsequent court actions. He also
accepted court service several times on behalf of SDM to enforce payment of the note, but similarly did not advise SDM of this.
Silver Dragon is in the process of investigating this matter and has determined that in April 2010 the creditor had obtained a judgment from a court in
Chihuahua, Mexico, in its favour, for payments under the promissory note that the creditor asserts aggregates $408,226 with interest, as well as a
further 10% for its legal fees. The Company is endeavoring to settle the matter directly with the creditor (see note 3).
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The Company's income tax provision has been calculated as follows:
2010
Loss before income taxes
Deferred: Expected income tax recovery at the combined average statutory rates of 32.58% (2009 –
33.39%)
Losses not available to carryforward
Change in valuation allowance

$

Provision for income taxes

$

2009
(restated)

(4,318,318) $

(4,869,372)

(1,406,832)
61,396
1,345,437

(1,625,711)
29,875
1,595,836

-

$

-

The following summarizes the principal temporary differences and related future tax
2010
Losses carried forward
Valuation allowance

$

Deferred income tax asset

$

2009

9,548,613 $
(9,548,613)
-

8,031,484
(8,031,484)

$

-

Potential benefits of income tax losses are not recognized in the accounts until realization is more likely than not. The Company has adopted SFAS
No. 109 and ASC 740 as of their inception. Pursuant to ASC 740 the Company is required to compute tax asset benefits for net operating losses
carried forward.
Potential benefits of net operating losses have not been recognized in these consolidated financial statements because the Company cannot be assured
it is more likely than not it will utilize the net operating losses carried forward in future years.
The Company's tax returns have not yet been filed and when they are filed will be subject to audit and potential penalties reassessment by taxation
authorities. The outcome of audits cannot be reasonably determined and the potential impact on the financial statements is not determinable.
18. Commitments and Contingencies
a) On April 1, 2007, the Company entered into a five year lease agreement for office space with an option to renew for an additional five years. The
future minimum commitment under the lease obligations for office premises are as follows:
2011
2012

$
$

56,767
14,192
70,959

In addition, the Company is required to pay its proportionate share of realty taxes and certain other occupancy costs under the terms of the lease.
b) Under an agreement with HIC, the Company has committed to provide capital contributions to cover expenses proportionate to its equity interest
in Sino-Top.
c) For other contingencies, please refer to Litigation, note 16.
19. Financial Instruments
Unless otherwise noted, it is management's opinion that the Company is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from the
financial instruments.
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SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
a)

Fair Value

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, accrued liabilities, promissory notes payable, convertible notes payable and
related party payables approximates fair value due to the short term nature of these items.
b)

Financial Risk

Financial risk is the risk that the Company's earnings are subject to fluctuations in interest risk or currency risk and are fully dependent upon the
volatility of these rates. The Company does not use derivative instruments to moderate its exposure to financial risk, if any.
c)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company does not have significant off-balance-sheet risk or credit concentration. The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents with
major financial institutions so considers the risk as minimal.
d) Currency Risk
While the reporting currency is the U.S. Dollar, 11% of consolidated expenses for the year ended December 31, 2010 are denominated in the
Mexican Peso. As at December 31, 2010, 0% of the assets and 45% of the liabilities are originally denominated in Mexican Pesos. The Company is
exposed to foreign exchange risk as the results of operations may be affected by fluctuations in the exchange rates between the U.S. Dollar and the
Mexican Peso.
The Company has not entered into any hedging transactions in an effort to reduce the exposure to currency risk.
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SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
20. Segmented Information
Canada

As at December 31, 2010
Mineral rights
Equity investment
Total assets

$
$
$

Mexico

4,832,922
5,443,743

$
$
$

Canada

Year ended December 31, 2010
Revenues
Depreciation
Loss before income tax

$
$
$

As at December 31, 2009
(restated)
Mineral rights
Equity investment
Total assets

$
$
$

Revenues
Depreciation
Loss before income tax

$
$
$

-

$
$
$

4,832,922
5,443,743

Mexico

Total

- $
54,008 $
(1,982,929) $

- $
38,679 $
(2,335,389) $

92,687
(4,318,318)

Canada

Mexico

Total

4,804,963
5,655,688

$
$
$

Canada

Year ended December 31, 2009
(restated)

Total

- $
53,358 $
(3,786,885) $

2,488,995
2,488,995

$
$
$

$ 2,488,995
$ 4,804,963
$ 8,144,683

Mexico

Total

- $
45,890 $
(1,082,487) $

99,248
(4,869,372)

The Canadian operation has an equity investment in a Chinese company, Sino-Top, whose assets mainly consist of six exploration properties in
China.
21.

Supplemental Disclosure

In the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss, for the period from June 15, 1996 to December 31, 2010, non-recurring
items consist of the following:

December
31,
2010

Non-recurring items
Development (non-mining)
Settlement with Cyper Entertainment, Inc.
Loss on disposal of asset
Loss on investment
Loss on sale of marketable securities

$

$
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-

For the period from
June 15,
1996 (date of
inception) to
December 31, 2010

December
31,
2009
$

$

-

$

$

(60,000)
(80,000)
(15,371)
(158,939)
(389,365)
(703,675)

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(An exploration stage company)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009
22. Subsequent Events
The following occurred subsequent to December 31, 2010 and before March 21, 2011, the date the financial statements were prepared:
Between January 3 and February 15, 2011 an investor elected to convert two outstanding notes payable totaling $120,000 plus accrued interest of
$3,000 and $1,800 respectively. The Company issued a total of 1,991,285 shares in lieu of a cash payment.
On January 18, 2011, the Company issued 50,000 shares of restricted common stock to a company, pursuant to the signing of a term sheet proposing
$2.5 million of convertible debt financing for the Company, for fair value of $5,000.
On January 25, 2011, the Company issued 1,410,000 common share purchase warrants to directors and consultants at an exercise price of $0.11
exercisable for a period of 3 years from the date of issuance.
On January 27, 2011, the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of Los Angeles entered an Order Approving Stipulation for
Settlement of in the matter entitled Socius CG II, Ltd. v. Silver Dragon Resources Inc. The order provides for settlement of Socius GC II, Ltd.’s
$405,981 claim against the Company. Socius purchased the claims from seven creditors of Silver Dragon. On January 28, 2011, the Company issued
9,000,000 shares of common stock to Socius. On March 2, 2011, Socius agreed to return for cancellation 3,116,104 shares. For further information
please see the Company Form 8-Ks filed January 28 and March 3, 2011.
On January 31, 2011, the Company issued 15,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to an individual for investor relation services
provided, for fair value of $1,500.
On February 23, 2011, the Company issued 100,000 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock to an individual pursuant to an addendum to
an agreement signed October 7, 2010, for fair value of $12,400.
On February 15, 2011, The Company entered into a Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement with Tonaquint, Inc. (“the Investor”), whereby the
Company issued and sold, and the Investor purchased: (i) a Secured Convertible Promissory Note of the Company in the principal amount of
$2,766,500 and (ii) a Warrant to purchase 8.6 million shares of common stock of the Company at an exercise price of US$0.50 per share at any time
within three years after February 15, 2011. In connection with the transaction, the Company also issued to the Investor 50,000 shares of the
Company’s restricted common stock. For further information please see the Company’s Form 8-K filed February 18, 2011.
23. Comparative Figures
Certain items have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in 2010.
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Exhibit 4.5
THIS WARRANT AND THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK ISSUABLE HEREUNDER HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), OR ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS,
AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR TRANSFERRED UNTIL (i) A REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES
ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS SHALL HAVE BECOME EFFECTIVE WITH REGARD THERETO, OR
(ii) IN THE OPINION OF COUNSEL ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS IS NOT REQUIRED IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH PROPOSED TRANSFER.
Right to Purchase (Number of Shares) shares of Common Stock of Silver
Dragon Resources, Inc. (subject to adjustment as provided herein)
COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT
No. (Warrant Number)

Issue Date: (Date of Issuance)

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES, INC., a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Delaware (the “Company”), hereby certifies
that, for value received, (Name of Warrant Holder), or his assigns (the “Holder”), is entitled, subject to the terms set forth below, to purchase from
the Company at any time after the Issue Date until 5:00 p.m., E.S.T on the (Number of Years To Expiry) anniversary of such date (the “Expiration
Date”), (Number of Shares) fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock at a per share purchase price of $(Share Price). The aforedescribed
purchase price per share, as adjusted from time to time as herein provided, is referred to herein as the “Purchase Price.” The number and character of
such shares of Common Stock and the Purchase Price are subject to adjustment as provided herein. The Company may reduce the Purchase Price
without the consent of the Holder. As used herein the following terms, unless the context otherwise requires, have the following respective meanings:
The term “Company” shall mean Silver Dragon Resources, Inc. and any corporation which shall succeed or assume the obligations of
(a)
Silver Dragon Resources, Inc. hereunder.
For purposes of this Warrant, “Common Stock” means the Common Stock of the Company, and all other securities of any class of
(b)
classes (however designated) of the Company the holders of which have the right, without limitation as to amount, after payment on any securities
entitled to a preference on dividends or other distributions upon any dissolution or winding up, either to all or to a share of the balance of payments
upon such dissolution, liquidation or winding up.
(c)

The term “Warrant Shares” shall mean the Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant.

This Warrant is subject to the following terms and conditions:
1

Exercise . This Warrant may be exercised by the Holder hereof on a cash basis (but only on the conditions hereinafter set forth) as to
1.
all or any increment or increments of the Warrant Shares upon delivery of written notice of intent to exercise in the form attached hereto as Exhibit
“A” to the Company at the Company’s address set forth below or such other address as the Company shall designate in a written notice to the Holder
hereof, together with this Warrant and cash or bank draft payable to the Company for the aggregate Purchase Price of the Warrant Shares so
purchased. Upon exercise of this Warrant, the Company shall as promptly as practicable, and in any event within thirty (30) days thereafter, execute
and deliver to the Holder of this Warrant a certificate or certificates for the total number of Warrant Shares for which this Warrant is being exercised
in such names and denominations as are requested by such Holder. If this Warrant shall be exercised with respect to less than all of the Warrant
Shares, the Holder shall be entitled to receive a new Warrant covering the number of Warrant Shares in respect of which this Warrant shall not have
been exercised.
2.

Covenants and Conditions . The above provisions are subject to the following:

Neither this Warrant nor the Warrant Shares have been registered under the Securities Act or any state securities laws (“Blue
(a)
Sky Laws”). This Warrant and the Warrant Shares have been issued in reliance on an exemption from registration under the Securities Act
provided by Rule 506 promulgated thereunder, and an exemption from registration under applicable Blue Sky Laws, and the Warrant and the
Warrant Shares may be resold in accordance with such provisions, in addition to any other rule or statute which may permit such Warrant and
Warrant Shares to be resold. This Warrant has been acquired for investment purposes and not with a view to distribution or resale and may
not be pledged, hypothecated, sold, made subject to a security interest, or otherwise transferred without (i) an effective registration statement
for such Warrant under the Securities Act and such applicable Blue Sky Laws, or (ii) an opinion of counsel reasonably satisfactory to the
Company that registration is not required under the Securities Act or under any applicable Blue Sky Laws. Transfer of the Warrant Shares
issued upon the exercise of this Warrant shall be restricted in the same manner and to the same extent as the Warrant and the certificates
representing such Warrant Shares shall bear substantially the following legend:
THE SHARES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), OR ANY APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS AND MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR TRANSFERRED UNTIL (i) A REGISTRATION
STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS SHALL
HAVE BECOME EFFECTIVE WITH REGARD THERETO, OR (ii) IN THE OPINION OF COUNSEL
ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY, REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE
STATE SECURITIES LAWS IS NOT REQUIRED IN CONNECTION WITH SUCH PROPOSED TRANSFER.
The Company covenants and agrees that all Warrant Shares that may be issued upon exercise of this Warrant will, upon
(b)
issuance and payment therefore, be legally and validly issued and outstanding, fully paid and nonassessable. The Company shall at all times
reserve and keep available for issuance upon the exercise of this Warrant such number of authorized but unissued shares of Common Stock as
will be sufficient to permit the exercise in full of this Warrant.
2

The Holder hereof and the Company agree to execute such other documents and instruments as counsel for the Company
(c)
reasonably deems necessary to effect the compliance of the issuance of this Warrant and any Warrant Shares issued upon exercise of this
Warrant with applicable federal and state securities laws. In furtherance of the foregoing, the Holder represents and warrants:
The Holder has substantial experience in evaluating and investing in private placement transactions of securities in
(i)
companies similar to the Company so that the Holder is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of its investment in the Company
and has the capacity to protect its own interests;
The Holder is acquiring this Warrant, and will acquire the Warrant Shares, for investment for its own account and not
(ii)
with a view to, or for resale in connection with, any distribution thereof. The Holder understands that this Warrant has not been, and
the Warrant Shares will not be, registered under the Securities Act or any Blue Sky Laws by reason of exemptions from the
registration provisions of the Securities Act and such Blue Sky Laws that depend upon, among other things, the bona fide nature of the
investment intent and the accuracy of the Holder’s representations;
The Holder is familiar with the provisions of Rule 144 under the Act which permits the limited resale of restricted
(iii)
securities, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions;
The Holder has had an opportunity to discuss the Company’s business, management and financial affairs with the
(iv)
Company’s management and the opportunity to review the Company’s facilities, financial statements and any other documents
requested by the Holder. The Holder has also had an opportunity to ask questions of officers of the Company, which were answered to
its satisfaction.
3.

Adjustment .
(a)

The number of Warrant Shares purchasable hereunder are subject to adjustment from time to time, as follows:

If the Company at any time subdivides its Common Stock, the number of Warrant Shares issuable pursuant to this
(i)
Warrant will be proportionately increased. If the Company at any time combines its Common Stock, the number of Warrant Shares
issuable pursuant to this Warrant will be proportionately decreased.
If the Company at any time pays a dividend payable in, or make any other distribution (except any distribution
(ii)
specifically provided for in the foregoing subsections (i)) of Common Stock, then the number of Warrant Shares issuable pursuant to
this Warrant will be adjusted, from and after the date of determination of stockholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution
of stockholders to that number of Warrant Shares determined by multiplying the number of Warrant Shares issuable immediately prior
to such date of determination by a fraction (i) the numerator of which will be the total number of shares of Common Stock outstanding
immediately after such dividend or distribution, calculated on a fully diluted basis, and (ii) the denominator of which will be the total
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to such dividend or distribution, calculated on a fully diluted basis.
3

The number of shares reserved for issuance pursuant to this Warrant will automatically be adjusted without further
(iii)
action by the Company in the event of any adjustment of the number of Warrant Shares issuable pursuant to this Warrant.
In the event of a merger, consolidation, recapitalization, combination or exchange of Common Stock occurring after the date
(b)
hereof pursuant to which the Company is not the surviving entity (an “Acquisition”), the Company covenants that it will obtain from the
acquiring entity, as a condition to the closing of such transaction or event, the right for the Holder to exchange this Warrant, at its sole option
and in lieu of exercise hereof, for a warrant to purchase the equivalent number of shares of the equivalent class of shares of the acquiring
entity on a fully diluted basis. The period of exercise of such new warrant shall be equal to the remaining duration of the exercise period of
this Warrant. If, as a result of such Acquisition, the shareholders of the Company immediately prior to such Acquisition own at least a
majority of the shares of voting capital stock, assuming full exercise or conversion of all securities exercisable for or convertible into such
voting capital stock, outstanding after such Acquisition and are entitled upon liquidation to receive a majority of the assets of the surviving
entity, then the method of calculating the number of Warrant Shares set forth in the first Paragraph hereof shall remain unaffected; otherwise,
this Warrant shall, after such Acquisition, permit the Holder to purchase that percentage of Warrant Shares or other consideration of the
acquiring entity which the Holder would be entitled to receive as a result of such merger, consolidation, recapitalization, combination or
exchange of shares if this Warrant had been exercised in full immediately prior to such merger, consolidation, recapitalization, combination or
exchange of shares (or the record date, if any, for such transaction or event) for the same aggregate exercise price as provided for in this
Warrant.
Transfer of Warrant . Subject to the provisions of Section 2, this Warrant or the Warrant Shares may be transferred, in whole or in
4.
part, to any person or business entity, by presentation of the Warrant or the Warrant Shares to the Company with written instructions for such transfer
in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. Upon such presentation for transfer, the Company shall promptly execute and deliver a new Warrant or
Warrants in the form hereof in the name of the assignee or assignees and in the denominations specified in such instructions. The Company shall pay
all expenses in connection with the preparation, issuance and delivery of Warrants under this Section 4.
Notices . Any and all notices, elections or demands permitted or required to be made under this Warrant shall be in writing, signed by
5.
the party giving such notice, election or demand and shall be delivered personally, telecopied, telexed, or sent by certified mail or nationally
recognized courier service (such as Federal Express), to the other party at the address set forth below, or at such other address as may be supplied in
writing and of which receipt has been acknowledged in writing. The date of personal delivery, telecopy or telex or one business day after delivery to
such courier service or five business days after mailing, as the case may be, shall be the date of such notice, election or demand. For the purposes of
this Warrant:
4

The address of
Holder is:
The address of
the Company is:

(Address of Warrant Holder)

5160 Yonge Street, Suite 803
Toronto, Ontario, M2N 6L9

Amendment and Waiver . Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Warrant may be amended and the Company may
6.
take any action herein prohibited, or omit to perform any act herein required to be performed by it, only if the Company has obtained the prior written
consent of the Holder.
Descriptive Headings; Governing Law . The descriptive headings of the several Sections of this Warrant are inserted for convenience
7.
only and do not constitute a part of this Warrant. ALL QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DOMESTIC LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO
ANY CHOICE OF LAW OR CONFLICT OF LAW PROVISIONS OR RULE (WHETHER OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE OR ANY
OTHER JURISDICTION) THAT WOULD CAUSE THE APPLICATION OF THE LAWS OF ANY JURISDICTION OTHER THAN
THE STATE OF DELAWARE.
SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
Per:_________________________________
Marc Hazout – President and C.E.O.
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Exhibit A
FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION
(to be signed only on exercise of Warrant)
TO: Silver Dragon Resources, Inc.
The undersigned, pursuant to the provisions set forth in the attached Warrant, hereby irrevocably elects to purchase (check applicable box):
___ ________shares of the Common Stock covered by such Warrant; or
___ the maximum number of shares of Common Stock covered by such Warrant.
The undersigned herewith makes payment of the full purchase price for such shares at the price per share provided for in such Warrant, which is
$___________. Such payment takes the form of a bank draft in the sum of $__________in lawful money of the United States.
The undersigned requests that the certificates for such shares
_____________________________________________________whose address is

be

issued

in

the

name

of,

and

delivered

to

The undersigned represents and warrants that the representations and warranties of the undersigned in this Warrant are true and accurate with respect
to the undersigned on the date hereof.
The undersigned represents and warrants that all offers and sales by the undersigned of the securities issuable upon exercise of the within Warrant
shall be made pursuant to registration of the Common Stock under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), or pursuant to an
exemption from registration under the Securities Act.
Dated:________________________
(Signature must conform to name of holder as
specified on the face of the Warrant)

(Address)
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Exhibit B
FORM OF TRANSFEROR ENDORSEMENT
(To be signed only on transfer of Warrant)
For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto the person(s) named below under the heading “Transferees” the right
represented by the within Warrant to purchase the percentage and number of shares of Common Stock of Silver Dragon Resources, Inc. to which the
within Warrant relates specified under the headings “Percentage Transferred” and “Number Transferred,” respectively, opposite the name(s) of such
person(s) and appoints each such person Attorney to transfer its respective right on the books of Silver Dragon Resources, Inc. with full power of
substitution in the premises.
Transferees

Percentage Transferred

Number Transferred

Dated: ______________, __________
(Signature must conform to name of holder as specified on the face of the
warrant)
Signed in the presence of:
______________________________
(Name)
(address)
ACCEPTED AND AGREED:
[TRANSFEREE]
(address)
______________________________
(Name)

Exhibit 10.9
SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
SUBSCRIPTION FOR UNITS
TO:

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC. (the "Corporation")

The undersigned (the "Subscriber") hereby irrevocably subscribes for and agrees to purchase the number of units in the capital of the Corporation
(the "Units") set forth below at $.125 (USD) per Unit for the Aggregate Subscription Amount set forth below, each such Unit consisting of (i) one
common share of the Corporation, (ii) one (1) common share purchase warrant, each warrant of this type being exercisable for a period of 36 months
from the Closing Date to acquire one common share of the Corporation at an exercise price of $.25 (USD) , upon and subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in the "Subscription Agreement".

Travellers International Inc.
Full Legal Name of Subscriber (please print)

Aggregate Subscription Amount: $ 96,000.00

By: /s/ Marc Hazout
Signature of Subscriber or its Authorized Representative
President
Official Title or Capacity (please print)

Number of Units subscribed for:
768,000

Marc Hazout
Name of Signatory (please print name of individual whose
signature appears above if different than name of Subscriber)
5160 Yonge Street
Subscriber's Address (including postal code)
Suite 803, Toronto, ON M2N 6L9
416-223-8500
Telephone Number (including area code)
mhazout@silverdragonresources.com
e-mail Address
Social Insurance No. or Federal Business No.
Register the Units as follows:

Deliver the Units as follows:

Travellers International Inc.
Name

[X] Same as registered address, or

Account reference, if applicable

Name

Address (including postal code)

Account reference, if applicable
Contact Name
Address (including postal code)
Telephone Number (including area code)

NUMBER and type of securities of the Corporation held directly or indirectly by Subscriber ______________
STATE whether the Subscriber is an insider of the Corporation (please check one) Yes: X
No: ___
ACCEPTANCE : The Corporation hereby (i) accepts the above subscription on the terms and conditions contained in this Subscription Agreement
and (ii) represents and warrants to the Subscriber that the representations and warranties made by the Corporation to the Agent in the Agency
Agreement (as defined herein) are true and correct in all material respects as of the Closing Date (save and except as waived by the Agent) and the
Subscriber shall have the benefit of such representations and warranties and shall be entitled to reply thereon.
SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.

December 21 , 2010

By: /s/ Marc Hazout
Authorized Signing Officer

Subscription No:

This is the first page of an agreement comprised of 13 pages.

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SUBSCRIPTION
DOCUMENTS
To All Subscribers for Units:
I.
In connection with your subscription of 768,000 units offered by Silver Dragon Resources Inc. (the “Company”), the following documents,
which must be properly and fully completed, signed, and, where applicable, notarized:
A.

Investor Suitability Questionnaire

B.

Subscription Agreement and Investment Representation

II.
Please return the requested number of copies of all documents to the address set forth below. Failure to comply with the above will
constitute an invalid Subscription and, if not corrected will result in the rejection of your Subscription request.
III.
Certified checks, wire transfers or bank drafts should be in the amount of $ 96,000.00 for the Units being purchased. If less than the
whole number of Units are being purchased, the certified check, wire transfer or bank draft should be in proportion to the percentage of the partial
amount, may be made by the Company at its discretion.
IV.

Send all documents and checks to the address set forth below:
Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
5160 Yonge Street, Suite 803
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M2N 6L9

Send all wire transfers to:
Name of account: Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
Bank: HSBC Bank of Canada
Account No.:10162-056664-070
Currency: USD
ABA # 021001088 Intermediary Bank
Swift Code: HKBCCATT
Swift Code: MRMDUS33
Address: 7398 Yonge Street, Vaughan, Ontario, Canada, L4J 8J2
Phone: (905) 771-8727
Fax: (905) 771-8802
V.
Upon acceptance by the Company, each Subscriber will receive an executed original of the Subscription Agreement as soon as practical
after closing.
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CONFIDENTIAL INVESTOR QUESTIONNAIRE
INVESTOR IDENTIFICATION
The undersigned represents that I/we am (are) an accredited investor(s) as that term is defined in Rule 501 pursuant to Regulation D of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the “Act”) (please initial the category, which applies to you in the space provided below):
_____ Category1.

A bank, as defined in Section 3(a)(2) of the Act, whether acting in its individual or fiduciary capacity; or

_____ Category2.

A savings and loan association or other institution as defined in Section 3(a)(5)(A) of the Act, whether acting in its
individual or fiduciary capacity; or

_____ Category3.

A broker or dealer registered pursuant to Section 15 of the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934; or

_____ Category4.

An insurance company as defined in Section 2(13) of the Act; or

_____ Category5.

An investment company registered under the United States Investment Company Act of 1940; or

_____ Category6.

A business development company as defined in Section 2(a)(48) of the United States Investment Company Act of
1940; or

_____ Category7.

A small business investment company licensed by the U.S. Small Business Administration under Section 301 (c) or
(d) of the United States Small Business Investment Act of 1958; or

_____ Category8.

A plan established and maintained by a state, its political subdivisions or any agency or instrumentality of a state or
its political subdivisions, for the benefit of its employees, with total assets in excess of U.S. $5,000,000; or

_____ Category9.

An employee benefit plan within the meaning of the United States Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974
in which the investment decision is made by a plan fiduciary, as defined in Section 3(21) of such Act, which is either
a bank, savings and loan association, insurance company or registered investment adviser, or an employee benefit
plan with total assets in excess of U.S. $5,000,000 or, if a self-directed plan, with investment decisions made solely
by persons who are accredited investors; or
3

_____ Category10.

A private business development company as defined in Section 202(a)(22) of the United States Investment Advisers
Act of 1940; or

_____ Category11.

An organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the United States Internal Revenue Code, a corporation, a
Massachusetts or similar business trust, or a partnership, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the
securities offered, with total assets in excess of U.S. $5,000,000; or

X

Category12.

Any director or executive officer of the Company; or

X

Category13.

A natural person whose individual net worth, or joint net worth with that person's spouse, at the date hereof exceeds
U.S.$1,000,000; or

_____ Category14.

A natural person who had an individual income in excess of U.S.$200,000 in each of the two most recent years or
joint income with that person's spouse in excess of U.S.$300,000 in each of those years and has a reasonable
expectation of reaching the same income level in the current year; or

_____ Category15.

A trust, with total assets in excess of U.S.$5,000,000, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the securities
offered, whose purchase is directed by a sophisticated person as described in Rule 506(b)(2)(ii) under the Act; or

_____ Category16.

Any entity in which all of the equity owners meet the requirements of at least one of the above categories.
4

TO BE PROVIDED BY ALL INVESTORS
(Please Print or Type)
Number of Units, $.125 per Unit:

768,000

Total Investment Amount:

$ 96,000.00

Purchaser Information :
Name:
Federal Tax ID or Social Security
Number:
Marital Status:
Date of Birth:
Citizen of:
Home/Business Address:

Marc Hazout (Travellers International Inc.)
Married
September 15, 1964
Canada
5160 Yonge Street, Suite 803
(Street)
Toronto
(City)

ON
(State)

M2N 6L9
(Zip)

Co-Purchaser Information :
Name:
Federal Tax ID or Social Security
Number:
Marital Status:
Date of Birth:
Citizen of:
Home/Business Address:
(Street)
(City)

(State)
5

(Zip)

Indicate Type of Ownership :
[
[
[
[

]
]
]
]

Individual
Tenants by the Entireties *
Tenants in Common *
Foreign Corporation

[
]
[
]
[ X ]
[
]

Joint Tenants with Rights of Survivorship*
Community Property *
Domestic Corporation
Foreign Person

(*) Two or more signatures required
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SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
THIS AGREEMENT made this 21 st day of December, 2010 by and between Silver Dragon Resources Inc., a Delaware corporation (the
“Issuer” or the “Company”) and Travellers International Inc. (the “Subscriber”).
WHEREAS , Subscriber wishes to hereby subscribe for 768,000 units offered by Silver Dragon Resources Inc. (the “Units”) for a purchase
price of $ 96,000.00 or $.125 per Unit (the “Purchase Price”); and
WHEREAS , Issuer desires to sell the Units to Subscriber, but only upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.
NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the mutual promises and the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements herein
contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties, intending to be
legally bound, agree as follows:
ARTICLE I
ISSUANCE OF UNITS
1.01
Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Issuer agrees to sell and deliver to the Subscriber, and Subscriber agrees to
acquire from the Issuer, all upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the Units, free and clear of all security interests, claims, liens and
other encumbrances except as may be set forth in this Agreement.
1.02
Each Unit shall consist of (i) one (1) common share of the Company (a “Share”), (ii) one (1) common share purchase warrant, each
warrant of this type being exercisable for a period of 36 months from the Closing Date to acquire one common share at an exercise price of $.25
(USD). The warrants included in the Units are collectively referred to herein as the “Warrants”. The Warrants shall not be exercisable on a cashless
basis.
ARTICLE II
PRICE OF UNITS, SIZE OF OFFERING AND USE OF PROCEEDS
The Issuer intends to sell a maximum of 8,333,333 Units for gross proceeds of $1,000,000.00. There is no minimum offering amount. The Proceeds
from the offering of Units contemplated herein shall be used for the development of the Cerros las Minitas property in Durango, Mexico, TSX
application, corporate administration, subsidiary financing and other general corporate matters.
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ARTICLE III
SUBSCRIPTION PRICE
3.01

Consideration. In consideration of the issuance and delivery by the Issuer of the Units as hereinafter set forth:

(a) The Subscriber shall deliver to the Issuer the sum of Ninety-six Thousand ($ 96,000.00), by wire transfer, certified cheque or by bank draft, on
or before the Closing as that term is defined in Section 4.01 of this Agreement.
ARTICLE IV
CLOSING
4.01
Date and Place of Closing . The closing of the transaction contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur at 5160 Yonge
Street, Suite 803, Toronto, Ontario on or before December 30, 2010 (the “Closing Date”), at 5:00 P.M. Eastern Standard Time. The Issuer shall have
the right to extend the Closing Date at its discretion.
4.02
Documents at Closing . At the Closing, Issuer shall deliver to the Issuer’s transfer agent an Issuance Resolution authorizing the issuance
of the Shares and Warrants and such other documents as may be reasonably required by Subscriber’s counsel. At the Closing, the Subscriber shall
deliver $__ 96,000.00 (the “Subscription Amount”) to the Issuer in the manner set forth in sub-section 3.01(a) of this Agreement, and such other
documents as may be reasonably required by Issuer’s counsel.
ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF ISSUER
5.01
Representations and Warranties of Issuer. In order to induce the Subscriber to enter into this Agreement, the Issuer represents, warrants
and covenants to the Subscriber that all the items contained in this Article are true and correct.
5.02
Organization and Good Standing. The Issuer is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of
Delaware, Country of United States. The Issuer has all requisite power to carry on its business as now conducted by it and to own and operate its
assets as now owned and operated by it. The Issuer is conducting and has in the past conducted its business in accordance with all applicable laws,
the violation of which would affect the property or business of the Issuer.
5.03
Capacity and Authority. The Issuer has full legal power and authority to enter into this Agreement, to make the representations,
warranties and covenants contained herein and to cause the transactions contemplated hereby to be consummated, and no prior order, approval or
decree of any court, agency or other governmental body is required with respect thereto. The Issuer has full legal right, power and authority to
convey the Shares and Warrants free and clear of all liens, charges, encumbrances, claims and demands of every kind. The Issuer represents, warrants
and covenants that all actions in contemplation of this transaction are not in conflict with the Issuer’s Certification or its Bylaws, if any.
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5.04
Encumbrances and Binding Effect. This Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of the Issuer, enforceable in accordance with its
terms, subject to application of bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization and moratorium laws and other generally applicable laws affecting
enforcement of creditor’s rights. The execution and delivery by the Issuer of this Agreement and the performance thereof will not result in any
violation of and will not conflict with, or result in a breach of any of the terms of, or constitute a default under any provision of any state or federal
law to which the Issuer is subject, any agreement of the Issuer, or of any mortgage, indenture, agreement, instrument, judgment, decree, order, rule or
regulation or other restriction to which the Issuer is a party or by which any of its property is bound.
5.05

Compliance with Applicable Laws.

(a)
The operation of the Issuer has not and does not violate any applicable law or governmental regulation. Without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, the Issuer is in compliance with all laws, rules and regulations, including rules and regulations promulgated by the United States, the
State of Delaware, and any other state or local authority or agency relating to the operation of the business of the Issuer.
(b)
There are no commitments to or agreements with any governmental authority or agency affecting the Units or the Issuer, which have not
been disclosed by the Issuer to the Subscriber in writing.
5.06
Contracts and Commitments. There has not been any default in any obligation to be performed by the Issuer under any contract, license,
commitment or agreement which default could adversely affect the business or property of the Issuer, and the Issuer has not waived any right under
any such contract, commitment or agreement so as to adversely affect the business or property of the Issuer.
5.07
No Material Liabilities. There are no material liabilities on the books of the Issuer except as disclosed in the financial statements and no
undisclosed or contingent liabilities.
5.08
Disclosure . Neither this Agreement nor any exhibit, list, or schedule hereto, nor any written statement or certificate furnished to the
Subscriber pursuant hereto or in connection with the transaction herein contemplated contains or will contain any untrue statement of a material fact,
will omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained herein or therein not misleading. There presently exists no fact,
which materially adversely affects or in the future may materially adversely affect the Units, which fact has not been disclosed herein or in the
exhibits, lists and schedules provided for herein.
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5.09
Shares of Stock . The Issuer is authorized to issue 150,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.0001 par value, of which 97,486,257 shares
were issued and outstanding as of October 25, 2010. All shares of stock of the Issuer are, and when issued the Shares underlying the Units and
Warrants will be, validly issued and nonassessable.
ARTICLE VI
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF SUBSCRIBER
6.01
Lack of Registration. The Subscriber acknowledges that the Units have not been registered pursuant to the United States Securities Act of
1933 (the “Act”) or the similar laws of any state of the United States or pursuant to the laws of any other country, and may not be offered or sold,
except in compliance with the registration requirements of the Act or an available exemption therefrom.
6.02
Representations and Warranties of Subscriber . In order to induce the Issuer to enter into this Agreement, the Subscriber represents and
warrants to the Issuer the items of this Article. 6.03 Organization and Good Standing. Subscriber is: (a) If a corporation, duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing and has all requisite power to carry on its business as now conducted by it and to own and operate its assets as now
owned and operated by it; or (b) If an individual, is of the age of majority and has the legal capacity to enter into this agreement.
6.04
Capacity and Authority . The Subscriber has full legal power and authority to enter into this Agreement, to make the representations,
warranties and covenants contained herein and to cause the transactions contemplated hereby to be consummated, and no prior order, approval or
decree of any court, agency or other governmental body, whether federal, state or local is required with respect thereto.
6.05
Encumbrances and Binding Effect. This Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of the Subscriber, enforceable in accordance with its
terms, subject to application of bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization and moratorium laws and other generally applicable laws affecting
enforcement of creditor’s rights. The execution and delivery by the Subscriber of this Agreement and the performance thereof will not result in any
violation of and will not conflict with, or result in a breach of any of the terms of, or constitute a default under any provision of any state, provincial
or federal law to which the Subscriber is subject, any agreement of the Subscriber, or of any mortgage, indenture, agreement, instrument, judgment,
decree, order, rule or regulation or other restriction to which the Subscriber is a party or by which any of their property is bound.
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6.06
Brokerage Fees. The Subscriber has not incurred any liability for brokerage fees, finder’s fees, agent’s commissions or other similar
forms of compensation in connection with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.
6.07
Access to Information. Subscriber has had access to or been furnished with the following information: (a) All material books and records
of the Issuer; (b) All material contracts and documents relating to the Issuer and the proposed purchase of the Shares; and (c) An opportunity to
question the appropriate executive officers of the Issuer about all material aspects of the Issuer and the business of the Issuer.
6.08
Resale Restrictions. Subscriber has been advised that (i) the Units, Shares, Warrants and Shares underlying the Warrants have not been
registered under the Act, (ii) the Company is under no obligation to register any of the securities for resale, (iii) the securities will be subject to a hold
period under Rule 144, (iv) the availability of the Rule 144 resale exemption cannot be assured, (v) such securities may need to be held indefinitely,
and Subscriber must continue to bear the economic risk of the investment in such securities unless they are subsequently registered under the Act or
an exemption from such registration is available, and (vi) a restrictive legend in the following form shall be placed on the certificates representing
such securities:
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "ACT") AND HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED PURSUANT TO ANY STATE BLUE SKY LAWS.
FURTHER THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR INVESTMENT AND MAY
NOT BE SOLD, PLEDGED, HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT PURSUANT TO A REGISTRATION
STATEMENT UNDER THE ACT AND QUALIFICATION UNDER THE STATE ACTS OR EXEMPTIONS FROM SUCH
REGISTRATION OR QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS (INCLUDING, IN THE CASE OF THE ACT, THE EXEMPTION
AFFORDED BY RULE 144).
6.09
Warrant Exercise Restrictions. The Warrants may not be exercised, and the Shares issuable upon such exercise may not be issued or
delivered, unless the Shares issuable upon such exercise have been registered under the Act and all applicable state securities laws or exemptions
from such requirements are available, and the holder thereof has delivered a legal opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Company to such effect;
provided, however, that the original Subscriber will not be required to deliver a legal opinion of counsel in connection with the exercise of the
Warrants by the original Subscriber, solely for its own account, and not for the account or benefit of any other person, for investment purposes only,
at a time when the Subscriber continues to satisfy the definition of an “accredited investor” as defined in Rule 501 under the Act. The following
legend will be placed on the Warrants:
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THESE WARRANTS MAY NOT BE EXERCISED AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON SUCH EXERCISE MAY NOT BE
ISSUED OR DELIVERED UNLESS THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON SUCH EXERCISE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER
THE ACT AND ALL APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR EXEMPTIONS FROM SUCH REQUIREMENTS ARE
AVAILABLE.
6.10
Purchase for Own Account . The Subscriber is purchasing the Units solely for its own account, and not for the account or benefit of any
other person, for investment purposes only, and not for distribution in violation of the Act or any state securities laws.
6.11
No Tax Advice . The Subscriber acknowledges that the Subscriber is solely responsible for determining, and the Company makes no
representation or warranty to the Subscriber regarding, the tax consequences under U.S. federal, state or local or foreign tax laws of the Subscriber’s
purchase, exercise or disposition of the Units, the Shares, the Warrants or the Shares underlying the Warrants.
ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS
7.01
Notices. Any notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be mailed by registered or
certified mail, postage prepaid, or delivered by hand or by messenger, addressed to the appropriate address set forth below or to such other addresses
as shall have been furnished in writing to the party initiating the notice or communication. Any notice or other communication so addressed and
mailed, postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail (in each case, with return receipt requested) shall be deemed to be delivered and given when
received by the addressee. Any notice so addressed and otherwise delivered shall be deemed to be given five (5) business days after mailing.
7.02
Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in accordance with contracts entered into and wholly
performed within the Province of Ontario, without giving effect to conflict of laws principles thereof, and in any action to enforce or interpret or
arising under any of the provisions of this Agreement, the parties expressly agree to submit to the jurisdiction of any Federal or Provincial court
sitting in Toronto, Ontario.
7.03
Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.
7.04
Non-Waiver. The failure of a party to enforce the provisions of this Agreement or the rights granted hereunder on any occasion shall not
operate as a waiver of such provisions or rights for future occasions.
7.05

Section Headings. The section headings appear only as a matter of convenience and shall not affect the construction of the Agreement.

7.06
Entire Agreement and Amendments. This Agreement, including any schedules and exhibits, contains the entire understanding of the
Subscriber and the Issuer, and there are no representations, understandings, or agreements, oral or otherwise, except as stated herein. This Agreement
may not be amended except by a writing signed by all parties hereto.
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7.07
Counterparts . This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered, shall constitute a
complete and original instrument but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement, and it shall not be necessary when
making proof of this Agreement or any counterpart thereof to account for any other counterpart.
7.08

Facsimile An Original. A facsimile of this Agreement shall be deemed to be an original for all purposes.

7.09
Addresses. All notices and other correspondence with respect hereto shall be sent to the Subscriber or the Issuer at the following
addresses:
To Subscriber: At the address attached to the Subscription Agreement
To Issuer:

Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
5160 Yonge Street
Suite 803
Toronto, Ontario M2N 6L9
Tel: 416-223-8500
Fax: 416-223-8507

7.10
Execution of Additional Documents. The parties hereto agree that they will promptly execute any and all further documents necessary
and/or appropriate for the consummation of this Agreement according to its terms and conditions.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed and delivered on the day and year first hereinabove written.
Agreed and accepted
this 21st day of December, 2010.
Subscriber –
/s/ Marc Hazout
Subscriber's Signature
Issuer
Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
Per: /s/ Marc Hazout
Marc Hazout – President and CEO
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Exhibit 10.10
This consulting services agreement (“Agreement”) is made effective November 1, 2010
Between
SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES LTD. and
SILVER DRAGON RESOURCES INC.
(collectively, “Silver Dragon”)
and
TRAVELLERS INTERNATIONAL INC. (“Consultant”) and
MARC HAZOUT (“Hazout”)
For value received, the parties covenant and agree with each other as follows:
SECTION 1- SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED
1.1 - Retainer
Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, Silver Dragon hereby retains the Consultant to provide the Consulting Services. Except as Silver
Dragon and the Consultant may otherwise agree in writing, all services to be provided herein shall be provided by Hazout only, and the Consultant
shall cause Hazout to be retained or employed by the Consultant to provide the Consulting Services throughout the period of the Consultant’s retainer
by Silver Dragon under this Agreement.
1.2 - Consulting Services
“Consulting Services” includes all activities required to direct, oversee, and manage Silver Dragon to provide the services that would be
provided by a chief executive officer of the company. The Consultant shall cause Hazout to be solely responsible for the performance of the
Consulting Services.
1.3 - Intellectual Property
The Consultant agrees that Silver Dragon shall have, at all reasonable times, access to the work product, or any component thereof, which the
Consultant or Hazout produces in performing the Consulting Services. The Consultant and Hazout each acknowledge that Silver Dragon shall be the
owner of all work products created by the Consultant or Hazout or in which the Consultant or Hazout assisted in the creation during the term of this
Agreement. All intellectual property rights in such work products, including all databases, patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets and industrial
designs, shall be the exclusive property of Silver Dragon. If the Consultant or Hazout acquire any rights or interests in the work products or in any
intellectual property rights relating to the work products, the Consultant and Hazout (as the case may be) each agree to assign, and by executing this
Agreement each assigns, all such rights and interests therein to Silver Dragon. The Consultant and Hazout each further hereby irrevocably and
unconditionally waive in perpetuity any moral rights, droit morale , or similar rights that theConsultant and Hazout may have with respect to such
work products, and acknowledge that this waiver may be invoked by all licensees and assignees of Silver Dragon.
1

SECTION 2 - REMUNERATION OF CONSULTANT
2.1 - Fees for Consulting Services
1.1

Silver Dragon shall pay to the Consultant for the Consulting Services an annual fee of $288,000.00, payable in instalments according
to the Company’s regular payroll schedule.

1.2

The Company will issue to the Consultant and the consultant will be entitled to 1,000,000 restricted common shares.

1.3

All onetime expenses of the Consultant and/or any person engaged by the Consultant and acting as agent for the Consultant (the “
Agents ”) to be incurred on behalf of the Company shall be pre-approved in writing by Silver Dragon. All such pre-approved expenses
of the Consultant and/or the Agents will be paid within thirty (30) days of billing by the Consultant and/or its Agents.

1.4

Consultant will be entitled to at least 8 weeks paid holidays each calendar year and 14 personal days. Company will notify Consultant
on or about the beginning of each calendar year with respect to the holiday schedule for the coming year. Personal holidays, if any,
will be scheduled in advance subject to requirements of Company. Such holidays must be taken during the calendar year and cannot
be carried forward into the next year.

1.5

Company agrees to include Consultant in the group medical and hospital plan of Company and provide group life insurance for
Consultant at no charge to Consultant in the amount of the cost to cover Consultant’s entire family under a Grade A PPO medical and
dental program during this Agreement. Consultant shall be entitles to participate in any pension or profit sharing plan or other type of
plan adopted by Company for the benefit of its officers and/or regular employees.

1.6

Consultant shall be entitled to receive stock incentives from Company, said incentives may be in the form of Stock Options, Warrants
or other form of stock of the Company. Such Stock incentives are to be approved by the Board of Directors.

1.7

Consultant will also have the right to sell his stock from time to time, as per SEC regulations. Company will provide to Consultant the
use of an automobile of Consultant’s choice at a gross purchase price not to exceed $3,000.00 per month. Company agrees to replace
the automobile with a new one at Consultant’s request no more often than once every two years. Company will pay all automobileoperating expenses incurred by Consultant in the performance of Consultant’s duties including insurance, gas and parking. Company
will procure and maintain in force an automobile liability policy for the automobile with coverage, including Consultant, in the
minimum amount of $2,000,000.00 combined single limit on bodily injury and property damage.

1.8

All charges in this Agreement are stated in legal currency of the United States of America.
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SECTION 3 - COVENANTS OF CONSULTANT
3.1 - Services
The Consultant shall ensure that Hazout will perform the Consulting Services in a timely fashion, to the best of Hazout’s ability, and in a
competent and professional manner. The Consultant and Hazout each represent, warrant and covenant to Silver Dragon that the Consulting Services
will be performed to the highest moral, ethical, technical and legal standards, and that it and Hazout will conduct the Consulting Services in a manner
consistent with the objectives and policies of Silver Dragon. The Consultant shall cause Hazout to perform all of the Consulting Services, and
discharge its obligations under this Agreement, honestly, in good faith and with a view to the best interests of Silver Dragon. The Consultant and
Hazout covenant that in performing the Consulting Services, it and he will comply in all material respects with all relevant laws, statutes and
regulations of all provincial, state, federal, local and municipal governments, as applicable.
3.2 - Indemnity
The Consultant and Hazout each shall indemnify and save harmless Silver Dragon, its directors, officers, members, employees and agents
from and against all claims, demands, actions, causes of action, losses, expenses, cost of damages and liabilities of every nature and kind whatsoever
which Silver Dragon or its directors, officers, members, employees or agents may suffer or incur as a result of any negligent or other tortious act or
omission committed by the Consultant or Hulbert in the performance of the Consulting Services or otherwise under the Agreement.
3.3 - Confidentiality Obligations
The Consultant and Hazout shall not, directly or indirectly, either during the term of this Agreement or at any time thereafter, in any way use
or disclose to any person, other than strictly for the fulfillment of this Agreement or as required by law, any information relating to the business,
commercial, technical, trade, marketing, financing or any other confidential affairs of Silver Dragon. The Consultant and Hazout each agree and
acknowledge that all such information is the exclusive property of Silver Dragon, and the Consultant and Hazout each, as the case may be, shall hold
all such information in trust for Silver Dragon. The Consultant and Hazout confirm and acknowledge their duty to use their respective best efforts to
protect the confidentiality of such information, not to misuse such information, and to protect such information from any misuse, misappropriation,
harm and interference in any manner whatsoever.
3.4 – Compliances with Policies
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The Consultant and Hazout each agree to comply with all policies of Silver Dragon made known to Hazout.
3.5 - Covenants Reasonable
The Consultant and Hazout each acknowledge and agree that:
(a) without the covenants set forth in this Section 3, Silver Dragon would not have entered into, this Agreement; and,
(b) the covenants set forth in this Section 3 are reasonable in the circumstances and are necessary to protect the economic position of
Silver Dragon.
3.6 - Covenants Independent
The existence of any claim or cause of action of the Consultant and/or Hazout against Silver Dragon, whether pursuant to this Agreement or
otherwise, shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement by Silver Dragon of the provisions of this Section 3 against the Consultant and/or Hazout.
3.7 - Severability
If a court of competent jurisdiction would otherwise adjudge, declare or decree all or any portion of the covenants set forth in this Section 3
void or unenforceable in the circumstances, the portions thereof which would otherwise be held void or unenforceable shall, automatically and
without further act on the part of the parties hereto, but only as regards those matters or those of the parties hereto before the court, be reduced in
scope, territory or duration of time to such an extent that such court would hold the same to be enforceable in the circumstances before the court.
SECTION 4 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS
4.1 - Consultant Not an Employee
(a) The Consultant will provide the Consulting Services as an independent contractor, and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a
relationship of employee and employer between Silver Dragon and either the Consultant or Hazout.
(b) Neither the Consultant nor Hazout shall be entitled to receive from Silver Dragon any remuneration, rights or benefits other than as set forth in
this Agreement.
(c) Silver Dragon shall not be required to deduct or remit to any governmental authority in respect of the Consultant any amounts, including those
relating to provincial and federal income taxes, employment insurance, Canada Pension Plan, Employer Health Tax, Workers’ Compensation and
other similar levies in respect of this Agreement. The Consultant shall be solely responsible to satisfy all such obligations and hereby indemnifies
Silver Dragon against all costs, claims, penalties or demands made or imposed by any governmental authority with respect to any sum which such
authority asserts ought to have been withheld, remitted or paid to or by Silver Dragon with respect to the sums payable by Silver Dragon to the
Consultant hereunder.
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SECTION 5 - TERM
5.1 - Term
This Agreement shall be in effect commencing November 1, 2010 and shall continue until October 30, 2015 (the ‘‘Term’’), unless renewed
earlier by Silver Dragon on three (3) months prior written notice of such date.
5.2 - Termination by Silver Dragon
(a)

This Agreement and Consultant’s agreement may be terminated at Company's discretion during the Initial Term, provided that Company shall
pay to Consultant an amount equal to Consultant's annual fee rate for the remaining period of Initial Term, plus a lump sum amount equal to
One-hundred percent (100%) of Consultant's annual fee rate, plus full medical coverage for 12 months following the effective termination
date.

(b)

This Agreement and Consultant's agreement may be terminated by Company at its discretion at any time after the Initial Term, provided that
in such case, Consultant shall be paid a lump sum amount equal to Seventy-five percent (75%) of Consultant's then applicable base salary for
12 months following the effective termination date.

(c)

This Agreement may be terminated by Consultant at Consultant 's discretion by providing at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to
Company. In the event of termination by Consultant pursuant to this subsection, Company may immediately relieve Consultant of all duties
and immediately terminate this Agreement, provided that Company shall pay Consultant at the then applicable annual fee rate to the
termination date included in Consultant's original termination notice.

(d)

In the event Company is acquired, or is the non-surviving party in a merger, or sells all or substantially any of its assets, this Agreement shall
not be terminated and Company agrees to ensure that the transferee or surviving company is bound by the provisions of this Agreement.

5.3 - Title to Information
On termination of this Agreement, or the retainer hereunder the Consultant and Hazout shall immediately deliver to Silver Dragon all data,
documents, software, licenses or hardware in the Consultant’s and Hazout’s possession or control which have been acquired or produced during the
term of this Agreement.
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SECTION 6 - INTERPRETATION AND ENFORCEMENT
6.1 - Notices
Any notice required to be given by any party under this Agreement may be sufficiently given if delivered, couriered or faxed to the parties as
follows:
If to Silver Dragon, as follows:
Silver Dragon Inc.
5160 Yonge Street, Suite 803
Toronto, Ontario M9N 6L9
cc: Chair of the Compensation Committee
If to the Consultant, as follows:
Travellers International Inc.
5160 Yonge Street, Suite 803
Toronto, Ontario M9N 6L9
If to Hazout, as follows:
Marc Hazout
21 Scollard Street, suite 704
Toronto, Ontario M5R 1G1
6.2 - Entire Agreement
This Agreement, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and cancels and supersedes any
prior understandings and agreements between the parties hereto with respect thereto. There are no collateral representations, warranties, conditions,
undertakings or agreements, whether express or implied, between the parties other than as expressly set forth in this Agreement.
6.3 - Amendments and Waivers
No amendment to this Agreement shall be valid or binding unless set forth in writing and duly executed by both of the parties hereto. No
waiver of any breach of any term or provision of this Agreement shall be effective or binding unless made in writing and signed by the party
purporting to give same.
6.4 - Assignment
Neither party hereto may assign its or his rights or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party
hereto. Subject thereto, this Agreement shall endure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors and permitted assigns.
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6.5 - Severability
If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part, such invalidity or unenforceability shall
attach only to such provision or part thereof and the remaining part of such provision and all other provisions hereof shall continue in full force and
effect.
6.6 - Governing Law
This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada applicable in
the Province of Ontario. The parties hereto hereby attorn to the jurisdiction of the Courts of the Province of Ontario in connection with any and all
legal disputes which arise hereunder.
6.7 - Survival
Sections 3.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.5, 3.6 and 3.7 shall survive the termination of this Agreement and shall continue in accordance with their terms
The parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the date first noted above.
SILVER DRAGON INC.
By: /s/ Charles McAlpine
Director and
Chair of Compensation Committee
SILVER DRAGON LTD.
By: /s/ Marc Hazout
Director and CEO
TRAVELLERS INTERNATIONAL INC.
By: /s/ Marc Hazout
Director and CEO
/s/ Monica Encinas
Signature of Witness

/s/ Marc Hazout
Marc Hazout
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Exhibit 10.11

Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
NASDAQ OTC: SDRG
5160 Yonge Street
Suite 803
Toronto, Ontario
Canada, M2N 6L9
Telephone
416.223.8500

Facsimile
416.223.8507

CONSULTING AGREEMENT BETWEEN :
Jeffrey D. Sherman (“Consultant”) of 472 Hidden Trail, Toronto, Ontario M2R 3R8
and
Silver Dragon Resources Inc. Ltd. (“Client”) located at 5160 Yonge Street, Toronto, Ontario M2N 6L9, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
1. The Consultant will provide services as Chief Financial Officer to the Client and to Silver Dragon Resources Inc. as agreed from time to
time.
2. The Client will pay the Consultant fees at a rate of C$4,000 per month (+ HST), upon the rendering of an invoice by the Consultant. (The
Consultant’s HST registration number is 12705 3940 RT0001.)
3. This Agreement runs from September 1, 2010 to August 31, 2011, except that either party may terminate this Agreement with three
months’ written notice.
4. The Consultant acknowledges that he will acquire information about certain matters and things which are confidential to the Client. He
agrees that he is prohibited from using or disclosing such confidential information, directly or indirectly, except with the written permission of
the Client.
5. The Consultant is subject to a restrictive covenant prohibiting him from consulting for or being associated with a competitor, soliciting
customers or suppliers of the Client or attempting to induce other employees of the Client to leave during the term of this Agreement and for a
period of 12 months thereafter.
6. Anything created by the Consultant under this Agreement including, without limitation, all intellectual property rights in respect of such
items shall be the sole exclusive property of the Client.
7. Consultant will receive warrants to acquire 200,000 common shares of the Client at a price of US$0.18 per share, being their fair market
value on the date hereof. The warrants will expire 36 months from the date of this Agreement.
8. This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the Province of Ontario.
Jeffrey D. Sherman
(Consultant)

Silver Dragon Resources Ltd.
(Client)

/s/ Jeffrey Sherman

/s/ Marc Hazout
Marc Hazout – CEO
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Exhibit 10.13
Equity Transfer Agreement
Regarding
Sanhe Sino-Top Resources & Technologies, Ltd.
Between
Silver Dragon Resources Inc. And Zhou Lin
Dated: July 4, 2008
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Equity Transfer Agreement
THIS EQUITY TRANSFER AGREEMENT (the “ Agreement ”) is entered into by and between the following parties in Sanhe city, Hebei
province, China on July 4, 2008:
Silver Dragon Resources Inc., a company formed and registered under the laws of Delaware, United States of America (the “ Seller ”); and
Zhou Lin, a PRC citizen with the identity card No. of 132821196411020529 (the “ Purchaser ”).
Each of the party is hereinafter referred to as a “ Party ” and collectively as the “ Parties ”.
WHEREAS
1.

Sanhe Sino-Top Resources & Technologies, Ltd. (the “ Company ”) is a Sino-foreign cooperative joint venture company duly incorporated
and existing in accordance with the laws of the People’s Republic of China (the “ PRC ”) and has its registered address at North Jingha Road
45, Yanjiao Economic Development Zone, Sanhe City;

2.

The Seller duly owns90% of the equity interest of the Company;

3.

The Seller wishes to sell 50% of its equity interest in the Company (the “ Target Equity ”) to the Purchaser; and

4.

The Purchaser wishes to purchase the Target Equity from the Seller.

THEREFORE , the Parties hereby agree as follows:
1.

PURCHASE AND SALE OF TARGET EQUITY

1.1

Purchase and Sale
The Purchaser agrees to purchase from the Seller and the Seller agrees to sell to the Purchaser the Target Equity, pursuant to the terms and
conditions herein. The Seller enjoys all rights, titles and interest of the Target Equity. The Target Equity is free and clear of any and all liens,
pledges, mortgages, encumbrances and any other restriction of any nature.

1.2

Purchase Price
The Purchaser shall pay to the Seller RMB 30,000,000(the “ Purchase Price ”) in total as the consideration of the Target Equity.
The Purchase Price shall be paid according to the following method and schedule:
(a) RMB 6,000,000 to be paid within three (3) business days after the approval from the competent authority relating to the equity transfer
contemplated under this Agreement; and
(b) The remaining to be paid within three (3) business days after the Closing Date.
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2.

CONDITIONS PRECEDNET
The Parties agree that the Closing shall be conditional upon the followings:

3.

(a)

The Board of Directors of the Company has unanimously agreed the equity transfer from the Seller to the Purchaser;

(b)

All of the other shareholders of the Company have duly waived their rights of first refusal;

(c)

All of the current approvals, permits, licenses from governmental authorities held by the Company shall remain in effect all the time;

(d)

There is no major adverse change to the operation of the Company; and

(e)

The Company has obtained the approval from the competent authority relating to the equity transfer contemplated under this
Agreement.

CLOSING
The closing (the “ Closing ”) under this Agreement shall mean the completion of all the conditions precedent set forth herein, the shareholder
of the Target Equity recorded with the company registration authority has been changed to the Purchaser and the company registration
authority has issued a new business license to the Company. The issuance date of the new business license of the Company shall be the
closing date (the “ Closing Date ”).
Upon the Closing, the Seller shall deliver copies of the newly issued certificate of approval of the Company and the newly issued business
license, which can prove that the Purchaser has owned the Target Equity. The Seller shall make best efforts to assist the Purchaser and the
Company to complete the approval and registration issues with respect to this equity transfer.

4.

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION

4.1

The seller contributes an aggregate amount of USD 5,000,000 to the Company. The seller has made payment of its subscribed capital
contribution of USD 3,272,690 and the remaining capital contribution (the “Remaining Contribution”) is USD 1,727,310.

4.2

The Remaining Contribution by the parties shall be made as follows:
(a)

The Seller contributes USD 1,000,000 of the Remaining Contribution prior to July 30, 2009;

(b)

In respect to the rest of the Remaining Contribution (USD 727,310), the Seller contributes USD 323,250 prior to July 30, 2009 and the
Purchaser contributes USD 404,060 prior to July 30, 2009.
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5.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

5.1

Representations and Warranties of the Seller
The Seller represents and warrants in favour of the Purchaser that:

5.2

(a)

The Seller duly holds 90% equity interest in the Company;

(b)

The Seller is entitled to sell and transfer to the Purchaser the full legal and beneficial ownership in the Target Equity free from all
pledges, charges, liens, options and any other rights of any third party and the transfer of the Target Equity pursuant to this Agreement
will convey to the Purchaser entire rights and interests to such equity;

(c)

The Company is duly incorporated and validly existing according to the PRC law, and is in good standing;

Representations and Warranties of the Parties
Each Party represents and warranties in favour of the other Party that:
(a)

The Seller is duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the place of its establishment, and is in good standing, the
Purchaser is a person with full civil capacity;

(b)

It has all requisite power and approval required to execute and deliver this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder;

(c)

It has taken all internal actions necessary to authorize it to enter into this Agreement and its representative whose signature is affixed
hereto is fully authorized to sign this Agreement and to bind it thereby;

(d)

After this Agreement has been duly executed by its authorized representatives, this Agreement shall be legally binding on it; and

(e)

Neither the execution of this Agreement nor the performance of its obligations hereunder will conflict with, or result in a breach of, or
constitute a default under, any provision of its articles of association or bylaws applicable as at the date of execution of this
Agreement, or any law, regulation, rule, authorization or approval of any governmental authority, or of any contract or agreement, to
which it is a party or subject.

6.

CONFIDENTIALITY

6.1

Confidentiality Obligation
Each Party shall keep all the Confidential Information confidential, and shall not disclose to any third party for any purpose other than that of
this Agreement without the prior written consent from the other Party.
Each Party shall only disclose to its shareholders, directors, officials, employees and professional advisors necessary required, and only to
such extent, for performing its obligation under this Agreement and shall procure such shareholders, directors, officials, employees and
professional advisors to be liable for a confidentiality obligation not less than that set forth in this section.
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6.2

Confidential Information
For the purposes of this Agreement, Confidential Information shall mean the terms and conditions of this Agreement, all information, oral or
written, which relates to or is in connection with the business operations, business strategies, business plans, investment plans, products, sales,
customers, employees, marketing, technologies, financial or other affairs of each Party and the Company, including without limitation all
reports and notes and all copies (including electronic copies), reproductions, reprints and translations containing such information.

6.3

Term
The obligation under this section shall survive to be effective within five (5) years after the expiration of this Agreement.

7.

DEFAULT AND INDEMNIFICATION
Unless otherwise set forth in this Agreement, either Party shall compensate for all the losses and damages the other Party suffered arising
from its breach of this Agreement or its breach any of its representation and warranty herein.

8.

FORCE MAJEURE

8.1

Force Majeure
Force Majeure under this Agreement shall mean all object events, which are unforeseeable by either Party, the occurrence and consequences
of which cannot be avoided or overcome, and which prevent such Party (the “ Affected Party ”) to perform its all or part obligations
hereunder, including without limitation earthquakes, typhoons, flood, fire, war, acts of government or public agencies, epidemics,
disturbances and strikes.

8.2

Effect of Force Majeure
The Affected Party may suspend performance of its obligation which is prevented by the Force Majeure and shall take reasonable measures to
reduce the affect of such Force Majeure. The Affected Party shall continue to perform promptly after such Force Majeure disappeared.
The Affected Party shall not be liable for any losses and damages the other Party suffered arising from such Party’s default or delay of the
performance of its obligation hereunder, provided that such Party has deliver the notice in accordance with the Section 8.3.

8.3

Notice of Force Majeure
The Affected Party shall promptly inform the other Party in writing and shall furnish within fifteen (15) days thereafter documents issued by
the competent governmental authority certifying the occurrence of such Force Majeure. Otherwise, the Affected Party shall compensate the
other Party for the losses and damages the other Party suffered according to the Section 7.
4

8.4

Resolution
In the event of Force Majeure, the Parties shall immediately consult with each other in order to find an equitable solution and shall use all
reasonable endeavours to minimize the consequences of such Force Majeure.

9.

NOTICE
Any notice from either Party to the other Party of this Agreement shall be delivered in personal or via fax, registered airmail or courier to the
addresses listed hereunder. If a notice is delivered in person, it shall be deemed as received on the date of delivery; if it is sent by fax, it shall
be deemed as received upon the completion of the fax process provided that the sender provides the fax report as evidence; if it is sent by
registered airmail, it shall be deemed as received on the seventh (7) day after the post date indicated by the airmail; if it is delivered by
courier, it shall be deemed as received on the third (3) day after the delivery date indicated by the courier invoice. In case that a notice is
simultaneously delivered by more than one manner aforementioned, the fastest shall be referred for determining the date of receipt.
Contact information of the Parties is as follows:
To the Seller: Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
Address: 5160 Yonge Street,
Suite 803 Toronto, Ontario, Canada M2N 6L9
Attention: Marc Hazout, President
Fax: (416) 223-8507
Tel: (416) 223-8500
To the Purchaser: Zhou Lin
Address: North Jingha Road 45, Yanjiao Economic Development Zone,
Sanhe City, Hebei Province, 065201, P.R. China
Attention: Mr. Wencheng Jiang
Fax: 86-10-61597354
Tel: 86-10-61597354

10.

APPLICABLE LAW
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the PRC laws.

11.

DISPUTES RESOLUTION

11.1

Consultation and Arbitration
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If the Parties have any dispute or discrepancy in connection with this Agreement, they shall first consultant with each other. If no agreement
is achieved, either Party may submit such dispute or discrepancy to the [China International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission]
for arbitration according to its current arbitration rule. The arbitration shall be conducted both in [English and Chinese]. The arbitration award
shall be final and binding on the Parties. The Parties hereto agree that they will abide by such arbitration award.
11.2

Effect of Arbitration
Commencement of arbitration shall not terminate this Agreement, which shall continue to be in full force and effect before the award
rendered by the arbitrator(s).

12.

MISCELLANEOUS

12.1

Non-Waiver
Failure or delay of either Party hereto to exercise its right under this Agreement shall not constitute waiver thereof; nor shall any single or
partial exercise of a right preclude any other future exercise thereof.

12.2

Amendment
Any amendment to this Agreement shall be agreed to in a written instrument signed by the Parties.

12.3

Severability
The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement.

12.4

Language and Counterparts
This Agreement shall be executed both in Chinese and English which shall have the same effect. This Agreement shall be executed in [five
(5)] counterparts with the same effect. Each Party shall hold [two (2)] counterparts and the other one (1) shall be submitted to the competent
authority.

12.5

Entirety
This Agreement and the Appendix hereto constitute the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this
Agreement and supersede all prior discussions, negotiations and agreements between them with respect to such subject matter.

12.6

Costs, Expenses and Taxes
The Parties agree that each Party shall bear its own costs, expenses and taxes incurred by or imposed on each Party in connection with the
preparation, negotiation, execution and delivery of this Agreement.
(The remaining is intentionally left blank.)
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(Signature Page)
IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement has been executed on the date indicated on the first page.
Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
Authorized Representative:
(signature)

/s/Zhou Lin
Name : Zhou Lin

/s/Marc Hazout
Name : Marc Hazout
Position: President
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Exhibit 10.14
Agreement on Amendment to the Joint Venture Contract
of Sanhe Sino-Top Resources & Technologies, Ltd.
In accordance with the Equity Transfer Agreement dated July 4, 2008 by and between Silver Dragon Resources Inc. and Zhou Lin, the meeting
minutes of the meeting of Board of Directors approved on July 4, 2008 and the Law of the PRC on Chinese-Foreign Cooperative Joint Ventures and
the Detailed Rules of Implementation of the Law of the PRC on Chinese-Foreign Cooperative Joint Ventures and other relevant laws and regulations,
in the principles of equality and reciprocity and through amicable negotiations, the Chinese shareholders and the foreign shareholder--Silver Dragon
Resources Inc. of Sanhe Sino-Top Resources & Technologies, Ltd. hereby agree as follows:
1.

The second paragraph of “Chapter One General Principles” in the Contract shall be modified and replaced by the following:
In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Chinese-Foreign Cooperative Joint Ventures and other relevant laws and regulations, and the
Equity Transfer Agreement dated July 4, 2008 by and between Silver Dragon Resources Inc. and Zhou Lin and the meeting minutes of the
meeting of Board of Directors approved on July 4, 2008, in the principles of equality and reciprocity and through amicable negotiations, the
Parties hereby enter into and make this Contract:

2.

The Article 4.3 of “Article 4 Registered Capital and Total Investment” in the original contract shall be modified and replaced by the
following:
Party B has made payment of its subscribed capital contribution of USD 3,272,690 and the remaining capital contribution (the “Remaining
Contribution”) is USD 1,727,310.
The Remaining Contribution shall be made by Party B and Zhou Lin as follows:

3.

(a)

Party B contributes USD 1,000,000 of the Remaining Contribution prior to July 30, 2009;

(b)

In respect to the rest of the Remaining Contribution (USD 727,310), Party B contributes USD 323,250 prior to July 30, 2009 and
Zhou Lin contributes USD 404,060 prior to July 30, 2009.

The Article 4.4 of “Article 4 Registered Capital and Total Investment” in the original contract shall be modified and replaced by the
following:
The shareholding of the Parties in the CJV shall be as follows:
Party A: 60%

Party B: 40%
The shareholding of each member of Party A shall be as follows:

4.

Zhou Lin

58.8%

Shi Zhongmei

0.4%

Yang Guofu

0.4%

Zhang Hongliang

0.2%

Yang Wen

0.2%

The Article 7.1 of “Article 7 Board of Directors” in the original contract shall be modified and replaced by the following:
The board of directors is composed of 5 directors, of which 3 shall be appointed by major shareholders of Sino-Top (its definition follows), 2
by SDRI. The name list of directors is in Appendix 7.1. In the event a member appointed by a party resigns, or is removed by the party that
appointed him, such party shall designate his successor. The term of office for the directors is three years in principle; a director can only be
removed by the appointing party. During the term of office, unless in cases of resignation, misfeasance, malfeasance, or other misconduct that
prevents the director to perform, any change of the directors appointed by SDRI or the major shareholders of Sino-Top shall be made with
prior consent from the other party. All parties to this Contract shall vote about their shareholders’ rights by ballots, in written form or other
forms that are stipulated by laws and regulations or this Contract.

5.

The Sub-Article (b) under Article 9.1 of “Article 9 Profit Distribution” in the original contract shall be modified and replaced by the
following:
(b)

6.

the remaining profits shall be, in accordance with the resolution of Board of Directors, distributed to Party A and Party B respectively
in proportion of 60% and 40%, and the distribution among Party A (Sino-Top shareholders) shall be as follows:

Zhou Lin

58.8%

Shi Zhongmei

0.4%

Yang Guofu

0.4%

Zhang Hongliang

0.2%

Yang Wen

0.2%

The Sub-Article (c) under Article 13.2 of “Article 13 Dissolution of Company” in the original contract shall be modified and replaced
by the following:
(c)

the remainder shall be, respectively, distributed to Party A and Party B in proportion of 60% and 40%, and the distribution among
Party A (Sino-Top shareholders) shall be as follows:

Zhou Lin

58.8%

Shi Zhongmei

0.4%

Yang Guofu

0.4%

Zhang Hongliang

0.2%

Yang Wen

0.2%

Attachment: Appendix 7.1 of the original contract shall be amended in accordance with the current situation of the company. Other appendixes
remain effective.
(The next page is the signature page.)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed and delivered this Agreement.
Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
By: /s/Marc Hazout
Marc Hazout, President
Sino-Top Shareholders
Zhou Lin (Signature): /s/Zhou Lin
Shi Zhongmei (Signature): /s/Shi Zhongmei
Zhang Hongliang (Signature): /s/Zhang Hongliang
Yang Wen (Signature): /s/Yang Wen
Yang Guofu (Signature): /s/Yang Guofu
Execution Date: July 4, 2008

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Marc M. Hazout certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silver Dragon Resources Inc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.
Date: March 21, 2011
/s/ Marc M. Hazout
Marc M. Hazout
Chief Executive Officer and President

Exhibit 31. 2
CERTIFICATION
I, Jeffrey D. Sherman certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Silver Dragon Resources Inc;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal controls over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.
Date: March 21, 2011
/s/ Jeffrey D. Sherman
Jeffrey D. Sherman
Chief Financial Officer

EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Marc M. Hazout, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2011, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 and that information contained in such Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of
Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
Dated: March 21, 2011
By: /s/ Marc M. Hazout
Marc M. Hazout
Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Jeffrey D. Sherman, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2011, fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 and that information contained in such Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of
Silver Dragon Resources Inc.
Dated: March 21, 2011
By: /s/ Jeffrey D. Sherman
Jeffrey D. Sherman
Chief Financial Officer

